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PROCEEDINGS
(9:33 a.m.)

CHATRMAN GOLDWAY: Good morning. This
hearing of the Postal Regulatory Commission will come
to order. In today’s hearing, the Commission will
receive Postal Service evidence in support of its plan
for mail processing network rationalization and
associated service changes. The Commission will
evaluate this evidence when considering the Postal
Service’s request for an advisory opinion in Docket
No. .N2012-1.

For the record, I am Ruth Goldway, Chairman
of the Postal Regulatory Commission, and joining me on
the dais this morning are Vice Chairman Langley,
Commissioner Acton and Commissioner Taub. We’'ve been
pressed by the Postal Service and people in the public
sphére to move this proceeding as quickly as we can.

I want to assure you that the staff and Commissioners
of the Postal Regulatory Commission are doing
everything within their power to carefully review the
information in front of us and to give the parties
involved the due process that’s required by law.

We want to commend everyone for their
diligence in participating, and I want to indicate
thdt the Commission has been flexible in accepting
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late filings from all parties because we want to have
as much evidence as possible on the record, but that
we hope that as these proceedings progress that
information will come quickly, responses will come
quickly, and that we can proceed to make a decision in
this case in as reasonable and prompt a time as
possible.

I’d like to give my fellow Commissioners an
opportunity to welcome those of you who are here
participating today. I’1ll begin with asking Vice
Chairman Langley if she has some comments.

VICE CHAIRMAN LANGLEY: Thank you very much,
Madam Chairman. Today we begin the hearings on the
Postal Service’s proposed mail processing network
reorganization service changes, which entails revising
service standards for first clasgs, periodicals,
package services and standard mail.

This is a complex case. The Postal Service
proposal alone is supported by 13 witnesses. So far
there have been 1,022 written interrogatories asked of
the Postal Service. Over 50 library references have
already been filed, and there are 26 Intervenors.
These hearings, as the Chairman said, are an important
part of the process, affording due process to all
stakeholders and critical to developing a more complex
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and complete record.

Against the backdrop of the Postal Service’s
well publicized financial challenges, the proposals
raise a host of issues likely to affect virtually all
mailers and recipients. I do not take these financial
challenges lightly, nor do I take lightly the concerns
raised by stakeholders. However, in evaluating the
Postal Service’s proposal and partieg’ responses to it
I will remain mindful of the policies of Title 39, in
particular Section 101 and Section 3622. Thank you.

CHATIRMAN GOLDWAY: Thank you. And now
Commissioner Acton?

COMMISSIONER ACTON: Thank you, Madam
Chairman. Welcome, Witness Williams. It’s nice to
see you again. Thank you for your time and testimony
this morning. We value your expertise, and we look
forward to hearing what you have to say. Thank you.

CHATRMAN GOLDWAY: Thank you. And
Commissioner Taub?

COMMISSICNER TAUB: Thank you, Madam
Chairman. I would echo my colleagues’ comments.
Suffice it to say this is a critical part of our
statutory role, providing advice on operational
changes of this nature. The Postal Service is about
service, and indeed service standards go to the heart

Heritage Reporting Corporation
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of what the public can expect so we’ve got a busy four
days ahead of us.

I look forward to the testimony that we’re
going to hear orally and certainly have appreciated
the full season of winter and a little bit at the end
of fall for all the discovery that has taken place and
all the filings. So with the first day of spring,
let’s get rolling. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN GOLDWAY: Thank you. I'd like to
thank the Commissioners for their cooperation in
making sure that the proceedings here move smoothly,
and again a warm welcome to all of those who are
participating.

We’ll begin with procedural matters. First,
discovery has been quite active, as Vice Chairman
Langley mentioned, with over 1,000 questions presented
to the Postal Service. Some of the answers to these
questions have not been received in time to make it
into the designation packets for today’s hearing.

If parties have copies of answers that have
not been included in the designation packets with them
today, the answers may be entered into the record by
motion. As a reminder, in order to include answers by
motion two single-sided copies without hole punches or
staples are required to be given to the court reporter

Heritage Reporting Corporation
(202) 628-4888



10

11

12

13

14

15

)

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

upon granting of the motion. There also likely will
be a clean-up transcript to include late filed
answers. Procedures for designating this material
into the record will be established at a later date.

Discovery directed towards the Postal
Service for the purpose of developing Intervenor
testimony may continue until April 6, 2012. Because
Intervenors may rely upon the results of this
discovery in their testimony, the relevant discovery
also should be placed into the record.

My intent is to issue a ruling specifying
procedures for including this category of discovery
into the record prior to the June 12 hearings. No
changes to today’s designation packets are necessary
if some of this material has been included. To be
fair to the Postal Service, cross-examination should
be limited to lines of discovery initiated on or
before February 24, 2012.

There has been no indication that a closed
hearing will be necessary today. It is the
responsibility of counsel to alert me if this
circumstance changes. If it becomes necessary, a
closed session will be convened at the end of each

hearing day to consider material under seal.
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I would like to remind those in the audience
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today that this hearing is being web broadcast. In an
effort to reduce potential confusion, I ask that
counsel wait to be recognized before speaking and to
please identify yourself when commenting. After you
are recognized please speak clearly so that our
microphones may pick up your remarks.

Does any participant have any other
procedural matter to raise at this time?

MR. ANDERSCON: Madam Chairman, Darryl
Anderson for the American Postal Workers Union. We
have three interrogatory responses to submit. Do yoﬁ
prefer that we do that in a written wmotion, or should
I hand them in now?

CHAIRMAN GOLDWAY: If they are
straightforward, yvou can do that now. .

MR. ANDERSON: Thank you. Thank vou, Madam
Chairman. It’s NPMHU/USPS-T1-14, 15 and 20. I have.
two copies, and I’ll submit them to the reporter.

MR. TIDWELL: Just to be clear, these are
responses of?

MR. ANDERSON: These are by --

CHATRMAN GOLDWAY: Speak into the
microphone.

MR. ANDERSON: Oh, yes. These are responses
by David Williams.

Heritage Reporting Corporation
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MR. TIDWELL: I think we may be a little bit
premature. My understanding was that we were going to
move into evidence the testimonies of Witnesses Masse
and Rachel first. Then we would proceed with Witness
Williams’ testimony, then we would do the prepared
designation package for Witness Williams, and then
there would be a window of opportunity £for the
additional designations.

MR. ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Tidwell.

CHATRMAN GOLDWAY: I think you’re right.
Thank you, Mr. Tidwell, for organizing us.

Are there any other procedural motions not
directly related to witness testimony that. need to be
addressed at this time?

(No response.)

CHATRMAN GOLDWAY: If not, we have a busy
week ahead of us as we receive the testimoﬁy and
cross-examination of 13 Postal Service witnesses.

Briefly, our process to enter testimony into
the record is as follows: We will call each witness
and receive their testimony and prepared written
designated cross-examination. After that we will
allow oral cross-examination, and after oral cross-
examination an opportunity for redirect will be
available.

Heritage Reporting Corporation
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Three witnesses are scheduled for today.
They are Witnesses Masse, Rachel and Williams. There
are no requests for oral cross—éxamination for either
Witness Masse or Witness Rachel. They have been
excused from appearing today. Their testimonies and
written cross-examination will be entered into the
record by motion. Then we will proceed to entering
Witness Williams’ testimony.

Today we will begin with Witness Masse’s
testimony. Because Witness Masse is not present in
the hearing room, his testimony;will be received by
motion. Mr. Tidwell, counsel for the Postal Service,
are you prepared to begin?

MR. TIDWELL: Madam Chairman, Michael
Tidwell for the Postal Service.- Yes, we are prepared
to begin. .

CHATRMAN GOLDWAY: Aré there any
corrections?

MR. TIDWELL: No, Madam Chairman. I have in
front of me two copies of the direct testimony of
Stephen Masse on behélf of the United States Postal
Service. It’s been designated as USPS-T-2 for
purposes of this proceeding.

//
//

Heritage Reporting Corporation
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(The document referred to was
marked for identification as
Exhibit No. USPS-T-2.)

MR. TIDWELL: Appended to each copy of the
testimony is a signed declaration by Mr. Masse
attesting to the content of the testimony and
affirming that if he were to provide the content of it
orally today it would be the same.

and with that, Madam Chairman, the Postal
Service would then move that his testimony be entered
into evidence.

CHATIRMAN GOLDWAY: Is there any objection?

(No responée.)

CHATIRMAN GOLDWAY: Hearing ncne, I’'ll direct
counsel to provide the reporter with the two copies of
the testimony of Witﬁess Masse and the witness’
declaration of authenticity. That testimony is
received into evidence. However, consistent with
Commission practice it will not be transcribed.

{The document referred to,
previously identified as
Exhibit No. USPS-T-2, was
received in evidence.)

CHATIRMAN GOLDWAY: Counsel, can you identify
the library references that have been filed by Witness

Heritage Reporting Corporation
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Masse in this docket --

MR. TIDWELL: To my knowledge --

CHAIRMAN GOLDWAY: -- and indicate if he is
relying on that material or not?

MR. TIDWELL: Pardon me. Madam Chairman, to
my knowledge Witness Masse does not rely on any
library references.

CHAIRMAN GOLDWAY: If you want to change
that we can make changes later in the day, but we’ll
assume that that’s correct for now.

;Next we will receive written cross-
examination. Mr. Tidwell, you’ve been provided with
Witness Masse’s designation packet. Are there any
corrections or additions that need to be made?

"MR. TIDWELL: Madam Chairman, there are not.
We have the packages here, and we have appended to
each copy a signed declaration of Witness Masse
attesting to the responses and confirming that if he
were to provide the content orally today the answers
would be the same.

CHAIRMAN GOLDWAY: As everything is in
order, would you please provide two copies of the
corrected designated written cross-examination of
Witness Masse to the reporter?

That material is received into evidence, and

Heritage Reporting Corporation
(202) 628-4888



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

61
it is to be transcribed into the record. The
previously submitted declaration of authenticity
applies to this material as well.

(The document referred to was
marked for identification as
Exhibit No. USPS-T-2 and was

recelived in evidence.)

//
!/
//
//
//
//
//
/7
//
//
//
//
/7
!/
/7
//
//
//
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BEFORE THE
POSTAL REGULATORY COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20268-0001

MAIL PROCESSING NETWORK RATIONALIZATION
SERVICE CHANGES, 2011 DocKET No. N2012-1

DECLARATION OF STEPHEN MASSE

I, Stephen Masse, hereby declare under penalty of perjury that:

The designated responses to written cross-examination filed under my name were
prepared by me or under my direction; and

Were | to respond orally to the questions appearing in the interrogatories, my
answers would be the same.

StephenyMassg

March 20, 2012



BEFORE THE
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WASHINGTON, DC 20268-0001

Mail Processing Network Rationalization Docket No. N2012-1
Service Changes, 2012

DESIGNATION OF WRITTEN CROSS-EXAMINATION
OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE
WITNESS STEPHEN J. MASSE

(USPS-T-2)
Party Interrogatories

National Association of Letter Carriers NALC/USPS-T2-1-2, 4-6

National Postal Mail Handlers Union NPMHU/USPS-T2-9

Postal Regulatory Commission NPMHU/USPS-T2-2-3
PRC/USPS-T2-POIR No.1 - Q5

Public Representative NPMHU/USPS-T2-1,4-5,7, 9

Respectfully submitted,

Shoshana M. Grove

Secretary
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INTERROGATORY RESPONSES OF
UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE
WITNESS STEPHEN J. MASSE (T-2)

DESIGNATED AS WRITTEN CROSS-EXAMINATION

Interrogatory

NALC/USPS-T2-1
NALC/USPS-T2-2
NALC/USPS-T2-4
NALC/USPS-T2-5
NALC/USPS-T2-6
NPMHU/USPS-T2-1
NPMHU/USPS-T2-2
NPMHU/USPS-T2-3
NPMHU/USPS-T2-4
NPMHU/USPS-T2-5
NPMHU/USPS-T2-7
NPMHU/USPS-T2-9
PRC/USPS-T2-POIR No.1 - Q5

Designating Parties

NALC
NALC
NALC
NALC
NALC
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PRC

PRC

PR

PR

PR
NPMHU, PR
PRC
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE
WITNESS MASSE TO NALC INTERROGATORY

NALC/USPS-T2-1

On page 12, line 3 of your testimony, you state that “the net annualized savings will
take time to be realized fully.” Does USPS have an estimate of how long it will take for
the net annualized savings to be realized fully? If so, please explain the basis for such

estimate.

RESPONSE:
No.
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE
. WITNESS MASSE TO NALC INTERROGATORY

NALC/USPS-T2-2

On page 12, line 4 of your testimony, you refer to “implementation expenses.” Please
explain what these implementation expenses are, provide any estimate that USPS has
of the amount of these expenses, and explain how USPS arrived at such estimate.

RESPONSE:

Implementation costs are specific to each AMP and include, for example, the
costs of capital expenditures for facility modifications or material handiing projects. The
capital expenditure for these facilities projects has been estimated by internal Postal
Service subject matter experts at $191 million. This estimate was based on overall
averages and not on any specific projecfs. As such, these estimates must be
considered preliminary. The cost of transporting equipment between plants has been
estimated to be $124 million, based on standard costs for equipment relocation applied
to the projected equipment set. There wjll aiso be some costs for relocating employees,
primarily bargaining employees, which in the past have averaged less than $6,000 per
bargaining employee. There will no doubt be other miscellaneous costs, which the

Postal Service has not estimated, that are not expected to be material when compared

to the overall savings generated by the initiative. .
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE
WITNESS MASSE TO NALC INTERROGATORY

NALC/USPS-T2-4
Has USPS made an inquiry into, or undertaken any study of, what it would require in

terms of time, effort and expense to reverse the proposed maii processing network
rationalization if, after implementation, it turns out that USPS’s estimate of the net

annualized savings was a gross underestimate?

RESPONSE:

No.



RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE
WITNESS MASSE TO NALC INTERROGATORY

NALC/USPS-T2-5

Did USPS conduct, or request anyone else to conduct, any econometric studies in
connection with USPS’s effort to assess how much the proposed mail processing
network rationalization service changes would reduce demand for USPS8’s services or
would reduce mail volume, revenue or contribution? If not, why not? If yes, please

provide copies of such studies.

RESPONSE:

The Postal Service conductied the survey-based study described by witnesses
Whiteman and Elmore-Yalch in part because of the impracticality of using an
econometric model to calculate the volume, revenue, and contribution losses associated
with the ﬁetwork rationalization initiative. The econometric models used‘ by the Postal
Service are based on historical events; as such, the models cannot account for types of
events th_'at have not previously occurred. Because the Postal Service has not
previously made a significant, systematic change to its service standards, econometric

models are not as well suited as survey models to assessing the impact of such a

change.”

68



69

RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE
WITNESS MASSE TO NALC INTERROGATORY

NALC/USPS-T2-6

Do you agree with the statement that “[ijn the long term, the Postal Service is best
served by a focus on additional ways to add vaiue to customers and other stakeholders
such as employees”? (Sept. 23, 2010 testimony of Dr. Peter Boatwright on behalf of
USPS, in Docket No. N2010-1, page 27, lines 19-20). If so, in what ways, if any, does
USPS plan to add value to customers and other stakeholders.

RESPONSE:

In a general sense, yes, | agree. However, that certainly does not preclude the
need for a full range of strategies, including cost-saving strategies, to create a healthy
and viable Postal Service. The Postal Service continually pursues ways to add value to

customers, such as new products, new channels to access the Postal Service, etc.



RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE
WITNESS MASSE TO NPMHU INTERROGATORY
NPMHU/USPS-T2-1
Please identify the “numerous supplier contracts” (USPS-T-2, at 8) renegotiated by the
USPS and the magnitude of savings for the USPS, if any, that were the result of those
renegotiations.
RESPONSE:

In 2009, the Postal Service initiated the Rapid Renegotiation Initiative {(RRI),
which yielded price and/or scope reductions in 465 contracts. This initiative resulted in
$476 million of savings in FY 2009 and an additional projected savings of $648 million
over FY 2010 and FY 2011.

The Postal Service has also renegctiated contracts outside of RRI, but such

renegotiations have not been systematically tracked, so the savings resulting from them

cannot be readily calculated.
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE
WITNESS MASSE TO NPMHU INTERROGATORY

NPMHU/USPS-T2-2

Please explain why, in calculating the growth in mail volume necessary to equal the
cost-savings the USPS would allegedly reap from the MNPR, you use the figure $2.6
billion (USPS-T-2, at 9), instead of using the nef cost-savings that is identified
elsewhere in your testimony as $2.1 billion (USPS-T-2, at 12).

RESPONSE:

The $2.1 billion is not net cost savings; rather, it is the net impact on the Postal
Service’s profit or loss. As a practical matter, the distinction between replacing $2.1
billion of net benefit or $2.6 billion of cost savings is beside the point. Growing First-
Class Mail revenue by $2.1 billion would require volume growth of roughly 10 billion

pieces, or 13 percent. While this scenario may be slightly less unlikely than the

scenario presented in my testimony of growing First-Class Mail volume by 16 percent, it

nonetheless remains highly unlikely.
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE
WITNESS MASSE TO NPMHU INTERROGATORY

NPMHU/USPS-T2-3

Please provide the calculations you or the USPS made, including any worksheets or
supporting documents, in determining that “[t]o create a substitute for the $2.6 billion in
cost savings that will be generated by the service change initiative under review in this
docket would require growth equivalent to more than 11 billion pieces of First-Class
Mail.” (USPS-T-2, at 9).

RESPONSE:

The calculation is shown below. In order to determine the First-Class Mail
volume required to replace $2.6 billion in cost reductions, one divides $2.6 billion by the
First-Class Mail contribution per piece, as shown in the FY 2011 Cost and Revenue
Analysis report. The resulting nearly 12 billion pieces would be a 16 percent growth in

First-Class Mail volume, compared to 2011 levels.

Cost Savings ($ in thousands) $ 2,600,000
2011 First-Class Mail contribution '
per piece $0.217 \

First-Class volume (thousands)
needed to generate new
contribution equivalent to cost

savings 11,981,567
2011 First-Class Mail volume
(thousands) 73,520,543

growth over 2011 First-Class
volume 16.3%
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE
WITNESS MASSE TO NPMHU INTERROGATORY
NPMHU/USPS-T2-4
What increase in mail rates would be required to offset the decline in mail volume
discussed on pages 9 to 10 of your testimony?
RESPONSE:

The referenced section of my testimony does not discuss offsetting the entire
volume decline that the Postal Service is experiencing. Rather, it discusses replicating
only the $2.6 billion in cost savings that are at issue in the network rationalization
initiative through other means. The Postal Service has not calculated the level of price
increase that would be necessary to offset the decline in mail volume. As a practical
matter, such an exercise would be irrelevant, because price increases in exceés of the
12-month average change in the CPI-U are prohibited by the Postal Accountability and

Enhancement Act.
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE
WITNESS MASSE TO NPMHU INTERROGATORY

NPMHU/USPS-T2-5

Has the Postal Service made any estimates of what effect an increase in mail rates to
offset the decrease in mail volume would have on Postal Service market share? If so,

what are those estimates?

RESPONSE:
No.



RESPONSE OF'UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE
WITNESS MASSE TO NPMHU INTERROGATORY

NPMHU/USPS-T2-7

Please identify the reasons why “additional consolidations may become necessary in
the future.” (USPS-T-2, at 11)

RESPONSE:

As explained by witness Rosenberg (USPS-T-3), the modeling that was
undertaken to determine the configuration of the mail processing network under the
proposed service standards utilized 2010 workload. Accordingly, the proposed
realigned network is sized for 2010 mail volumes. Mail volumes decreased in 2011 and
are expected to continue to decrease for the foreseeable future. It is therefore possible
that excess capacity will necessitate additional cbnsolidations in the future in order to

align the size and cost of the network with future mail volumes.
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE
WITNESS MASSE TO NPMHU INTERROGATORY

NPMHU/USPS-T2-9

On page 7 of your testimony, you state that since 2008, the Postal Service has
eliminated 21% of the 2006 total workhours, while page 6 of your testimony indicates
that mail volume has similarly decreased 21% from 2006 to 2011. Please compare
anticipated mail volume reductions to planned workhour reductions over the next five
years, if the Postal Service moves forward with its proposal, breaking those numbers

down by year.

RESPONSE:

Forecast mail volume and target workhour reductions are shown below.

Actual Forecast

2011 2012 2013 2014 | 2015 | 2016
Total Mail Volume
(billions) 167.9] 158.0 154.4 | 150.4| 147.0 143.5
% Change in Mail :
Volume 5.9% | -23%| -25%!|-2.2% -2.3%
Target Workhours
(millions) 1,143.6 | 1,085.6 959.9| 92041 901.2 885.0
% Change in
Workhours 5.1% i -11.6% | -41% | -2.1% -1.8%
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS MASSE
TO PRESIDING OFFICER'S INFORMATION REQUEST NO. 1

5. On page 4 of his testimony, witness Masse (USPS-T-2) states First-Class Mail
volumes will decline significantly over the next nine years from the current 74
billion pieces in FY 2011 down to just 39 billion pieces by FY 2020. In the Postal
Service’s 10-year action plan released in March 2010, First-Class Mail volume
was projected to be almost 53 billion pieces by FY 2020. Ensuring a Viable
Postal Service for America: An Action Plan for the Future, March 2010 at 4.

a. Please discuss the changes in the volume forecasts since the release of

the March 2, 2010 10-year action plan.

b. Include in the discussion an explanation of the changes in the

assumptions used to develop the new forecasts.

C. Pleaée provide updated forecasts of volumes, revenues, and costs with ali
workpapers underlying these forecasts in the same manner as the original
10-year action plan that was provided in response to Docket No. R2010-4,
Presiding Officer's Information Request No. 5, question No. 32.

RESPONSE:

(a, b) The ﬁostal Service's volume forecasts are based on a wide range of
factors, including the most recent available data on actual mail volumes.
Thus, the McKinsey & Company voiume forecast included in the March 2,
2010 10-year action plan relied on volume data through Quarter 3 of FY
2009, whereas the Postal Service’s volume forecast presented in withess
Masse's testimony (USPS-T-2) relied on volume data through Quarter 3 of
FY 2011. The availabiiity of an additional two fuil years of volume data

has allowed the Postai Service to revise and refine the volume forecasts



RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS MASSE
TO PRESIDING OFFICER'S INFORMATION REQUEST NO. 1

RESPONSE to Question 5 (continued)
presented in the March 2, 2010 plan to better reflect recent history and

revised expectations of the future.

For example, the March 2, 2010 plan forecasted First-Class Mail volume
to be 77.1 billion pieces in FY 2011. In reality, the FY 2011 volume of
First-Class Mail was 73.5 billion pieces, a difference of 4.7 percent from
the March 2, 2010 forecast. This is a significant acceleration in the rate of
volume decline in First-Class Mail. Because of these types of differences
between forecast and actual volumes, the Postal Service has adjusted the

assumptions that underlie its forecasts.

The Postal Service has also adjusted assumptions based on more recent
economic data. The Postal Service's volume forecasts rely on economic
data and forecasts developed by IHS Globali Insight. IHS Global Insight
releases new economic forecasts on a monthly basis. Thus, in
comparison to the forecasts presented in the March 2, 2010 plan, the
forecasts presented in withess Masse’s testimony have the benefit of two
additional years of economic data and analysis from |HS Global Insight.

This information has resulted in changed assumptions regarding, for
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS MASSE
TO PRESIDING OFFICER'S INFORMATION REQUEST NO. 1

RESPONSE to Question 5 {continued)

example, the economy’s weakened expected growth rate in the wake of

the recent recession.

As in the past, in addition to incorporating the most recent data into its
forecasts, the Postal Service has also made adjustments based on
management’s business judgment. Management's regular interactions
with mailers give it insight into expected volume and revenue trends that
are not captured in empirical data. For example, dialogue with the direct
mail industry gives management insight into Standard Mail trends that are

not fully reflected in data regarding the general economy.

The March 2, 2010 10-year action plan and the materials provided in
response to Question 32, Presiding Officer's Information Request No. 5,
Docket No. R2010-4, were developed by McKinsey & Company, based on
volume forecasts provided by the Boston Consulting Group. Thus, the
Postal Service is unable to provide updated versions of those materials.
However, the Postal Service will file its latest volume and revenue
forecasts with the Commission on January 20, 2012, in accordance with

the Commission’s periodic reporting rules.
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~ BEFORE THE
POSTAL REGULATORY COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20268-0001

MAIL PROCESSING NETWORK RATIONALIZATION :
ﬁERVICE CHANGES, 2011 , DocKeT No. N2012-1

DECLARATION OF STEPHEN MASSE

—

| Stephen Masse, hereby declare under penaity of perjury that:

The designated responses to written cross-examination filed under my name were
p_repared by me or under my direction; and

Were | to respond orally to the questlons appearing in the mterrogatones my
answers would be the same. .

larch 20 2012
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CHAIRMAN GOLDWAY: Is there any additional
written cross-examination for Witness Masse?

(No response.)

CHAIRMAN GOLDWAY: Hearing none, that
concludes Witness Masse’s participation in this
hearing.

Next we will proceed with the testimony of
Witness Rachel. Because Witness Rachel is not present
in the hearing room today, his testimony will be
received by motion. Mr. Tidwell?

MR. TIDWELL: Madam Chairman, the Postal
Service has two copies of the direct testimony of
Kevin Rachel on behalf of the United States Postal
Service. It's been designated for purposes of this
docket as USPS-T-8.

(The document referred to was
marked for identification as
Exhibit No. USPS-T-8.)

MR. TIDWELL: Appended to the two copies are
declarations signed by Mr. Rachel attesting to the
content affirming that if he were to provide the
content orally today it would be the same. We would
then move that the testimony be entered into evidence.

CHAIRMAN GOLDWAY: And there is no
correction necesgsary for this testimony?

Heritage Reporting Corporation
(202) 628-4888
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MR. TIDWELL: That is correct.

CHATRMAN GOLDWAY: Are there any objections?

(No respomnse.)

CHATRMAN GOLDWAY: Hearing none, I'11 direct
counsel to provide the reporter with two copies of the
corrected direct testimony of Witness Rachel and the
witness’ declaration of authenticity. That testimony
is received into evidence. However, consistent with
Commission practice it will not be transcribed.

{The document referred to,
previously identified as
Exhibit No. USPS-T-8, was
received in evidence.)

CHATRMAN GOLDWAY: Counsel, can you identify
the library references that have been filed by Witness
Rachel in this docket and indicate if he is relying on
that material or not?

MR. TIDWELL: There is one library reference
that is associated with his interrogatory responses I
was going to mention as we got the interrogatory
packets designated in. It’s Library Reference 63.

CHATRMAN GOLDWAY: You're going to include
it with the interrogatories?

MR. TIDWELL: We were going to acknowledge
that it’s referenced in one of his interrogatory

Heritage Reporting Corporation
(202) 628-4888
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responses and therefore is associated with that
response.

CHATRMAN GOLDWAY: Thank you. Next we’ll
receive the written cross-examination. Mr. Tidwell,
have you been provided with Witness Rachel’s
designated packet?

MR. TIDWELL: Yes, Madam Chairman, we have,
and we’ve appended to each copy a signed declaration
by Witness Rachel attesting to the content and
affirming that if he were to provide those answers
today they would be the same. 2And as T acknowledged:
earlier, one of the responses refers to Library
Reference 63 as associated with one of the responses.
he is providing.

CHATRMAN GOLDWAY: And there are no
corrections?

MR. TIDWELL: There are no corrections.

CHATRMAN GOLDWAY: As everyfhing is in

order, would you please provide two copies of the
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designated written cross-examination of Witness Rachel

to the reporter?

That material is received into evidence and
it is to be transcribed into the record. The
previously submitted declaration of authenticity
applies to this material as well.

Heritage Reporting Corporation
(202) 628-4888
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(The document referred to was
marked for identification as
Exhibit No. USPS-T-8 and was

received 1n evidence.)

Heritage Reporting Corporation
(202) 628-4888
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OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE
WITNESS KEVIN RACHEL

(USPS-T-8)
Party Interrogatories
Greeting Card Association GCA/USPS-T8-1-4
Postal Regulatory Commission NPMHU/USPS-T8-10a
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Respectfully submitted,

ot

hoshana M. Grove
Secretary
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INTERROGATORY RESPONSES OF
UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE
WITNESS KEVIN RACHEL (T-8)

DESIGNATED AS WRITTEN CROSS-EXAMINATION
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GCA/USPS-T8-1
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RESPONSES OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS RACHEL
TO GREETING CARD ASSOCIATION INTERROGATORIES

GCA/USPS-T8-1. Please refer to page 7, lines 13-18 of your prefiled testimony.
(a) Please define the term “postal area” as used at line 15.
(b) Please explain fully the scope (e.g., nationwide, postal-area-wide, installation-
wide) of the contractual prohibition on reassignment, without mutual consent, of
covered employees to a withheld position in a different installation within the
same postal area more than once in every three months.

RESPONSE:

(a)  The term “postal area,” as used at page 7, line 15, of my testimony, refers io a
unit of the management structure of the Postal Service. The nation currently is
composed of seven geographic management units (areas) with operational
responsibility for portions of the nation. The seven areas are Eastern, Western,

Pacific, Great Lakes, Northeast, Capital Metro, and Southwest.

(b)  The scope of the provision is postal-area-wide.



RESPONSES OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS RACHEL
TO GREETING CARD ASSOCIATION INTERROGATORIES

GCA/USPS-T8-2. Please refer to page 13, lines 1-6, of your prefiled testimony.
(a) Please supply citations, including Web addresses or links where applicable,
to all Office of Personnel Management (OPM) regulations or other publications
governing Voluntary Early Retirement, both in general and as it applies to the

Postal Service.
(b) Please describe fully the scope of the OPM authorization mentioned in lines

5-6 of page 13, including, without limitation,
(i) whether the authorization applies to the Postal Service as a whole; to
specific programs, regions, employee categories, or other subunits; or to
individual employees;
(i) the duration of such authorization(s); and
(iii) the time reasonably expected to be required to obtain such an
authorization. :
RESPONSE:
(a) Please refer to the early retirement information provided by OPM in the following
sources:
CSRS and FERS Handbook for Personnel and Payroll Offices, found at:
http:/iwww.opm.gov/retire/pubs/handbook/hod.htm
Refer especially to Chapter 43, Early Voluntary Retirement, found at:
http://www.opm.gov/retire/pubs/handbook/C043. pdf
Retirement Facts 6 -- Early Retirement Under the Civil Service Retirement
System, November 1997 (Form Number: RI 83-6), found at:
http://iwww.opm.gov/forms/pdfimage/RI83-6.pdf
FERS -- Federal Employees Retirement System (An Overview of Your Benefits),
April 1998 (Form Number: Rl 80-1), found at:
http:/ivww.opm.gov/forms/pdfimage/RIS0-1.pdf

Special Retirement Supplement (FERS Supplement) Fact Sheet, found at:
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(b)

RESPONSES OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS RACHEL
TO GREETING CARD ASSOCIATION INTERROGATORIES

http:/iwvww.opm.gov/retire/pre/election/benefits/srs.htm

The main CSRS Retirement page is found at:

http://www.opm.gov/retire/pre/csrs/index.asp

The main FERS Retirement page is found at:

http:./imww.opm.gov/retire/pre/ffersfindex.asp

(i) The authorization from OPM applies to the entire Postal Service.

(i)  The authorization from OPM extends through September 30, 2012,

(i  The time required to obtain a decision on VER authorization from OPM is
dependent on the c;ompiexity and scope of the request. It would typicaily

be decided within 90 days of the request.
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RESPONSES OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS RACHEL
TO GREETING CARD ASSOCIATION INTERROGATORIES

GCA/USPS-T8-3. Please refer to page 13, lines 7-11, of your prefiled testimony.

(a) Please explain fully any bases (beyond the numerical eligibility levels

specified in lines 2-10) for your judgment that there is potential for significant

attrition.

(b)
(i) Please provide any information available to you concerning the rate(s)
of retirement among Postal Service employee groups corresponding to
those making up the 28 percent and 21 percent cited in lines 9-10, for the
Fiscal Years 2005 through 2011, inclusive.
(ii) Please provide any information available to you, including documents
containing factual findings, analyses, or conclusions, regarding the effect
of the 2008-2009 recession on (a) the rate(s) of retirement among Postal
Service employee groups corresponding to those making up the 28
percent and 21 percent cited in lines 9-10, and (B) the rate(s) of retirement
among Postal Service employees in general.

(c) Please refer also to page 18, lines 13-14, of your prefiled testimony. To what

Fiscal Years does the phrase "the last several years" in line 13 refer?

RESPONSE:

(a) The ageltehure profile of postal employees skews heavily toward an older and
more seasdned workforce, suggesting the potential for significant attrition.

by (i) Please see the chart below:

Optionally Eligible VER Eligible
FY Eligible Retired % Retired | FEligible Retired % Retired
2005 134,238 18,139 13.5% | 138,424 1,928 1.4%
2008 141,441 17,952 12.7% | 138,459 474 0.3%
2007 151,832 18,626 12.3% | 136,890 57 0.0%
2008 163,443 19,312 11.8% | 134,564 160 0.1%
2009 172,926 22,457 13.0% | 132,896 9,679 7.3%
2010 177,728 28,343 15.9% | 122,091 2,384 2.0%
2011 177,251 20,090 11.3% | 116,085 796 0.7%

Notes: 1) Eligible = On rolis beginning FY and were eligible or became eligible during the FY.
2) Retired = From the eligible, those who retired.
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RESPONSES OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS RACHEL
TO GREETING CARD ASSOCIATION INTERROGATORIES

(ii) No such information is available.
(C) Please be advised that a correction to page 18, line 14, of my testimony is being
filed today. Over the past five years, voluntary career attrition (including

retirements) has been as follows:

FY 2007 FY 2008 FY 2009 EY 2010 FY 2011

4.7% 4.5% 6.1% 6.4% 4.9%

The percentages for fiscal years 2009 through 2011 were augmented to some

degree by the availability of incentives for certain groups.



RESPONSES OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS RACHEL
TO GREETING CARD ASSOCIATION INTERROGATORIES

GCA/USPS-T8-4. Please refer to page 18, lines 5-7, of your prefiled testimony. Please
define the phrase "the full workforce savings" as used at that page and line location.

RESPONSE:

The phrase “workforce savings” is intended to refer to any savings attributable to the
estimated reduction in the postal workforce due to network rationalization. The
adjective “full,” in the context of my testimony on page 18, lines 5-7, means the total

savings that could be achieved when the implementation of network rationalization is

complete.

92



RESPONSES OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS RACHEL
TO GREETING CARD ASSOCIATION INTERROGATORIES

GCA/USPS-T8-5. Please provide copies of the American Postal Workers Union and
National Postal Mail Handlers Union collective bargaining agreements referred toc on
page 6 of your prefiled testimony, together with all currently effective Memoranda of

Understanding applicable to those contracts. '

RESPONSE:

The responsive documents are contained in library reference USPS-LR-N2012-1/63.
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RESPONSES OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS RACHEL
TO NATIONAL POSTAL MAIL HANDLERS UNION INTERROGATORIES

NPMHU/USPS-T8-2. In the Postal Service's Institutional Response to the Public
Representatives First Interrogatory, PR/USPS-T8-1, the Postal Service states that
“FTEs in this context do not equate to the number of staff to be ‘eliminated.” Please
confirm that FTE workhour reductions of this magnitude will require an analogous
number of staff eliminations; if not confirmed, please explain how the savings will be

achieved.

RESPONSE:

Not confirmed. Workhour reductions can be achieved in a number of ways, including
the reduction of full, part-time, or non-career employees, or through the reduction of
workhours or overtime hours for these groups. The Postal Service has several

complement-reduction tools that can be used to achieve labor savings. Please see

page 15 of my testimony.
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RESPONSES OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS RACHEL
TO NATIONAL POSTAL MAIL HANDLERS UNION INTERROGATORIES

NPMHU/USPS-T8-5. Is the Postal Service planning a reduction in force of any craft

empioyees, or does the Postal Service’s projected savings from the MPNR presuppose
a reduction in force of any craft employees? If so, how large a reduction is projected,

breaking the numbers down by craft?

RESPONSE:

The Postal Service is not currently planning a reduction in force of any craft employees.

The Postal Service’s projected savings from the MPNR does not presuppose a

reduction in force of any craft employees.
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RESPONSES OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS RACHEL
TO NATIONAL POSTAL MAIL HANDLERS UNION INTERROGATORIES

NPMHU/USPS-T8-7. Is the Postal Service considering offering a voluntary retirement

program or retirement incentive program as part of MPNR, or does the projected cost
savings presuppose attrition achieved through either such program?

(a) [f the answer to the NPMHU/RACHEL-7 is no, has this been considered
as an option?
RESPONSE:
The Postal Service is considering the possibility of offering a voluntary early retirement
program and/or retirement incentive options to achieve MPNR'’s objective of reducing

employee complement. The projected cost savings does not necessarily presuppose

attrition achieved through either such program.
(a)  As stated in my testimony (USPS-T-8 at 15), a voluntary early :retirement

program and retirement incentive options are tools that the Postal Service would

consider using to achieve MPNR's objective of reducing employee complement.
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RESPONSES OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS RACHEL
TO NATIONAL POSTAL MAIL HANDLERS UNION INTERROGATORIES

NPMHU/USPS-T8-10. On page 18 of your testimony, you state that “at impact sites
without multiple mail processing locations within the commuting area. . . a greater
reliance on accelerating normal atirition will be necessary in order to more timely

capture staffing reduction savings.”
(a) Please explain what the Postal Service has done to plan for “accelerating

normal attrition” in such circumstances, including by identifying the
locations where you anticipate that this greater reliance on accelerating

normal atirition will be necessary.
(b) Please confirm that the Postal Service’s projected costs savings as

presented to the Commission presuppose that this acceleration of normal
attrition will be achieved. If not confirmed, please explain why this is not

accurate.

RESPONSE:

(a) Any Postal Service plans for accelerating normal attrition cannot be developed
until the Postal Service makes final determinations regarding which plants will be
consolidated under MPNR. Because such final determinations have not been

issued, no plans for accelerating normal attrition have been developed.
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS RACHEL
TO PRESIDING OFFICER’S INFORMATION REQUEST No. 1

The Postal Service estimates that implementing MPNR will lead to annual

savings of $2.1 billion. See USPS-T-2 at 12.

a. Of the total savings, please estimate the savings that will result from
reductions in the Postal Service’s labor complement.

b. Witness Rachel (USPS-T-8) provides a list of 8 mechanisms used by the
Postal Service to achieve complement reductions. USPS-T-8 at 15.
Please provide specific details regarding the effect of MPNR on the
number of employees and associated cost savings due to the following

mechanisms;

2.
i.
ii.
iii.
iv.
V.
vi.
vii.
viii.
iX.

RESPONSE:

(b)

voluntary movement utilizing eReassign;

normal attrition over the next several years;
reductions in non-career employees;

article 12 involuntary reassignments;

voluntary early retirement (VER);

management reductions in force (RIFs);

retirement incentive options (potentially);

bargaining unit layoffs pursuant to Article 6; and

any other mechanism (such as voluntary separation).

The actual reductions in complefnent that would result from network

rationalization will be dependant'upon a variety of factors that are outside the

control of the Postal Service, including, but not limited to, (1) the individual

decisions of postal employees with regard to voluntary movement, attrition and in

response to any retirement incentive or VER options, (2) the outcomes of current

labor negotiations, and (3) Congressional legislation. As a result, the Postal

Service is unable to provide specific, quantifiable projections regarding the effect

of MPNR on complement reduction. However, based on past experience, the

Postal Service is confident that the mechanisms listed above will provide the

. Postal Service with the opportunity to achieve reductions in complement within

the rationalized mail processing network.
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POSTAL REGULATORY COMMISSION
DOCKET NO. N2012-1
MAIL PROCESSING NETWORK RATIONALIZATION SERVICE CHANGES, 2012

I, Kevin Rachel, hereby declare under penalty of perjury that:

The designated responses to written cross-examination filed under my name were
prepared by me or under my direction; and

Were | to respond orally to the questions appearing in the interrogatories and
information requests, my answers would be the same.

Vool dod 7

Kévin Rachel

mm% /J 20/2

Date
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CHAIRMAN GOLDWAY: Is there any additional
written cross-examination for Witness Rachel?

(No response.)

CHAIRMAN GOLDWAY: Hearing none, I believe
we are now at the moment where we can begin with our
witness, Mr. Williams. Welcome, Mr. Williams.

Mr. Tidwell, will you identify your witness
so I can swear him in?

MR. TIDWELL: Madam Chairman, the Postal
Service calls David Williams to the stand.

CHATRMAN GOLDWAY: Would you please rise?

Whereupon,

DAVID E. WILLIAMS

having been duly sworn, was called as a
witness and was examined and testified as follows:

CHAIRMAN GOLDWAY: Thank you. Counsel, you
may proceed with offering this witness’ testimony.

(The document referred to was
marked for identification as
Exhibit No. USPS-T-1.)

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. TIDWELL:

0) Mr. Williams, on the table before you are
two copies of a document entitled Direct Testimony of
David Williams on behalf of the United States Postal

Heritage Reporting Corporation
(202) 628-4888
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Service. It’'s been designated for purposes of this
proceeding as USPS-T-1. Was that document prepared by
you or under your supervision?

A Yes.

0 If you were to provide the content of that
document orally today, would it be the same?

A Yes, and I will note that there is a change
on page 24, line 20.

Q  Could you read into the record what that
change is?

A - Line 20, "11 a.m. at FSS locations and by
2 p.m. at non FSS locations not requiring a..." We
inserted the word "not".

0 . Okay. With that one change, if you were to
provide the content of your testimony orally today
would it be the same?

a | Yes.

o) There are also eight library references
associated with your testimony, Library References 1
through 8. Will you affirm that?

A Yes.

MR. TIDWELL: Madam Chairman, the Postal
Service hereby then moves into evidence the direct
testimony of Witness Williams with the associated
library references.

Heritage Reporting Corporation
(202) 628-4888
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CHATIRMAN GOLDWAY: Are there any objections?

(No response.)

CHAIRMAN GOLDWAY: Hearing none, I will
direct counsel to provide the reporter with two copiesg
of the corrected testimony of David Williams, noting
the library references. That testimony is received
into evidence. However, consistent with Commission
practice it will not be transcribed.

(The document referred to,
previously identified as
Exhibit No. USPS-T-1, was
received in evidence.)

CHAIRMAN GOLDWAY: Next we will receive
written cross-examination. Mr. Williams, have you had
an opportunity to examine the packet of designated
written cross-examination that was made available to
you in the hearing room today?

THE WITNESS: Yes.

CHATRMAN GOLDWAY: Are there any corrections
or additions that you would like to make?

THE WITNESS: No.

MR. TIDWELL: Madam Chairman, just for the
record I would note that there was an errata --

CHAIRMAN GOLDWAY: This is Mr. Tidwell.

MR. TIDWELL: I'm sorry, Madam Chairman.

Heritage Reporting Corporation
{202) 628-4888
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Michael Tidwell for the Postal Service. There was an
errata filed this morning revising Witness Williams’
responses to NNA/USPS-T1-1A and C.

The revised versions of the response have
been included in the package, and additional copiles
have been disseminated to the dais and have been
distributed to counsel, and there are additional
copies here on the Intervenor counsels’ table. That’s
the one change that’'s made to the designated package
of interrogatory responses and, ves, it’s been
inserted into the packet.

And just for clarity of the record, we might
also mention that there is a library reference
associated with the response to GCA-1 I believe it is,
Interrogatory 1. It’s Library Reference 47.

CHAIRMAN GOLDWAY: Okay. 8o with that we
have the designated c¢ross-examination, the corrections
that were submitted today and the reference to Library
Reference 47.

Counsel, will you please provide two copies
of that material, designated written cross-examination
of Witness Williams, to the reporter? The material is
received into evidence, and it is to be transcribed
into the recoxrd.

//

Heritage Reporting Corporation
(202) 628-4888
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(The document referred to was
marked for identification as
Exhibit No. USPS-T-1 and was

received in evidence.)

Heritage Reporting Coxrporation

(202)
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BEFORE THE
POSTAL REGULATORY COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20268-0001

MAIL PROCESSING NETWORK Docket No. N2012-1
RATIONALIZATION SERVICE CHANGES, 2012

AMERICAN POSTAL WORKERS UNION, AFL-CIO, SUPPLEMENTALDESIGNATION
OFWRITTEN CROSS-EXAMINATION OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE
WITNESS WILLIAMS (USPS-T-1)

(March 20, 2012)

Pursuant to Rule 30(e)(2) of the Commission’s Rules of Practice, and Presiding
Officer's Ruling No. N2012-1/22 (March 9, 2012) the American Postal Workers Union,
AFL-CIO (APWU) hereby designates the following interrogatory responses of United
States Postal Service witness David E. Williams (USPS-T-1) as the written cross-

examination of the APWU to be included in the record of this proceeding:

NPMHU/USPS-T1-14, 15, 20 (filed March 15, 2012)

Two copies of each designated response are being filed with the Commission today.

Respectfully submitted,

Jennifer L. Wood
Counsel for American Postal Workers Union, AFL-CIO
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BEFORE THE
POSTAL REGULATORY COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, DC 20268-0001

Mail Processing Network Rationalization Docket No. N2012-1
Service Changes, 2012

DESIGNATION OF WRITTEN CROSS-EXAMINATION
OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE
WITNESS DAVID WILLIAMS

(USPS-T-1)
Party Interrogatories

American Postal Workers Union, AFL- APWU/USPS-T1-2, 8-15, 19, 21-27, 29-30
ClO
GCA/USPS-T1-1-3
NALC/USPS-T1-1
NPMHU/USPS-T1-5-7
NPPC/USPS-T1-4-8, 10, 13
PRUSPS-T1-1-4
PRC/USPS-T1-POIR No.3 - Q1
TI/USPS-T1-5 .

Greeting Card Association APWU/USPS-T1-8-10
GCA/USPS-T1-1-5

Naticnal Association of Letter Carriers GCA/USPS-T1-1

NALC/USPS-T1-1
National Newspaper Association NNA/USPS-T1-1-11, 14

National Postal Mail Handlers Union APWU/USPS-T1-2, 8
GCA/USPS-T1-3
NPMHU/USPS-T1-6-7
NPPC/USPS-T1-4,7, 12
PRC/USPS-T1-POIR No.3 - Q1
TWUSPS-T1-5



Party

National Postal Policy Council, Inc.

Postal Regulatory Commission

Public Representative

Interrogatories

NPPC/USPS-T1-1-6, 6a, 7-8, 10-15
PR/USPS-T1-1-4
PRC/USPS-T1-POIR No.1 - Q1
PRC/USPS-T1-POIR No.5 - Q1
TI/USPS-T1-5

PRC/USPS-T1-POIR No.1 - Q1
PRC/USPS-T1-POIR No.3 - Q1
PRC/USPS-T1-POIR No.5 - Q1
PRC/USPS-T1-POIR No.5 - Q3

APWU/USPS-T1-5, 8-12, 15, 26-27
GCA/USPS-T1-1-4
NAA/USPS-T1-4, 9
NAPM/USPS-T1-2, 4-7
NPPC/USPS-T1-1-5, 8, 10-11, 13-14
PR/USPS-T1-1-3
PRC/USPS-T1-POIR No.3 - Q1

Respectully submitted,

Shoshana M. Grove

Secretary

107



INTERROGATORY RESPONSES OF
UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE
WITNESS DAVID WILLIAMS (T-1)

DESIGNATED AS WRITTEN CROSS-EXAMINATION

Interrogatory

APWU/USPS-T1-2
APWU/USPS-T1-5
APWU/USPS-T1-8
APWU/USPS-T1-8
APWU/USPS-T1-10
APWU/USPS-T1-11
APWU/USPS-T1-12
APWU/USPS-T1-13
APWU/USPS-T1-14
APWU/USPS-T1-156
APWU/USPS-T1-18
APWU/USPS-T1-21
APWU/USPS-T1-22
APWU/USPS-T1-23
APWU/USPS-T1-24
APWU/USPS-T1-25
APWU/USPS-T1-26
APWU/USPS-T1-27
APWU/USPS-T1-29
APWU/USPS-T1-30
GCA/USPS-T1-1
GCA/USPS-T1-2
GCA/USPS-T1-3
GCA/USPS-T1-4
GCA/USPS-T1-5
NAA/USPS-T1-4
NAA/USPS-T1-9
NALC/USPS-T1-1
NAPM/USPS-T1-2
NAPM/USPS-T1-4
NAPM/USPS-T1-5

Designating Parties

APWU, NPMHU
PR

APWU, GCA, NPMHU, PR

APWU, GCA, PR
APWU, GCA, PR
APWU, PR
APWU, PR
APWU

APWU

APWU, PR
APWU

APWU

APWU

APWU

APWU

APWU
APWU, PR
APWU, PR
APWU

APWU

APWU, GCA, NALC, PR

APWU, GCA, PR

APWU, GCA, NPMHU, PR

GCA, PR
GCA

PR

PR

APWU, NALC
PR

PR

PR
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Interrogatory

NAPM/USPS-T1-6
NAPM/USPS-T1-7
NNA/USPS-T1-1
NNA/USPS-T1-2
NNA/USPS-T1-3
NNA/USPS-T1-4
NNA/USPS-T1-5
NNA/USPS-T1-6
NNA/USPS-T1-7
NNA/USPS-T1-8
NNA/USPS-T1-8
NNA/USPS-T1-10
NNA/USPS-T1-11
NNA/USPS-T1-14
NPMHU/USPS-T1-5
NPMHU/USPS-T1-6
NPMHU/USPS-T1-7
NPPC/USPS-T1-1
NPPC/USPS-T1-2
NPPC/USPS-T1-3
NPPC/USPS-T1-4
NPPC/USPS-T1-5
NPPC/USPS-T1-6
NPPC/USPS-T1-6a
NPPC/USPS-T1-7
NPPC/USPS-T1-8
NPPC/USPS-T1-10
NPPC/USPS-T1-11
NPPC/USPS-T1-12
NPPC/USPS-T1-13
NPPC/USPS-T1-14
NPPC/USPS-T1-15
PR/USPS-T1-1
PR/USPS-T1-2
PR/USPS-T1-3
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Designating Parties

PR

PR

NNA

NNA

NNA

NNA

NNA

NNA

NNA

NNA

NNA

NNA

NNA

NNA

APWU

APWU, NPMHU
APWU, NPMRU
NPPC, PR

NPPC, PR

NPPC, PR
APWU, NPMHU, NPPC, PR
APWU, NPPC, PR
APWU, NPPC
NPPC

APWU, NPMHU, NPPC
APWU, NPPC, PR
APWU, NPPC, PR
NPPC, PR
NPMHU, NPPC
APWU, NPPC, PR
NPPC, PR

NPPC

APWU, NPPC, PR
APWU, NPPC, PR
APWU, NPPC, PR



Interrogatory

PR/USPS-T1-4
PRC/USPS-T1-POIR No.1 - Q1
PRC/USPS-T1-POIR No.3 - Q1
PRC/USPS-T1-POIR No.5 - Q1
PRC/USPS-T1-POIR No.5 - Q3
TI/USPS-T1-5
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Designating Parties

APWU, NPPC

NPPC, PRC

APWU, NPMHU, PR, PRC
NPPC, PRC

PRC

APWU, NPMHU, NPPC
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE
WITNESS WILLIAMS
TO AMERICAN POSTAL WORKERS UNION INTERROGATORY

APWU/USPS-T1-2 Mr. Masse's testimony indicates that the Postal Service
anticipates it could save, on net, $2.1 billion per year from a full implementation
of this plan. However, past experience indicates not all the AMP studies will
produce recommendations to consolidate.

(a)
(b)

How much does the Postal Service actually expect to save once the AMPs
have been fully evaluated?

Do you expect the anticipated loss (2.9 billion pieces and $0.5 billion in
contribution) to be reduced if fewer facilities are consolidated?

RESPONSE

(a)

(b)

The $2.1 billion per year estimate represents the Postal Service's estimate
of the net éavings associated with the general network concept described
in this doclget, without knowing the outcome of each facility-specific AMP
determination that will ultimately be made. The AMPs will be fully
evaluated at the conclusion of the post-implementation review process.

As for recent past experience, a comparison between Postal Service and
USPS Ofﬁc:e of Inspector General AMP cost savings estimates suggests
that the former tend to be on the conservative side. See USPS Library

Reference N2012-1/42.

[Redirected to witness Whiteman for response.]
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS WILLIAMS
TO AMERICAN POSTAL WORKERS UNION INTERROGATORY

APWU/USPS-T1-5 On page 5 of your testimony you state that the “objective of
the modeling exercise was to determine whether excess capacity could be
reduced significantly within the network if service obligations and operating
constraints driven by current overnight First-Class Mail service standards were

changed.”

(a) Did the Postal Service consider any other objectives in lieu of changing
the current overnight service standards for First-Class Mail as a means of
reducing excess capacity?

(b) If so, please identify alternative objectives and explain why those
aiternatives were not chosen.

()  If not, please explain why the Postal Service did not examine possible
alternatives that would preserve overnight First-Class Mail service
standards.

RESPONSE
a-c. See the response to GCA/USPS-T1-1. The goal was to substantially
change cost curve, in light of volume trends, which could not be done

without changes to service standards to some degree.



RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS WILLIAMS
TO AMERICAN POSTAL WORKERS UNION INTERROGATORY

APWU/USPS-T1-8 The APWU is concerned because the Postal Service has
undertaken contemporaneously three significant initiatives that have the potential
of affecting service on a nationwide basis. These are

« the change from six-day to five-day delivery that is the subject of N2010-1;

+ the Retail Optimization Initiative that is the subject of N2011-1; and

» the Mail Processing Network Rationalization Plan that is the subject of this

case.

We have a twofold concern: (1) that the potential or possible effect of these

initiatives, in combination, may be more substantial and more negative for the

Postal Service and for postal customers than can be understood or evaluated if

each of the initiatives is considered separately and they are not considered

together; and (2) that no Postal Service witness in any of these cases has
discussed the possible combined effects of the three cases. With those concemns
in mind, please answer the following questions:

a) As Vice President of Network Operations, have you been given the official
responsibility to consider or evaluate the possibility that the effects of the
service changes caused by the Network Rationalization Plan on the Postal
Service or its customers will in some way be exacerbated or increased
either by the Retail Optimization Initiative or the change from six-day to
five-day delivery, or by both?

b) i your answer to 8.a. above is yes, please provide your analysis or
evaluation of that possibility, and identify any report, memorandum or
written summary of your findings, thoughts or conclusions, and state to
whom you provided that information as a part of your official duties.

c) If your answer to 8.a above is no, please identify any postal official or
contractor who has been given that responsibility, identify any report,
memorandum or other writing summarizing their findings, thoughts or
conclusions, and state to whom that information was provided.

RESPONSE
(a) No.
(b) N/A

(c)  |am not aware of any such undertaking.
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS WILLIAMS
TO AMERICAN POSTAL WORKERS UNION INTERROGATORY

APWU/USPS-T1-9 As Vice President of Network Operations,

a) Have you in your official capacity considered whether there is, or should
be, any relationship between the fact that the Postal Service has proposed
to reduce service to its customers in the three cases described in
APWU/USPS-T1-8 above and, contemporaneously, has proposed both a
general rate increase and an exigency increase?

b) If your answer to 9.a. above is yes, please provide your analysis or
evaluation of that relationship, and identify any report, memorandum or
written summary of your findings, thoughts or conclusions, and state to
whom you provided that information as a part of your official duties.

c) If your answer to 9.a above is no, please identify any postal official or
contractor who has been given that responsibility, identify any report,
memorandum or other writing summarizing their findings, thoughts or
conclusions, and state to whom that information was provided.

RESPONSE
(a) No.
(b) N/A

(c) | am not aware of any such undertaking.
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS WILLIAMS
TO AMERICAN POSTAL WORKERS UNION INTERROGATORY

APWU/USPS-T1-10 In your position as V.P. of Network Operations, have you
seen an evaluation of the combined impact on customer service of the proposed
closings resulting from network rationalization combined with the impacts on
customer service from instituting the proposed changes from Docket No. N2010-
1, Six-Day to Five-Day Street Delivery and Related Changes? If so, please
describe the analysis and summarize its results. If not, does that mean that the
Postal Service has not made such an evaluation?

RESPONSE

No.

N/A

The fact that | have not seen such an evaluation, by itself, does not prove the

absence of such an evaluation.
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS WILLIAMS
TO AMERICAN POSTAL WORKERS UNION INTERROGATORY

APWU/USPS-T1-11 Have you had the responsibility for evaluating any specific
issues resulting from the proposal to institute the changes described in Docket
No. N2010-1? If so, what aspects of that proposal have you evaluated?
RESPONSE

When consideration of the service changes presented in Docket No. N2010-1
began, | was the Manager of Processing Operations. At that time, and in that
role, | provided resources to the team evaluating the concept and was involved
with discussions focused on processing capability related to such issues as
maintaining Post Office Box delivery on Saturday. | was promoted to Vice
President, Engineering prior to the commencement of Docket No. N2010-1 and |
was not involved with the case during that time. After becoming Vice President,
Network Operations, | was responsible for providing subject matter experts from
my department to participate in discussions and planning for potential
implementation of the proposed service changes associated with Docket No.

2010-1. These subject matter experts were responsible for identifying the impact

the proposal would have on Network Operations.
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS WILLIAMS
TO AMERICAN POSTAL WORKERS UNION INTERROGATORY

APWU/USPS-T1-12 In analyzing and evaluating the changes proposed in this
docket, did you consider or incorporate any of the proposed changes from
Docket No. N2010-1 in your analysis? If so, please describe those and why they
were important to this analysis.

RESPONSE

No,



RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS WILLIAMS
TO AMERICAN POSTAL WORKERS UNION INTERROGATORY

APWU/SPS-T1-13 In your position as V.P. of Network Operations, have you
seen an evaluation of the combined impact on customer service of the proposed
closings resulting from network rationalization combined with the impacts on
customer service from instituting the proposed changes from Docket No. N2011-
1, Retail Optimization Initiative, 2011. If so, please describe the analysis and
summarize its results. If not, does that mean that the Postal Service has not
made such an evaluation?

RESPONSE

No.

The fact that | have not seen such an evaluation, by itself, does not prove the

absence of such an evaluation.
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS WILLIAMS
TO AMERICAN POSTAL WORKERS UNION INTERROGATORY

APWU/USPS-T1-14 |n your position as V.P. of Network Operations, have you
seen an analysis of the potential combined revenue losses resulting from
instituting all the proposed changes in N2010-1, N2011-1, and N2012-17? If so,
please describe the analysis and summarize its results. If not, does that mean
that the Postal Service has not made such an evaluation?

RESPONSE

No.

The fact that | have not seen such an analysis, by itself, does not prove the

absence of such analysis.
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS WILLIAMS
TO AMERICAN POSTAL WORKERS UNION INTERROGATORY

APWU/USPS-T1-15 Who at the Postal Service would have the responsibility for
analyzing and evaluating the combined impacts on service, cost and revenues of
implementing all the changes proposed in N2010-1, N2011-1 and 2012-1
together?

RESPONSE

If and when the Postal Service determines that it can and will implement all three
of the initiatives, it will determine whether such an undertaking will commence

and, if so, assign responsibility for it. On its face, the task would appear to

require cross-functional expertise.



RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE
WITNESS WILLIAMS

TO AMERICAN POSTAL WORKERS UNION INTERROGATORY
APWU/USPS-T1-19 Does the Postal Service intend to implement the Service
Standard changes which are the subject of the Federal Register Notice published
December 15, 2011 at 76 Federal Register 77942, apart from Network
Rationalization and the mail processing changes proposed in this docket?
RESPONSE
The Federal Register Notice published on December 15, 2011 contains proposed
service standard regulation changes. The rulemaking process will resolve the
content of any service standard regulation changes that are ultimately
implemented. Those service standard changes and the service changes (and

underlying operational changes) discussed in this docket are inter-related and

would be implemented accordingly.
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE DAVID WILLIAMS
TO AMERICAN POSTAL WORKERS UNION INTERROGATORY

RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE DAVID WILLIAMS
TO AMERICAN POSTAL WORKERS UNION INTERROGATORY

APWU/USPS-T1-21 USPS-LR-N2012-1/57 provides a list of 487 facilities that

is described as being the network as of September 15, 2011.

a) Is this the Postal Service mail processing facility listing as of that date?

b) If not, what network does it represent?

C) How does this list differ from the frequently used number of 461 facilities in
today's network?

RESPONSE

a. See the response of withess Neri to GCA/USPS-T4-2,

b. N/A

C. The list is different in that it does not include facilities in which the

mail processing operations were consolidated after that point in time.



RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE DAVID WILLIAMS

TO AMERICAN POSTAL WORKERS UNION INTERROGATORY

APWU/USPS-T1-22 There are 21 NDC's listed on USPS-LR-N2012-1/57.

d)

Which mail processing functions currently take place in these locations?
Which NDCs currently have FSS machines installed in them?

Please refer to the December 27, 2011 AMP Feasibility Study (summary)
for Southern CT (Wallingford) P&DC. That AMP study summary indicates
that it would not be possible to move all mail processing operations into
the Hartford P&DC but the business case exists for moving the letter
volume to Harford and the flat and parcel volume to the Springfield NDC.

~ Would this require new mail processing operations be performed at that

NDC which are not currently performed there?
Under the proposed network rationalization plan, would NDCs take on
more mail processing functions than in the current network?

RESPONSE

a.

Typically, Network Distribution Centers process Package Services,
Standard Mail parcels, letter trays, Standard bundies and Periodical
bundles. In some instances, some NDCs have expanded their role to
include Priority Mail distribution, STC functions, as well as mixed states

single-piece distribution and FSS processing.

~ New Jersey, Springfield and Philadelphia.

No, currently there are AFSM100 machines located at that facility.
Additional flat and parcel volume would be processed at the Springfield
facility.

In some instances. As mentioned by witness Rosenberg (USPS-T-3), the
NDC network was not included within the preliminary model results. As
mentioned throughout the testimony and interrogatories, the model results

were the first step in the process to assess the potential opportunities

- associated with the changes proposed through mail processing

rationalization. During that process, it was determined in some instances,

the use of NDCs to consolidate operations that made sense should occur.
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE DAVID WILLIAMS
TO AMERICAN POSTAL WORKERS UNION INTERROGATORY

APWU/USPS-T1-23 USPS-LR-N2012-1/6 provides a list of mail processing

facilities being studied for consolidation opportunities.

a) Please confirm that there are 14 sites on that list that do not require AMPs
because they are contractor-operated sites or are sites that do not contain
mail processing operations. What is the estimated savings amount
obtained from this group of facilities?

b) Please confirm that there are 38 sites on that list that do not require a
formal AMP but do require public comment. What is the process for those
public comments to be collected? What is the estimated savings amount
obtained from this group of facilities?

¢) . What factors determine when a CSMPC requires an AMP and when it
does not require an AMP?

d) Please confirm there are 186 sites on that list for which AMPs have been
conducted under this initiative and public meetings held.

e) Please provide the date by which the AMP documentation will be
submitted to the PRC. Will those be available before the close of
discovery on February 247

f) Please provide the current status of the following sites on that list that do
not seem to fit into any of the above groups: Boston, MA P&DC;
Burlington, VT P&DF; Detroit, Ml P&DC; Grand Forks, ND CSMPC; Irving
Park, IL P&DC; Manasota, FL P&DC; Manchester, NH P&DC; North
Platte, NE CSMPC; Rapid City, SD P&DF; San Bernardino, CA P&DC;
South Jersey P&DC; and Western Nassau, NY P&DC.

q) Please confirm that several of these facilities are gaining facilities with
respect to the AMPs mentioned in (¢ ) above.

h) Will AMP-related public hearings be conducted at any of these sites in
relation to this proposal? If so, within what time frame?

RESPONSE

a. The sites on this list do not require a full AMP study because they do
not process traditional Sectional Center Facility, originating and/or
destinating operations.

b. The sites on this list do not require a full AMP study because they do not
process traditional Sectional Center Facility, originating and/or destinating
operations. The Postal Service solicited public comment for these

. particular studies. The process for collecting public input was to publish

announcements soliciting input in the local newspaper corresponding to
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE DAVID WILLIAMS
TO AMERICAN POSTAL WORKERS UNION INTERROGATORY

RESPONSE to APWU/USPS-T1-23 (continued)

the facility. The solicitation described the proposed consolidation and
potential impacts, and had an address to which comments could be sent.
The comments were reviewed and considered by the Vice President of
Network Operations and the Area Vice Presidents (and members of their
respective management teams) in conjunction with each decision.

¢. -~ The USPS Handbook PO-408 guidelines apply to examining the
consolidation of all originating and/or destinating operations from an SCF.
The definition of originating and/or destinating operations is based upon
primary distribution of outgoing first class letter and flat mail and incoming
Sectional Center Facility (SCF) distribution of letter and flat mail. Facilities
that did not undergo the process as outlined in PO-408 did not fit the
description of performihg all primary outgoing and/or all destinating SCF
distribution of letter and flat mail for one or more three digit ZIP codes.

d. Confirmed.

e. Before the middle of March 2012, non-public versions of decision
packages will be filed, as well as redacted public versions.

f. Detroit, Ml P&DC — Remain a facility in the network
Grand Forks, ND CSMPC - Remain a facility in the network
Irving Park, IL P&DC — Remain a facility in the network

Manasota, FL P&DC - Remain a facility in the network

RESPONSE to APWU/USPS-T1-23 (continued)
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE DAVID WILLIAMS

TO AMERICAN POSTAL WORKERS UNION INTERROGATORY

Manchester, NH P&DC — Remain a facility in the network

North Plaite, NE CSMPC — Remain a facility in the network

Rapid City, SD P&DF — Remain a facility in the network

San Bemardino, CA P&DC — Remain a facility in the network

South Jersey P&DC — Remain a facility in the network

Western Nassau, NY P&DC ~ Remain a facility in the network

Confirmed.

No, it was determined during the review process these were operationally

infeasible and the study did not move forward. It did not make sense for A

the Postal Service to hold a public input meeting for a facility that was

deemed operationally infeasible.



RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE DAVID WILLIAMS

TO AMERICAN POSTAL WORKERS UNION INTERROGATORY

APWU/USPS-T1-24 There are four sites that do not appear on USPS-LR-
N2012-1/6 but which have undergone the AMP process within the time period of
this study.

a)

b)

Please confirm that Mid-Florida P&DC, Owensboro, KY CSMPC, Staten
Island P&DF and Washington, PA CSMPC have been added to the study
list for this initiative.

What factors caused these particular sites to be added?

RESPONSE

a.

The following studies were initiated prior to the mail processing network

rationalization effort: Owensboro KY, Staten Island NY, and Washington

PA.

The list of facilities that were underway prior to the annouﬁcement of the
study list associated with Mail Processing Network Rationalization was

provided in USPS Library Reference N2012-1/5.

Mid-Florida FL was added to the study list during the AMP review period

for this initiative.

Mid-Florida FL was added as astudy site after the field management had
a chance to review the original Orlando FL — Mid-Florida FL AMP
proposal. After an initial review, the field determined maintaining the
Orlando FL facility made more sense due to its proximity to the airport, as
well as to the Orlando L&DC, which was also to remain in the mail

processing network.
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE DAVID WILLIAMS
TO AMERICAN POSTAL WORKERS UNION INTERROGATORY

APWU/USPS-T1-25 A recent webinar by the PMG entitled “USPS Financial
Future Responsibly Realigning Our Network” presents a timeline on page 12.
The timeline indicates that AMP decisions will be complete by the end of
February. How does February 23w fit into this timeline?

RESPONSE

On February 23, 2012, the Postal Service notified employees at affected facilities
of the decisions regarding on whether their operations would be consolidated,

pending a determination regarding service standard changes. This date was

before the end of February, consistent with the timeline.
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE DAVID WILLIAMS

TO AMERICAN POSTAL WORKERS UNION INTERROGATORY

APWU/USPS-T1-26 On page 5 of the webinar presentation mentioned in the
guestion above, there is a notation that the realignment of the network will reduce
annual operating costs by $2.6 billion.

a) Does this $2.6 billion estimate come from the cost savings estimates
produced by witness Smith and witness Bradley in this case?

b) Do you consider the cost savings estimates that are produced by the AMP
process fo be more accurate?

c) Are there any major areas of cost savings that the AMPs do not capture?
If so, which ones are they?

d) The cost savings estimates from the 186 AMP summaries mentioned in
APUWUSPS-T1-23(c) total to number that is substantially less than $2.6
billion. Has your staff analyzed the differences between these two
estimates? Is so, please provide that analysis.

RESPONSE

a. Confirmed

b. Iwilleave it to the postal costing witnesses to explain the differences, but

it is my understanding that (1) their aggregate network cost change
estimates and (2) facility-specific cost estimates generated through the
AMP guidelines (and subordinate facility-specific estimation processes)
reflect different methodologies which are not designed to measure the
exact same cost phenomedon. It is the objective of the AMP process to
produce accurate estimates based upon the methodology that it employs.

However, multiple, simultaneous AMP studies focused on specific

- operational consolidations at particular facilities are not designed to

capture network-wide cost changes that will result from the
implementation of those consolidations. So if the question is asking me
whether the AMP process fully captures all savings expected through the
Mail Processing Network Rationalization for the entire network, | would

answer in the negative.
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE DAVID WILLIAMS
TO AMERICAN POSTAL WORKERS UNION INTERROGATORY

RESPONSE to APWU/USPS-T1-26 {continued)

C. Yes. The AMP review process is a site-specific analysis of the potential
savings associated with the consolidation of site-specific operations.
There are major areas of savings that the AMP process does not examine
and hence were not taken into account. The role of each individual AMP
proposal is not to assess what the network change would be, but rather to
evaluate on a site-by-site basis whether there is a business case to
support consolidation of mail processing operations within the context of
the service étandard change. When calculating AMP savings,
conservativg assumptions are applied. For example, an AMP package

: does not assess any estimated increase in productivities for any
operations that remain behind in the consolidated site. Likewise, any
facility that was not evaluated as part of the AMP study process (a site
that neither éained nor lost workload) is not evaluated for any estimated
increase in p;roductivities based on the operational changes proposed.
Putting aside aggregate differences that might result from a smaller
number of consolidations being implemented that was assumed at the
beginning of this docket, the limited scope of the AMP packages,

- therefore, will be visible in the difference between the cumulative total of
estimated cost savings generated by the numerous AMP packages and

the aggregate cost savings estimate filed in support of the advisory

opinion request.
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE DAVID WILLIAMS
TO AMERICAN POSTAL WORKERS UNION INTERROGATORY

RESPONSE to APWU/USPS-T1-26 (continued)

The AMP post-implementation reviews (PIRs) provided in USPS Library
Reference N2012-1/12 reflects that the AMP process provides
conservative estimates. Of those filed as part of this case, 24 final PIRs
on AMP studies which have shown an actual savings of $345.3M, when
compared to an estimated savings of $71.6M. The Postal Service also
recognizes that in any analysis of network-wide cost changes, it should
develop reasonable estimates of what those savings might actually be in a

full-up environment which was done for this proceeding.

The AMP consolidations that were evaluated represent only a portion of
the mail processing network. As explained in my response in
NPMHU/USPS-T1-6, for the sites that were announced, their workload
represented approximately 35 percent of total workload. In addition to
those sites that were announced, the Postal Service expects savings
associated with the realignment of mail processing operations in every
facility in the network due to the operational changes resuliing from the
service standard changes proposed, as detailed in the expected

productivity changes estimated in witness Neri's testimony (USPS-T-4).

AMPs should not be considered full-up network operational impact
assessments. [n development of the cost estimates of the AMPs, local,

area and headquarters managers jointly estimate the immediate workhour,



RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE DAVID WILLIAMS
TO AMERICAN POSTAL WORKERS UNION INTERROGATORY

RESPONSE to APWU/USPS-T1-26 (continued)

complement and transportation requirements in order to complete the
consolidation of operations within one year. This leads necessarily to

- conservative estimates of cost savings within these packages. For
example, the Postal Service's case envisioned an environment in which
facilities that were consolidated would be removed from the Postal Service
network in the fuill-up network environment. However, in the short-term,
the AMPs may reflect maintaining that facility for local transportation
purposes. In the long-run, full-up network, the Postal Service would not

be maintaining significant square footage for a small cross-dock operation.

- There are known areas of savings that the Postal Service has not
evaluated through the AMP process, but were included as part of this
docket. Namely, the Postal Service does not include the savings
associated with premium pay reductions, rents or rental opportunity
savings, additional DPS sorting, or service-wide benefits as part of the
wage rates utilized in the AMP packages. In addition, the Postal Service
has not included the additional air cost into the AMP packages. There are
also areas where an estimate of savings is made. However, the Postal

. Service is persuaded that the vast majority of these savings have not been
captured through the AMP process. Examples include utilities, supplier
and contractor costs, parts and supplies, reductions in outgoing secondary

sortation and the productivity improvements associated with the Upgraded
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE DAVID WILLIAMS
TO AMERICAN POSTAL WORKERS UNION INTERROGATORY

RESPONSE to APWU/USPS-T1-26 (continued)

Flats Sorting Machine 100 and Carrier Sequence Barcode Sorter

consolidation.

d. My staff has reviewed the total savings associated with the two estimates.
During the completion of the AMP proposal it was noted that not all
savings associated with the PRC proceeding would be visible in the sum
of the results of the AMP packages for the reasons described above in

response to parts b and c.
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TO AMERICAN POSTAL WORKERS UNION INTERROGATORY

APWU/USPS-T1-27 On page 10 of the aforementioned webinar, there is an

example of proposed area hubs.

a) Under what sets of circumstances will these hubs operate?

b} What activities will take place at these hubs?

c) Have the costs of running these hubs been included in the cost estimates
presented by witnesses Smith and Bradley?

d) Will these hubs be located in facilities that no longer contain mail
processing activities but do contain retail units and BMEU?

RESPONSE

a. They will operate to provide points in the network to increase the
efficiencies of transportation in comparison to direct trips to and from
every mail collection and delivery point. The Postal Service utilizes this
concept in today's network.

b. Cross-dock of mail to and from collection and delivery points.

C. To the extent that witness Martin in her analysis of local fransportation
ensured appropriate transportation from collection and delivery points to

the plants.

d. Potentially.



RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE DAVID WILLIAMS
TO AMERICAN POSTAL WORKERS UNION INTERROGATORY

APWU/USPS-T1-29 What changes are expected in the service standards of
First Class Parcels under the proposed plan?

RESPONSE
The Postal Service maintains service standards at a mail class level. First Class
Parcels will continue to be First Class Mail, and hence follow those service

standard business rules.
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE DAVID WILLIAMS
TO AMERICAN POSTAL WORKERS UNION INTERROGATORY

APWU/USPS-T1-30 There are approximately 60 AMPs that were approved

prior to this initiative that have not been officially tagged as “implemented” on the

Postal Service's AMP tracking page. About.usps.com/streamlining-

operations/area-mail-processing.htm

a) Are any of the AMPs listed as “Approved” on the Postal Service’s AMP
tracking page now officially “Implemented”? If so which ones.

b) In how many of the facilities listed as “Approved” are mail processing
operations currently taking place?
) In how many of the facilities listed as “Approved” are employees being

transported to a different facility to process the mail?

RESPONSE

a-b.) At the time of receipt of this question, the USPS had already begun the
process updating the website identified in this question. It is not known at
the time in which this was written which facilities were listed as
approved/implemented. The website is under construction to achjrater
reflect the status of operations.

c.)  There are 2 known facilities in which employees are being transpo}ted toa
different facility to process the mail. This is occurring in relation to‘:the

Oxnard, CA AMP and Ashland, KY AMP.
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS WILLIAMS

TO GREETING CARD ASSOCIATION INTERROGATORY

GCA/USPS-T1-1
Please refer to your prefiled testimony at page 5, lines 14-22. You state, at lines
19-22, that:

(a)

(b)

The objective of the modeling exercise was to determine whether excess
capacity could be reduced significantly within the network if service
obligations and operating constraints driven by current overnight First-
Class Mail service standards were changed.

Piease state whether, before the modeling exercise just described was
initiated, or simultaneously, or subsequently, the Postal Service performed
any similar exercise to determine whether excess capacity could be
reduced significantly without changing the current overnight standard for
First-Class Mail. If your answer is not an unqualified "no," please describe
fully any such modeling exercise and provide any documents setting forth,
explaining, or evaluating it.

Should the reference to overnight First-Class Mail service standards in the
quoted passage be understood as covering overnight service for
Periodicals as well as for First-Class Mail? If your answer is negative, or if
there are differences between the overnight standards for these classes,
please explain fully.

RESPONSE

(@)

Yes, the Postal Service continually looks at the capacity within its mail
processing network and seeks to eliminate it. As discussed on page 3 of
my testimony (USPS-T-1), the Postal Service has been actively pursuing
AMP consolidations to reduce capacity within the ﬁeMork, with 114 AMP
consolidations approved to-date under the June 2008 Network Plan. As
further discussed, in light of the future projections related to mail volumes,
as well as our current financial plight, the Postal Service looked at how to
reduce the capacity of the network in order to align the mail processing
network with the mail volumes of today, while setting up the network for

the future.
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS WILLIAMS
TO GREETING CARD ASSOCIATION INTERROGATORY

RESPONSE to GCA/USPS-T1-1 (continued)

The Postal Service in identifying aiternative scenarios looked at how
constraints within the mail processing network affected the need for
capacity. The extent of this analysis to identify the consolidation
opportunities, however, was not of a similar exercise to that which is
presented within this case. As the constraints on overnight service
standards were loosened, the Postal Service found signiﬂcantl
consolidation could occur which would much more fully maximize the use
of equipment, labor and facilities. Changes to service standards are
necessary to more fully utilize the Pbstal Service's assets. As thereis
only so much time between mail collection and mail delivery, the overnight
standard confines the amount of processing time allowed for delivery point
sequencing and causes the need for additional equipment which
translates into additional facility squfare footage. The analysis performed
suggested the savings potential from maintaining some level of overnight
service standards, with some relaxation of overnight relationships was not
as great as the proposed change, a‘nd based on the financial condition of
the Postal Service, as well as the forecasts related to First-Class Mail
volumes, the organization determined to more fully evaluate the potential
opportunity based on the proposed network laid out in this docket. A copy

of the analysis will be filed as USPS Library Reference N2012-1/47.



RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS WILLIAMS
TO GREETING CARD ASSOCIATION INTERROGATORY

GCA/USPS-T1-2

Please refer to your prefiled testimony at page 17, line 22, through page 18, line
2. You state that First-Class Mail, which is declining in volume, has "historically
been the primary source of funding for mail processing and delivery
infrastructure.” Did the Postal Service give consideration to seeking increased
levels of processing and delivery infrastructure funding from other classes of
mail, either (i) as an alternative to elimination of First-Class overnight delivery or
(i) as an independent deficit-reduction measure? If your answer is not an
unqualified "no," please describe such consideration fully, and provide any
documents setting forth, explaining, or evaluating it.

RESPONSE

Pricing policy is beyond my area of expertise. However, | am informed that the
Postal Service has not considered pursuit of a market-dominant product price
increase that would exclude First-Class Mail, either as (i) an alternative to the
service and operationai chénges under review in this docket or (ii) as a deficit

reduction measure.
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS WILLIAMS
TO GREETING CARD ASSOCIATION INTERROGATORY

GCA/USPS-T1-3
Please refer to your prefiled testimony at page 16, lines 12-15, and fn. 17.
(a) Inarriving at the conclusions expressed in the cited passages, did you
consider the cumulative effect on Single-Piece First-Class Mail entry of —
(i) The Retail Access Optimization Initiative, currently before the
Commission in Docket No. N2011-1; and/or

(ii) The potential elimination of Saturday street delivery and pickup,
substantially as set forth in the proposal presented in Docket No.
N2010-1; and/or

(iiiy  Any existing or future Postal Service actions to reduce the number
of street collection boxes, and/or

(iv)  The possibility of an exigency-based rate increase, as proposed in
Docket No, R2010-4R, in combination with a price-capped increase
early in 2012,

when combined with the Mail Processing Network Rationalization plan

(hereafter, "MPNR plan")? If your answer to any of (i) — (iv) is other than

an unqualified "no," please describe such consideration fully, and provide

any documents explaining or evaluating such consideration or the effect(s)

being considered.

(b)  You state that the potential impact of the MPNR plan on Single-Piece
First-Class entry would be "much less significant” (USPS-T-1, page 16,
line 13). Did you attempt to quantify or otherwise make more specific that
potential impact? If so, please (i) describe your procedure and results, (ii)
state whether this exercise included distinguishing between transactional
and non-transactionai uses of Single-Piece First-Class Mail and describe
any differences in impact as between these two categories, and (iii)
provide any documents setting forth, explaining, or evaluating that
procedure and those results, as specified in both (i) and (ii).

RESPONSE
(a)(i-iv) - No.

(b) . No.



RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS WILLIAMS
TO GREETING CARD ASSOCIATION INTERROGATORY

GCA/USPS-T1-4

Please refer to your prefiled testimony at page 19, lines 8-12. Are the “additional
sortation or other mail preparation” activities which enable a bulk mailer to retain
ovemight delivery for mail entered after the Day Zero Critical Entry Time
specified in a Postal Service rule, publication, or other publicly available source?
if so, please provide such source(s) or state how they may be accessed.

RESPONSE
The Postal Service has active customer service agreements (CSA) with its

customers. The guide to customer service agreements can be found at the

following link:

hitps:/fribbs.usps.goviintelligentmail guides/documentsi/tech guides/CustomerSupplierA

greementGuide.pdf

In some instances, later acceptance/dispatch times could be allowed by local
. management based on the additional separations created if that mail can still

- meet the service standards.
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS WILLIAMS
TO GREETING CARD ASSOCIATION INTERROGATORY

GCA/USPS-T1-5

Please refer to your prefiled testimony at page 18, line 8-12.

(a) For each of the Alaska ZIP codes 99501 through 99539 mentioned at that
point in the testimony, please specify (i) the post office (including branch
or station) to which that ZIP code belongs (including the name of the city
or political subdivision where it is located, if different from that of the post
office), and (ii) whether the ZIP code designates a carrier defivery area or
a specific P.O. box.

(b) -

{i) Please list the ZIP codes covered by the area which you describe
as "intra-SCF Honolulu (does not include Guam)".

(iiy  Are all of the ZIP codes listed under (b)(i) located on Oahu? If not,
please indicate which ZIP codes are not located on Oahu, and give
their location (by island and city or political subdivision).

RESPONSE

(a) See the attached Alaska table.

b)
(i)  967-968.

(ii) No. See the attached Hawaii table.



RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS WILLIAMS
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Alaska attachment to response to GCA/USPS-T1-5

Zip Zip ZIP Code Last Physical | Carrier
Code Class Line Facllity Name Physical City | State | ZIP Dellvery
ANCHORAGE
99501 ANCHORAGE gngmown ANCHORAGE | AK
99501 ANCHORAGE EASTCHESTER | ANCHORAGE | AK Iy
99502 ANCHORAGE | SAND LAKE ANCHORAGE | AK Y |
99503 ANCHORAGE MIDTOWN ANCHORAGE | AK ° Ty
‘99504 ANCHORAGE MULDOON ANCHORAGE | AK Y
"""""""""""" Joint Base FORT
99505 Elmendorf- RIGHARDSON | ANCHORAGE | AK | 98505 | ¥
Richardson | .
99506 é?;'ér?;;i JE'EEENDORF ANCHORAGE | AK | o9506 | Y
_____________ Richardson
ANCHORAGE LAKE OTIS ANCHORAGE | AK | 99 Y
ANCHORAGE RUSSIAN JACK | ANCHORAGE | AK | 9508 | ¥
ip ANCHORAGE | SPENARD ANCHORAGE | AK | 99517
ANCHORAGE
P ANCHORAGE g%_)xvmoww ANCHORAGE | AK | 99501
99511 | P ANCHORAGE | HUFFMAN ANCHORAGE | AK | 99515
99513 | ANCHORAGE | EASTCHESTER | ANCHORAGE | AK [ s9s01 [ Y
99514 | P ANCHORAGE | RUSSIAN JACK | ANCHORAGE | AK | 99508
99515 ANCHORAGE HUFFMAN ANCHORAGE | AK | 99515 | Y
99516 | | ANCHORAGE | HUFFMAN ANCHORAGE | AK | 99515 | Y _
99517 | ANCHORAGE | SPENARD ANCHORAGE | AK 199517 | Y
99518 ANCHORAGE | SAND LAKE ANCHORAGE | AK | 99502 | Y
99518 | P ANCHORAGE | AHCHORAGE | ancHoraGE | AK | 99530
sgs20 [P ANCHORAGE EASTCHESTER | ANCHORAGE | AK | 99501
ges21 | P ANCHORAGE MULDOON ANCHORAGE | AK | 99504
9522 | P ANCHORAGE SAND LAKE ANCHORAGE | AK | 29502
99523 [P ANCHORAGE LAKE OTIS ANCHORAGE | AK | 99507
09524 | P ‘I ANCHORAGE | MIDTOWN ANCHORAGE | AK | 99503
99529 ANCHORAGE | i ORROE | ANCHORAGE [ AK | 99530
99530 ANCHORAGE | priCHORACE ANCHORAGE | AK | 99530

ZIP Class - "P" means the ZIP Code is deslgnated as having only Post Office Box delivery

ZIP Code Last Line - the designated preferred city name to be used with the ZIP Code. Source: Address Management
City/State file dated 12/31/2011

Facility Name - name of the facility which provides delivery service o the ZIP Code. Source: Address Management
Universal Delivery Statistics File (UDSF) dated 12/31/2011 and Address Management Locale file

Physical City - the physical city in which the facility is located. Source: ESRI mapping data, originatly from the US
Census Bureau

Carrier Delivery: "Y" if the ZIP Code has at least 1 city, rural, or highway contract route that is not flagged as a phantom
route and has at least 3 possible deliveries. Derived from UDSF dated 12/31/2011

Note:; 99512, 99525, 99526, 99527, and 99528 are not active 5 Digit ZIP Codes.

-
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS WILLIAMS
TO GREETING CARD ASSOCIATION INTERROGATORY

Hawaii attachment to response to GCA/USPS-T1-5

ZIP Code City Name (Preferred last line) Island State
96703 | ANAHOLA ] KAUAI Hi

96704 CAPTAINCOOK . HAWAII Hi

96705 ELEELE KAUAI Hi
96708 HAIKU MALUY Hi
96710 | HAKALAU | HAWAl HI
96713 HANA .| MAUI HI
96714 HANALEI KAUAI HI

96715 HANAMAULU KAUAI HI

96716 HANAPEPE KAUAI HI
_96718 | HAWAIINATIONAL PARK ... HAWAN HI
96719 HAWI HAWAH Hi

96720 HILO HAWAI HI

96721 HILO HAWAIE HI

96722 PRINCEVILLE KAUAI HI

96725 | HOLUALOA . .. . . HAWAII Hi
96726 | HONAUNAU. . | HAWAI HI
96727 HONOKAA HAWAIL HI

96728 HONOMU _ HAWAII Hi
96729 HOOLEHUA MAUI HI
96732 | RAHULUL . ] Maul HI

96733 KAHULUE MAUL Hi

96737 QCEAN VIEW HAWAII HI

96738 WAIKOLOA HAWA Hi
96739 KEAUHOU HAWAR HI

96740 KAILUA KONA HAWAIE H
96741 [ KALAHEQ .. | KAUAI all
96742 MAUI HI

96743 HAWAII Ht

96745 , HAWAII HI
98746 LKAPAA s s | SSAUAL HL .
96747 KAUMAKANI KAUA Hi

96748 KAUNAKAKAI eermeresneereseeer | _MAUI Hi
96749 KEAAU HAWAI) HI
96780 | KEALAKEKUA | HAWAI H
6751 | KEAUA o |xaval HI
96752 | | KAUAI HI
96753 MAUI H!
96754 KAUAI Hi
96755 HAWAI HI B
96756 | | 1 kauay H B

96757 | KUALAPUU MAUI HI

96760 KURTISTOWN. HAWAI HI

96761 LAHAINA MAUI Hi
96763 | LANMICITY | MAUI Hl

JLAUPAHOEHOE ... ... | HAWAI HI
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TO GREETING CARD ASSOCIATION INTERROGATORY

_98765 | LAWAI SO . €. 1L 1| HI
96786 | LIHUE ... | KAUAI Hl .
96767 LAHAINA MAUI HI
96768 MAKAWAO MAUI HI
96769 MAKAWEL| KAUAI HI
96770 | MAUNALOA | maul Hl
96771 MOUNTAIN VIEW HAWAIL Hi
96772 | NAALEHY e HAWAI HI
96773 NINOLE HAWAII HI
96774 OOKALA HAWAII HI
96778 | PAAUILO HAWAII Hi
96777 I PAHALA ... ... HAWAII HI
96778 PAHOA HAWAII HI
96779 PAIA MAU) HI
96780 PAPAALOA HAWAII HI
86781 | PAPAIKOU | HAWAL HI
96783 PEPEEKEQ HAWAIl HI
96784 PUUNENE MAUI HI
96785 VOLCANO HAWAI Hi
96788 PUKALAN MAUI HI
96793 WAILUKU MAUIL HI
96796 WAIMEA KAUAI HI
96799 PAGO PAGO AMERICAN SAMOA AS
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS WILLIAMS
TO NEWSPAPER ASSOCIATION OF AMERICA INTERROGATORY

NAA/USPS-T1-4 Under what circumstances could the mailing described in
NAA/USPS-T1-3 receive overnight delivery?

RESPONSE
If its meets applicable preparation requirements, is entered by the applicable

DDU Critical Enfry Time, and is processed and delivered in accordance with the

applicable operating plan.
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS WILLIAMS
TO NEWSPAPER ASSOCIATION OF AMERICA INTERROGATORY

NAA/USPS-T1-9: Would the Periodicals mailings described in your responses to
NAA/USPS-T1-7 and NAA/USPS-T1-8 be eligible for destination entry
discounts? If yes, please identify what destination entry discounts would be
available.

The pricing of postal products is outside the scope of my testimony. There are
no prices changes associated with the request in this docket. | am informed that,
in the future network, mail that meets the requirements for DSCF entry will pay

DSCF prices and that mail meeting the applicable DDU entry requirements will

pay DDU prices.



RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS
DAVID WILLLIAMS
TO NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF LETTER CARRIERS INTERROGATORY

NALC/USPS-T1-1
On page 7, line 19, you refer to service levels “to which postal customers have

long been accustomed.” How long has USPS had in place the current first-class
mail service standards that USPS now proposes changing?

RESPONSE

The current First-Class Mail service standard business rules have been in effect

since December 2007. In the main, they are based on the one-to-three day

service standard range that is at least several decades old.
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS WILLIAMS
TO NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF PRESORT MAILERS INTERROGATORY

NAPM/USPS-T1-2. Please refer to page 5 of your testimony where you state, “[o]ne of
the ongoing responsibilities of the Network Operations function at USPS headquarters
is to explore opportunities to process and transport mail more economically and
efficiently. This includes examination of opportunities to utilize existing resources better,
as well as analysis of opportunities to eliminate excess capacity.”

a. Please confirm if the exploration includes the use of supply chain resources e.g.
mailing service providers and additional or new work-share incentives to perform
more operational processing e.g. primary sort, DPS sort, to gain efficiencies and
minimize USPS excess capacity. If confirmed, can you provide the results of the
exploration or analyses of any possible alternatives of using supply chain
partners to eliminate excess capacity and economically improve efficiencies you
are considering. If not confirmed, please explain fully why such alternatives were
not considered.

RESPONSE

a. Not confirmed. The objective and focus of current initiative is to pursue
consolidate currént postal mail processing and transportation infrastructure
based on existing and projected workload. Development and exploration of

workshare priciné; initiatives are not a Network Operations function.
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS WILLIAMS
TO NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF PRESORT MAILERS INTERROGATORY

NAPM/USPS-T1-4. Please refer to page 8 of your testimony where you state,
“[c]hanges of the magnitude proposed here cannot be implemented without requiring
some customers to adjust their mail entry operations or patterns and their delivery
expectations, sometimes at a cost to customers who wish to minimize any
inconvenience or to preserve levels of service to which they have been accustomed.”

a.

Piease confirm if the USPS performed an analysis or stratification of the
customer types e.g. mail user (owner), mail service provider, logistics provider,
etc... and what impacts e.g. sortation processes, delivery expectations, entry
patterns, transportation, etc... would affect mailers/customers and how it would
affect them. If confirmed, please provide the details and results of the analysis.
If not confirmed, please explain fully.

Please confirm if you have conducted any analysis on what the “cost to the
customer” is, what kinds of e.g. operational, logistical, loss revenues, etc. If
confirmed, please provide the results of such analysis on the cost to the
customer. If not confirmed, please explain why this type of analysis was not
considered.

RESPONSE

a.

b.

Not confirmed.

Not confirmed. The Postal Service currently does not have data reflecting the
internal cost structures of mailers or mail service providers and is unable to
pérform such analysis without such information. The Postal Service specifically
sdlicited such data from the mailing industry as part of its Advanced Notice of
Proposed rulemaking. The Postal Service received mainly qualitative comments

from the mailing industry; however, no comments provided the Postal Service the

ability to quantify their operating costs. See the response to NPPC-USPS-T1-8.



RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS WILLIAMS
TO NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF PRESORT MAILERS INTERROGATORY

NAPM/USPS-T1-5. Please refer to page 10 where you state, “[A]s described below, in
order to achieve significant mail processing consolidation, and generate increased
efficiencies in mail processing, a modification to current service standards is
necessary.”

a. Please confirm that the only necessary changes to achieve the efficiencies you
need are the service standards changes proposed and there has not been any
considerations or analysis conducted that has identified if changes in mail
preparation will also be necessary. If not confirmed, piease provide details and
results of any analysis/considerations performed regarding changes to mail

preparations.
RESPONSE

a. Confirmed.
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NAPM/USPS-T1-6. Please refer to page 12 of your testimony where you state

“lInvestment in additional machinery and facility space was prudent and affordable

during periods when mail volume was more robust and growth could confidently be

predicted. However, as overall volumes have declined sharply, and the mail mix has
changed, service standards and the mail processing network required to meet those
standards have remained the same.”

a. Please confirm that during the times of growth you are referring to USPS also
used workshare as a “prudent and affordable” solution to support growth. If
confirmed, was this business model ever considered as part of a solution for the
service standard and network optimization initiative. If not confirmed, please
confirm if the USPS considering using the workshare model in the near future. If
a workshare model was not considered as part of the network optimization
rationalization, please explain why it was not considered.

b. Please confirm if any analysis was performed regarding leveraging the Intelligent
Mail data capabilities and Fuil Service mailing to determine if the USPS could
reduce its capacity and provide better service than proposed. If confirmed, can
you provide the details and results of such analysis. If not confirmed, can you
explain these capabilities were not considered as part of a viable solution to
necessary network changes.

RESPONSE

a. The rationale for the development of workshare-based rate categories and price
incentives during the {atter part of the 20th century is a subject outside the scope
of my testimony and expertise. It is a matter best left to those familiar with the
rate design testimony of postal witnesses and the recommended decisions of the
Postal Rate Commission during that era. | am not sufficiently knowledgeable fo
say whether worksharing was pursued as "a prudent and affordabie’ solution to
support growth." From an operational standpoint, | can observe that mailer
worksharing has contributed to the Postal Service's ability to process mail with
fewer internal operational resources than might have been utilized otherwise.
The Postal Service's future approach to worksharing, either as a pricing strategy
or resource management strategy, is a matter beyond the scope of my testimony.

See my response to NAPM/USPS-T1-3.

152



153

RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS WILLIAMS
TO NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF PRESORT MAILERS INTERROGATORY

RESPONSE TO NAPM/USPS-T1-6 (continued)

b. Not confirmed. The Postal Service considers its modeling approach reflected in
USPS-T-3 to be reasonable, but does not rule out the possibility of the existence
of other potentially reasonable approaches, such as ones that might incorporate

intelligent Mail data capabilities and Full Service mailing data.
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NAPM/USPS-T1-7. Please refer to page 19 of your testimony where you state, “[F]irst-
Class Mail, the Postal Service intends to preserve the opportunity to establish similar
arrangements locally, subject to the following conditions. Properly prepared, sorted and
containerized bulk workshare intra-SCF First-Class Mail entered at the destination SCF
(or designated facility within its service area) by 8:00 a.m. on operating Day Zero will
retain an overnight delivery expectation. In addition, properly prepared, 5-digit or
scheme sorted and containerized bulk workshare intra-SCF First-Class Mail entered at
the destination SCF (or designated facility within its service area) by 12:00 p.m. on
operating Day Zero will retain an overnight delivery expectation. This will allow bulk
Presort First-Class Mail users to continue the mutually beneficial practice of engaging in
extraordinary preparation that permits entry after the CET in a manner aligned with
downstream postal mail sortation operations.”

a. Please provide more detail on the mail preparation requirements for entering mail
by 8:00 AM Day Zero and retain the “overnight delivery expectation.”

b. Please explain for mail entered at 0800hrs, what are the specific preparation
requirements necessary in order to obtain an overnight delivery expectation?

C. Please confirm whether the "properly prepared" or “extraordinary” mailing

preparation requirements be established by the federal register notification
process or at the local level. If at the local level, who is responsible for
establishing these requirements and how will they be communicated to the
mailers.

d. Please explain whether the “properly prepared” or “extraordinary” requirements
involve software or business process changes by the mailer and how long will
they have to make the changes and communicate them to their staff and clients.

RESPONSE

a-b. The proposed requirements are straighfforward. Based on the level of presort

(SCF or 5-digit), the Intra-SCF mail must be entered at the appropriate SCF by
the applicable Critical Entry Time {(or entered at another BMEU within the SCF
service area by an applicable Critical Acceptance Time), be sorted to either the
SCF or 5-digit ZIP level, and meet existing Domestic Mail Manual Presort
preparation requirements.

C. The "extraordinary” preparation is that which qualifies the Intra-SCF or 5-digit

Presort to be entered by the designated Critical Entry Time (or CAT) with an

expectation of next-day delivery. As is the case today, such mail preparation
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RESPONSE TO NAPM/USPS-~T1-7 (continued)
requirements will be uniformly applicable. If any DMM changes are deemed
necessary, the Postal Service will continue its practice of implementing them
after notice in the Federal Register.

d. Intra-SCF and 5-digit ZIP presortation are long-standing mail preparation
technigues commonly employed by Presort First-Class Mail users. Itis
assumed that any software changes necessary for such mailers to continue to
use these techniques to prepare mail for entry at either noon or 8:00am will
range from non-existent to de minimus. The degree of internal process change
related to the new Critical Entry Times, if any, will vary by mailer. Ma_ilers have
been on notice since the September 21 and December 15, 2011 Fed:eral
Register notices of the potential for these changes. Those notices have been
reinforced by subsequent postal communications, including FAQ postings at
www.usps.com and industry briefings and webinars, which have bee;n further
reinforced by mailing industry press reports. It is assumed that mailérs are
making plans to adapt and are communicating potential changes in their
operating plan to appropriate employees and that mail preparation service
providers are communicating potential changes in operating plans to clients in
light of the potential for changes to be implemented as earty as the middle of May

2012.
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WITNESS DAVID WILLIAMS
TO NATIONAL NEWSPAPER ASSOCIATION
Revised: March 20, 2012

NNA/USPS-T1-1

Please refer to your response to GCA/USPS T1-1, where you stated:
“The Critical Entry Times (CETs) for Periodicals Flats were

modified to conform the service standard requirement of this mail class
with the processing requirements in an Flats Sequencing System (FSS)
environment in May‘of 2011.”

a. Is the intention to sort Periodicals Flats on FSS machines the sole driving
factor in changes in CETs? If not, please list other factors.

b. Do transportation schedules also affect CETs?

C. Are you aware of any facilities where newspaper Periodicals or Standard

mail is sorted on the FSS machines? If so, please list the facilities.

RESPONSE

a. No, the driving factor that led to the changes in CETs was to align process
capability to the required bundle and piece proceséing of flat volume.

b. They may.

C. All FSS sites process automation-compatible Periqdicals and Standard. If
the volumes you are referencing in your question dre automation

compatible they will be sorted on FSS machines. -
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WITNESS DAVID WILLIAMS
TO NATIONAL NEWSPAPER ASSOCIATION

NNA/USPS-T1-2
Has the Postal Service determined that; —_

a. Some percentage of intra-SCF First-Class mail from a closing facility will
be handled by a hub within a zone of the gaining facility?

b. Some percentage of intra-SCF Periodicals from a closing facility will be
handled by a hub within a zone of the gaining facility?

C. Some percentage of intra-SCF Standard mail from a closing facility will be

handled by a hub within a zone of the gaining facility?

RESPONSE

a-c. Yes, for the portion of the intra-SCF service area the hub is serving, the

exact percentages are unknown.

15%
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NNA/USPS-T1-3
If your response to any part of NNA/USPS T1-4 is yes, has the Postal Service

requested proposals for the operation of hubs:
a. From private contractors.

b. From worker groups within USPS.
If a request for proposals has been publicly issued, please provide a copy.

RESPONSE

For purposes of responding to this interrogatory, it is assumed that the intended
reference is to interrogatory NNA/USPS-T1-2.

a. No.

b. No.

No request for proposals has been issued, but a request for information has.

The following is a link to that request:

https://mwww.fho.gov/index?s=opportunity&mode=form&id=1f9cbe54e5322fee312f
64780a0367c2&tab=core&_cview=0
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NNA/USPS-T1-4
If your response to any part of NNA/USPS T1-4 is yes, has the Postal Service

requested proposals for the transportation of mail between hubs or to and from

the hubs and the gaining facility.
a. From private contractors

b. From worker groups within USPS
If a request for proposals has been publicly issued, please provide a copy.

RESPONSE
See the response to NNA/USPS-T1-3.
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WITNESS DAVID WILLIAMS
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NNA/USPS-T1-5
If the Postal Service succeeds in creating the types of hubs referred to in the

previous questions, will the “Intra-SCF” mail moving through the hubs:
a. Be carried only if in containers sorted to 5 digit or carrier route; or

b. Be broken down if some 5 digit or carrier route bundles are presented in
containers sorted to the 3 digit or lower schemes.

RESPONSE

Note, the hubs are being established to serve as logistical points for the Postal
Service. They may not necessarily serve the entire former intra-SCF mail
processing area.

a. Yes.

b. This will depend on the characteristics of the mail volume. If this mail
volume is capable of being processed on automated equipment, the Postal

Service will move this mail volume to the appropriate plant to process on

automated equipment.
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NNA/USPS-T1-6
What type of facility would be required if the Postal Service set up intra-SCF

hubs? If any facilities being studied in the AMP process are candidates for
housing such a hub, please explain what criteria would be used to determine that

the facilities are candidates for use as a hub.
RESPONSE
A facility that has appropriate dock space and workroom floor based on the

required square feet to handle the anticipated volume flowing through the facility.
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NNA/USPS-T1-7
Do you anticipate that Business Mail Entry Units:

a. will be set up or preserved in existing facilities that are converted to intra-
SCF hubs?

b. will be set up in new facilities that are used as intra-SCF hubs?

C. may be operated by contractors in the event non-USPS personnel are

chosen to operate such hubs?
RESPONSE
a. Yes.
b. Potentially.

C. Potentially.
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NNA/USPS-T1-8

If intra-SCF hubs are set up to handle some mail, how would you expect CETs to
be determined for mailers aiming at a Day Zero entry?

RESPONSE

Based on the transportation schedules and the required entry time in order to

make those dispatches would establish the Day Zero entry time.
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NNA/USPS-T1-9
If you anticipate that a CET in a hub would be set more than an hour earlier than

existing in a current entry plant, please explain why you would expect that result?

RESPONSE

There currently is no anticipation of what the CET in a hub would be, they are

currently under evaluation.
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NNA/USPS-T1-10
Has the Postal Service performed any analysis on the volume of First-Class,
Periodicals and/or Standard Mail that may be maintained at current service levels
if intra-SCF hubs are set up? If so, please provide the results.

RESPONSE

Such analysis has not been performed.
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NNA/USPS-T1-11
In light of the Postal Service’s public announcement on February 23 that

determinations had been made on the facilities to be closed, were any
announcemenis made or communications made o mailers in the affected
facilities about the Postal Service’s deliberations or plans to set up intra-SCF
hubs? If so, please provide a copy of any instructions given to postal personnel
with regard to such announcements. If not, please explain why not.

RESPONSE

The Postal Service is a very large organization with a lot of customer interface.
Accordingly, it is possible that there have been some communications between

some postal managers and some mailers on the topic of future intra-SCF hubs

since February 23. Based on the various consolidation decisions announced that

day, the Postal Service is now evaluating the logistical needs of the SCF service
areas created by those decisions. | am informed that we will provide information

about intra-SCF hub locations through routine channels after hub location

depisions are made.
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NNA/USPS-T1-14
As you have participated in the analysis that led to the Postal Service’s proposal

in this docket, have you considered any impact of service changes on Within
County Periodicals mail, as opposed to other mail within the Periodicals product
group? If so, please describe your conclusions.

RESPONSE

During the development of the proposal, we understood that the diversity of
mailers who use each postal product would result in a range of reactions to the
prospect of the service changes being contemplated, including Within County
publishers who might experience changes in service they deemed adverse
and/or different from those of other (including other Periodicals) mailers. That
understanding was affirmed by the wide range of comments filed in respense to
the Advance Notice of Proposed Rulemaking. Our conclusion then was that we
should nevertheless proceed in December 2011 with both the rulemaking notice
and the request in this docket, and commit ourselves to carefully considering the

rulemaking comments we receive before developing a final rule, and also

weighing the evidence that emerges in this docket.
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NPMHU/USPS-T1-5
On page 3 of witness Bradley's testimony, he states that he did not consider transition
or implementation costs in his estimates.

a. Piease state whether the Postal Service has included these costs anywhere in its
estimates of savings, and, if so, please cite to the record where this may be
found.

b. If the Postal Service has not included these costs in its estimates of savings,

please state whether the Postal Service has made any calculations of transition
and implementation costs associated with its proposai.

c. If the answer to (b) is yes, please provide those calculations.

RESPONSE

a. As stated by witness Bradley, transition and implementation costs were not
included.

b. The Postal Service has not yet concluded its estimation of these savings.

c. N/A
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NPMHU/USPS-T1-6

Please compare the scope of the prior round of AMP studies and consolidations (i.e.,
those associated with the 2008 network redesign initiative and occurring prior to the
filing in this docket) with the scope of the consolidations proposed in the current docket,
including in your answer the number of facilities affected, the total number of facility
closures, the percentage of mail volume affected, and the number of career postal
employees affected.

RESPONSE

The consolidations that occurred, the amount of mail volume and the number of
employees affected as part of the 2008 network redesign can be derived by review of
the AMP packages being provided in USPS Library Reference N2012-1/54. An
estimate of the overall percentage of mail volume affected based on those
consolidations based on Fiscal Year 2007 workload represented approximately 7

percent of total workload. Note that FY 2007 was utilized as a baseline since that

period that would have all of these facilities full annual workload included.

The consolidations proposed in the current docket are more substantial, as | explain at
page 10 of USPS-T-1. This mail processing network rationalization may directly or
indirectly affect every employee in the mail processing network. The operations are
being significantly transformed, as described by witnesses Neri (USPS-T-4) and
Rosenberg (USPS-T-3). Employees will be moved between tours, as well as between
facilities. For those sites that were announced, their workload represents
approximately 35 percent of total workload. See the response to PR/USPS-T8-1 for the
estimated number of career postal employees affected. See USPS Library Reference

N2012-1/6 for the list of facilities under evaluation as part of this docket.
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NPMHU/USPS-T1-7

Please describe, and providing any supporting documentation for, any problems, or
reports of problems, associated with previous consolidations of which the Postal Service
is aware, including but not limited to traffic problems surrounding the Baltimore facility
(see, e.g., http://www .wbaltv.com/r/29985356/detail.html), and traffic problems
surrounding the Memphis facility (see, e.g.,
http://www.wmctv.com/story/16347301/trucks-stuck-for-hours-waiting-to-unload-
christmas-mail).

RESPONSE

Due to the increase in mail volume during the holiday mailing season, and with the
addition of the Frederick AMP, mail processing at the Baltimore Processing and
Distribution Center experienced some delays in processing in December. With the
increase in volumes, the first-in, first-out (FIFO) mail processing standard was
apparently temporarily misaligned. Although Frederick volume came in to the Baltimore
plant beginning in early October 2011, Frederick staff reassigned to Baltimore, for the
most part, did not arrive there until the middle of November. With the holiday mailing
season over, the FIFO system in Baltimore is back in synch. Additional procedures and

resources will be put in place for next year's holiday mailing season to ensure these

delays are not experienced again.

Moving forward, the Postal Service intends to schedule the implementation of AMP
consolidations so as to minimize potential adverse consequences of making major

adjustments in the middle of the holiday rush.

Every year, the Postal Service anticipates mail volume surge in its transportation

network during the December holiday mailing period. Transportation requirements are
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RESPONSE to NPMHU/USPS-T1-7 (continued)

evaluated to increase capacity on the ground transporation network to
accommodate volume that is received from customers, mailers and planned diversion
of mail volume from air transportation. The surface transportation network

increases the number of trips that operates between network processing centers,

surface transfer centers, airports and delivery units.

Between December 16-18, 2011, there was significant traffic congestion experienced at
the Memphis TN Surface Transfer Center. The backlog of trucks waiting to deliver and
receive mail was caused by scheduling too many trips into this facility duriné a narrow
window. The volume of mail planned and directed through the Memphis Surface
Transfer Center for sortation and transfer simply exceeded the facility's capacity limit;
therefore, the facility could not handle the approximate 9 percent increase in additional
trips. On December 19, the situation was mitigated by redirecting trips intojother Cross-
dock terminals in the network, This solution relieved the traffic congestion

situation by December 20.
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NPPC/USPS-T1-1 Assuming that service standards for First-Class Mail are
revised as described in your testimony, please describe the measures that the
Postal Service would implement to ensure the consistency of three-day mail
delivery and to prevent mail subject to that standard from in fact receiving four- or

five-day service.
RESPONSE
The Postal Service fully intends to utilize performance metrics and defined

operatiohal goals, to ensure the consistency of the service standards associated

with the proposed mail processing network.
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NPPC/USPS-T1-2 Assuming that service standards for First-Class Mail are
revised as described in your testimony, does the Postal Service anticipate that
any First-Class Mail currently subject to a three-day delivery standard will change
to a four-day or longer standard? If so, please describe.

RESPONSE

No.

173



RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERICE WITNESS WILLIAMS
TO NATIONAL POSTAL POLICY COUNCIL INTERROGATORY

NPPC/USPS-T1-3 Assuming that service standards for First-Class Mait are
revised as described in your testimony, what percentage of First-Class Mail does
the Postal Service anticipate will be delivered:

a. In four da'ys?

b. In five days?

C. In more than five days?
RESPONSE

a-c. Under current service standards, approximately 0.3 percent of FY 2011
First-Class Mail volume going to and/or from Alaska, Hawaii and the U.S.
territories, was subject to service standards that exceed three days. A
similar percentage is expected if the proposéd service standards are

“implemented.

The Postal Service acknowledges that some mail currently is not, and in
the futuré will not be:;, deli_\}ered in time to meet applicable service
standards. Howevér, assuming implementation of the proposed service
standard changes, the Postal Service has.no method or basis for
-predicting'fhe percenta.ge of mail that, in fﬁe futl;tre network still beiﬁg
Vdetermined, WOuId be delivered in four or five or more days because of a

service failure.
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NPPC/USPS-T1-4 Assuming that service standards for First-Class Mail are
revised as described in your testimony, what percentage of First-Class letter mail
that currently receives overnight delivery would be expected to receive:

a. Two-day delivery? ' :

b. Three-day delivery?

RESPONSE

Utilizing the potential changes depicted in USPS Library'Referénce N201‘2-118
which illustrate the nature and magnitude of service standard changes that could
con'ceivabl.y result, one could speculate the following results:
a. 98.7%

b 1.3%
The degree to wh.ich service‘ standards will actualiy chéngé depends upon (a) the
outcome Qf each AMP study, (b) what amendments to 38 C.F.R. Part 121 result
from the n‘iarket dominant product service standard rulemaking, and (c) any
further modifications that result from consideration of the advisory opinion issued

at the conclusion of this docket. -
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NPPC;USPS-T1 -5 Does the Postal Service intend to maintain a separate
processing stream for remittance mail and caller service under the proposal in
this proceeding?

~ RESPONSE

The.Postal Sewice_ does not curren_tly maintain a completely separéte processing
stream for remittance mail and Caller Service. Like other First-Class Mail,
envelopes containing remittances and Caller service volume flow through the

letter mail processing network and are tendered to recipients depending on the

' de_livefy mode they have elected. Some are delivered to street addresses. Most

are delivered to Post Office Boxes. Some Post Ofﬁce Box addressed mail is
subject to Caller Servi(fe, under fhe terms of which it is aggregated at thé
destination plant and tendere’d to the recipient before reaching secondary
operationé and the delivery unit. Caller Service arrangements are a special

service paid for by recipients, including' recipients of bulk rerﬁittancés. When

_implemented, the network rationalization plan under review in this proceeding will

preserve these arrangements.
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NPPC/USPS-T1-6 Please describe the processing and delivery standards that

would apply to remittance mail under the proposed service standards for First-
Class Mail.

RESPONSE
Please see the response to NCCP/USPS-T1-5. First-Class Mail pieces
containing remittances will be subject to the proposed service standards on the

same terms as other First-Class Mail.‘
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NPPC/USPS-T1-6A Please describe the processing and delivery standards that
would apply to Caller Service under the proposed service standards for First-

Class Mail.

'RESPONSE

Please see the responses to NCCP/USPS-T1-5 and 6.
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NPPC/USPS-T1-7 Has the Postal Service made any assumptions regarding
whether Presort First-Class Mailers would alter their preparation and entry times
if the Critical Entry Times were revised as proposed? If so, please state what
assumptions the Postal Service has made. If not, please explain why not.
RESPONSE

No. The Postal Service has not formally surveyed presort First-Class Mail users
nor has it estimated the degree to which behavior may change based on the
optional entry timés available to receive overnight service. We expect some
presort mailers to enter volume by the Critical Entry Times to achieve the
overnight service standards, we expect some mailers not to do so. The Postal

Service currently has no information regarding the degree to which this will occUr,

and expects it to vary by location and by mailer.
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NPPC/USPS-T1-8 Has the Postal Service made any assumptions regarding
what types and amounts of costs Presort First-Class Mailers would incur in
altering their preparation and entry times if the Critical Entry Times were revised
as proposed? If so, please state what assumptions the Postal Service has
made. If not, please explain why not. ' '
RESPONSE

No. The Postal Service currently does not have sufficient information about the

: operafing costs for presort mailers (individually or in the aggregate) with which to

estimate the costs that they might incur in altering their current mail prépa_ration

or entry pafterns to meet the proposed CETs.

As part of the Advanced Notice of Proposed Rulemaking, the Postal Service

specifically requested in Part IV of its reguest for comment:

The Postal Service requests comments on all aspects of the Proposal. In .
particular, the Postal Service solicits comments on the effects that the
Preposal could have on senders and recipients of First-Class Mail,
Periodicals, and Standard Mail, as well as any potential effects on users of
other mail classes. Mail users are encouraged to comment on the nature -
and extent of costs or savings they might experience as a result of the
changes described in this notice, as well as any additional possible
benefits they foresee.

The Postal Service received mainly qualitative comments: however, no

comments provided the Postal Servicé the ability to qua‘ntify such costs.

The Postal Service in its Proposed Rule also requested comments on the

‘proposed revisions to 39 CFR Part 121. Comments related to costs on the

industry are welcome and could potentially provide a basis for understanding any

such impact.
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NPPC/USPS-T1-10 Assuming that service standards for First-Class Mail are
revised as described in your testimony, would metered mail be eligible for
overnight delivery if entered by the 8 a.m. Critical Entry Time? If so, what

~ conditions would metered mail be requ1red to satisfy to attain to be eligible for

overnight dehvery'?

RESPONSE

Metered Presort mail would have to meet the same requirements as stamped or

permit imprint Presort mail.

181



RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERICE WITNESS WILLIAMS
TO NATIONAL POSTAL POLICY COUNCIL INTERROGATORY

NPPC/USPS-T1-11 Assuming that service standards for First-Class Mail are
revised as described in your testimony, would there be any changes from current
Critical Entry Times for Presort First-Class Mail that would receive second- or
third-day service? If so, please describe those changes.

RESPONSE

The Postal Service does not anticipate changing the current Critical Entry Times

for Presort First-Class Mail that would be subject to second- or third-day service.
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NPPC/USPS-T1-12 Assuming that the mail processing network is adjusted in a
manner generally consisient with the Postal Service’s proposal in this
proceeding, the Postal Service will have fewer mail processing facilities and
fewer transportation routes than at present. Please describe how the Postal
Service plans to overcome any potential disruptions to that smaller network that
might be caused by natural disasters or Acts of God.

RESPONSE

“See the institutional response APWU/USPS-T1-4. As with the current network,

adjustments to the future network necessitated by natural disast_ers or Acts of
God will depend on the Iocation, nature, séverity and projected duration of the

consequences of such events.
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERICE WITNESS WILLIAMS
. TO NATIONAL POSTAL POLICY COUNCIL INTERROGATORY

NPPC/USPS-T1-13 Assume that the Postal Service implements the proposal in
this proceeding. What capacity would the Postal Service's network have -
thereafter to maintain First-Class Mail service standards if Firsi-Class volumes
increased by: '

a. 10 percent over current projections by FY20167?
b. 20 percent over current projections by FY20167?
c. 30 percent over current projections by FY20167?
RESPONSE

The Postal Service has designed its mail processing capacity based on Fiscal
Year 2010 workload and volume. If the Postal Service utilizes the assumption
that this percent increase suggested in a-c is over the projectgd volume of
FY2016 which is cﬂrrently forecast to be 53 billion vis-a-vis FY2010, the

peréentage of volume compared to FY2010 would be as follows:

a. - 86.5percent.
b.  90.1 percent.

c.  94.1 percent.
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERICE WITNESS WILLIAMS
TO NATIONAL POSTAL POLICY COUNCIL INTERROGATORY

NPPC/USPS-T1-14 Assuming that the mail processing network is adjusted in a.
manner generally consistent with the Postal Service’s proposal in this
proceeding, the Postal Service will have fewer mail processing facilities than at
present. This implies that remaining facilities would, on a per-facility basis, serve
more 3-digit and 5-digit zones. Please discuss whether the Postal Service
intends to allow mailers to make greater use of 5-digit/3-digit sort schemes in
those facilities. ' '

RESPONSE

The Postal Service believes additional 5-digit/3-digit sort schemes will be
possible based on the expanded operating window, as well as the add‘it'ional'
zones sorted at a single facility. These additional zones would be reflected in

changes to labeling lists, as well as the city-state file and would be available for

mailers.



RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERICE WITNESS WILLIAMS
TO NATIONAL POSTAL POLICY COUNCIL INTERROGATORY

NPPC/USPS-T1-15 Has the Postal Service considered implementing a secure
disposal program for Undeliverable As Addressed First-Class letters given the
smaller number of mail processing facilities that it expects to have after
implementation of the proposal in this proceeding?

RESPONSE

The Postal Service has not evaluated this concept specifically as part of the

. network rationalization proposal currently under review as parf of this docket.

The Postal Service is evaluating the 'opportunity fof a secure disposal program
for undelivered as addressed mail. The Postal Service may consider how this

program fits into a smaller mail processing network in the future.
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS WILLIAMS
TO PUBLIC REPRESENTATIVE INTERROGATORY

PR/USPS-T1-1
On page 9 of your testimony you state, “The Postal Service is planning to implement a
fundamental realignment of the mail processing network to utilize capital assets and
personnel more efficiently over the long-run, while also meeting its obligation to provide
regular and effective levels of mail service.”
a. Do service performance resulis measure the attainment of effective mail service?
If so, how? '
b. How will service performance results be used to gauge the level of effective mail
service after the proposed changes are implemented?
- ¢. Will service performance targets be amended to reflect the proposed changes? If

s0, how?
RESPONSE
a. Service performance results measure whether mail has been delivered by the service

standard defined for each OZIP-DZIP pair.

‘b. Service performance resulis will continue to be utilized to measure how weli the
Postal Servibe achieves its service standards as they are ulilized today. See the
response t0.NPPC/USPS-T1-1.

c. Establishment of future performance targets will take into consideration the service
standards in effect at the time or projected to be in effect. Senior management will

review standards and consult with the Governors in establishing targets.
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS WILLIAMS
TO PUBLIC REPRESENTATIVE INTERROGATORY

PR/USPS-T1-2

On page 9 of your testimony you state, “...the most significant service changes are in the
narrowing of the scope of the overnight and two-day First-Class Mail service standards.” The
recent service performance results show that the Postal Service exceeded service
performance targets only for First-Class overnight and two-day.

a. Will the proposed changes impact First-Class Mail overnight and two-day
annual service performance results? If so, how?
b. Wil the proposed changes impact Periodicals overnight and two-day annual

performance results? If so, how?

RESPONSE .

a-b. ltis currently unknown what the service perfc;rmance results will be. The Postal
Service is planning the network to meet the service standafds proposed. The Postal
Service acknowiedges that some ma_il currently is not, and in the future will not be,
delivered in time to meet applicable service staﬁdards. However, aséuming
implementation of the proposed service standard changes, the Postal Service has no
method or basis for predicting the percentage of mail that, in the future network still
being determined, would be not be delivered by the assigned service standard

because of a service failure.
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS WILLIAMS
TO PUBLIC REPRESENTATIVE INTERROGATORY

PR/USPS-T1-3 :
On page 21 of your testimony you explain that “the modifications to the 2-day service
standard business rules will have the effect of expanding the number of 3-digit origin-
destination. ZIP Code pairs with a 3-day service standard.” How will this expansion affect
service performance results for First-Class Mail and Periodical three-to-five day?

RESPONSE

ltis cufrently unknown what the service performance results will be. The Postal SeNiﬁe is
planning the network to meet the service standards proposed. The Postal Service
acknowledges that some mail currently is not, and in the future will not be, deliveréd in time to
meet appﬁcable service standards. However, assuming impiementation of the proposed
service standard changes, the F’ostal Service has no method or basis for predicting the
percentage of mail that, in the future network still being determined, would be not be

delivered by the assigned service standard because of a service failure.
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS WILLIAMS
TO PUBLIC REPRESENTATIVE INTERROGATORY

PR/USPS-T1-4

Please explain how the proposed changes will affect scanning procedures for First-Class Mail
using IMb.

RESPONSE

No changes in First-Class Mail IMb scanning procedures are anticipated.



RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE

WITNESS DAVID WILLIAMS

TO PRESIDING OFFICER'S INFORMATION REQUEST NO. 1

1. The First-Class Mail class consists of the following four domestic products:

Single-Piece Letters/Postcards, Presorted Letters/Postcards, Flats, and Parcels.
Please answer the following questions in light of the assertion that certain First-
Class mail will retain an overnight delivery expectation. See USPS-T-1 at 18.

a.

RESPONSE

For each domestic product within First-Class Mail, what percentage
of First-Class Mail is delivered overnight, what percentage of First-
Class Mail is delivered within two days, and what percentage of
First-Class Mail is delivered in three to five days, for the most
recent quarter that data are available.

For each domestic product within First-Class Mail, what is the
projected percentage of First-Class Mail delivered overnight, what
is the projected percentage of First-Class Mail delivered within two
days, and what is the projected percentage of First-Class Mail
delivered in three to five days, after implementation of MPNR.

a. See the Tabie below which uses data from Q4 FY11.

Product % Delivered within | % Delivered in | % Delivered in
1 Delivery Day 2 Delivery Days ' | Between 3 and 5

* | Delivery Days

Single-Piece 58.0 26.6 15.1

Letters/Cards

Presort 377 37.3 24.7

Letters/Cards

Flats 38.0 31.4 30.3

Parcels 13.1 49.1 35.7

Nate: Presort performance results by service standard were weighted using the
estimated volume of overnight, two-day, and three-to-five-day volumes in the
overall presort FCM population (based on data from Origin-Destination
Information System (ODIS) and Revenue Pieces & Weight (RPW) as opposed to
volumes observed in the Full Service Intelligent Mail barcode population. Flats
results are based on the results from EXFC, weighted according to the overall
estimated volumes of overnight, two-day, and three-to-five-day FCM volumes
from ODIS and RPW sources.
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE
WITNESS DAVID WILLIAMS
TO PRESIDING OFFICER'S INFORMATION REQUEST NO. 1

RESPONSE to Question 1 (continued):

Three factors will have the most influence on the percentage of First-Class
Mail that receives overnight delivery in the future: (1) the degree to which
First-Class Mail presort customers take advantage of the early entry time
option to achieve overnight delivery, (2) the proportion of Caller Service
volume which is available for recipients at the plant during the processing
of this mail volume in which some proportion happens to have been
entered the mailstream the day prior; and (3) the degree to which the
Postal Service achieves overnight delivery for such mail. The Postal
Service currently does not have an estimate of the proportion of Presort
customers that may take advantage 6f this new entry time, nor the
proportion of Caller Service volume that will be available by customers at
the plant during the processing of this mail volume in which some
proportion happened to have been eéltered in the mail the day prior. Nor
can the Postal Service precisely predict future on-time service
performance for such mail. If one assumes that no customers take
advantage of this early entry time for overnight service and no Caller
Service volume is available the following day, the following percentages of
mail would be subject to the different First-Class Mail service standards
(overnight, 2-day, and 3-to-5-day), assuming the hypothetical changes

depicted in USPS Library Reference N2(312-1/8:



RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE
WITNESS DAVID WILLIAMS
TO PRESIDING OFFICER'S INFORMATION REQUEST NO. 1

RESPONSE to Question 1 {continued):

Estimated Volume of Mail Subject to Each FCM Service Standard Group Based
on Q4 FY2011 and Proposed Service Standards

Product Projected % within | Projected % within
2 Delivery Days 3 and 5 Delivery
Days

Single-Piece 63.8 36.2
Letters/Cards

Presort 304 69.6
Letters/Cards

Flats 58.6 38.9
Parcels 10.5 89.5

It cannot be overemphasized that the degree to which service standards
will actually change depends upon (a) the outcome of each AMP study, (b)
what amendments to 39 C.F.R. Part 121 result from the market dominant
product service stand;':\rd rulemaking, and (c) any further modifications that
result from consideration of the advisory opinion issued at the conclusion

of this docket.
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS DAVID WILLIAMS
TO PRESIDING OFFICER'S INFORMATION REQUEST NO. 3

1. These questions assume that 0.9 ounce single-piece First-Class Mail letters (with
proper postage, addressing, and First-Class Mail letter characteristics) are
dropped into a United States Postal Service blue collection box located in
Wethersfield, CT 06109 on specific dates (prior to the final collection time posted
on the collection box for that day’s mail) for delivery to residential single-family
homes in several locations within the United States. The recipients’ addresses
are residential single-family homes located in Hartford, CT 06108, Columbia, MD
21045, Venice, CA 90291, and Honolulu, H! 96813. The questions assumes that
the delivery period will correspond with the service standard, i.e., if the service
standard is three days the mail will be delivered the third day (as defined by the
Postal Service’s business rules) after being dropped into the collection box, and
not a day later or a day earlier.

The table below may be used to provide an answer with each of the following
scenarios. Note that February 20, 2012, is a federal holiday with no residential

mail delivery.

Dates of final delivery

Date mail dropped into United States | Hartford, CT Columbia, MD | Venice, CA Honolulu, HI
Postal Service blue collection box 061086 21045 90291 96813
located in Wethersfield, CT 06109

Thursday, February 9, 2012

Friday, February 10, 2012

Saturday, February 11, 2012

Sunday, February 12, 2012

Monday, February 13, 2012

Tuesday, February 14, 2012

Wednesday, February 15, 2012

Thursday, February 16, 2012

Friday, February 17, 2012

Saturday, February 18, 2012

Sunday, February 19, 2012

Monday, February 20, 2012
{federal holiday)

Tuesday, February-21, 2012

Wednesday, February 22, 2012

a. For mail dropped into a collection box in Wethersfield, CT 06019 on the dates
specified, what will be the dates of delivery to each recipient under current
service standards?

b. Assume that the Postal Service has instituted the proposals presented in Docket
No. N2012-1, Mail Processing Network Rationalization Service Changes, 2012,
and revised service standards as necessary to give full effect to the proposals
contained therein. Assume that the proposals described within Docket No.
N2010-1, Six-Day to Five-Day Street Delivery and Related Service Changes,
have not been instituted. For mail dropped into a collection box in Wethersfield,
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS DAVID WILLIAMS
TO PRESIDING OFFICER'S INFORMATION REQUEST NO. 3

Question 1 {(continued)

CT 060189 on the dates specified, what will be the dates of delivery to each
recipient under revised service standards?

C. Assume that the Postal Service has instituted the proposals presented in Docket
No. N2010-1, Six-Day to Five-Day Street Delivery and Related Service Changes,
and revised service standards as necessary to give full effect to the proposals
contained therein. Assume that the proposals described within Docket No.
N2012-1, Mail Processing Network Rationalization Service Changes, 2012, have
not been instituted. For mail dropped into a collection box in Wethersfield, CT
08019 on the dates specified, what will be the dates of delivery to each recipient
under revised service standards?

d. Assume that the Postal Service has instituted both (1) the proposais presented in
' Docket No. N2010-1, Six-Day to Five-Day Street Delivery and Related Service

Changes, and (2) the proposals presented in Docket No. N2012-1, Mail
Processing Network Rationalization Service Changes, 2012 and revised service
standards as necessary to give full effect to the proposals contained therein. For
mail dropped into a collection box in Wethersfield, CT 06019 on the dates
specified, what will be the dates of delivery to each recipient under revised
service standards?




RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS DAVID WILLIAMS

TO PRESIDING OFFICER'S INFORMATION REQUEST NO. 3

RESPONSE to Question 1

a. See the table immediately below.
Dates of final
delivery
Date mail dropped into United States Postal | Hariford, CT Columbia, MD Venice, CA Honolulu, HI
Service biue collection box located in 06106 21045 80291 96813
Wethersfleld, CT 06109
Thursday, February 9, 2012 Friday 02/10/2012 Saturday Monday Monday
02/11/2012 02/13/2012 02/13/2012
Friday, February 10, 2012 Saturday Monday Monday Monday
02/11/2012 02/13/2012 02/13/2012 02/13/2012
Saturday, February 11, 2012 Monday Monday Tuesday Tuesday
02/13/2012 02/13/2012 02/14/2012 02/14/2012
Sunday, February 12, 2012 Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Thursday
02/14/2012 02/15/2012 02/16/2012 02/16/2012
Monday, February 13, 2012 Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Thursday
_ 02/14/2012 02/15/2012 02/16/2012 02/16/2012
Tuesday, February 14, 2012 Wednesday Thursday Friday Friday
02/15/2012 02/16/2012 02/17/2012 02/17/2012
Wednesday, February 15, 2012 Thursday Friday Saturday Saturday
02/16/2012 02/17/2012 02/18/2012 02/18/2012
Thursday, February 16, 2012 Friday Saturday Tuesday Tuesday
02/17/2012 02/18/2012 02/21/2012 02/21/2012
Friday, February 17, 2012 Saturday Tuesday Tuesday Tuesday
_ 02/18/2012 02/21/2012 02/21/2012 02/21/2012
Saturday, February 18, 2012 Tuesday Tuesday Tuesday Tuesday
02/21/2012 02/21/2012 02/21/2012 02/21/2012
Sunday, February 19, 2012’ Wednesday Thursday Friday Friday
02/22/2012 02/23/2012 02/24{2012 02/24/2012
Monday, February 20, 2012 {federal Wednesday Thursday Friday Friday
holida \ 02/22/2012 02/23/2012 0242412012 02/24/2012
Tuesday, February 21, 2012 Wednesday Thursday Friday Friday
02/22/2012 02/23/2012 02/24/2012 02/24/2012
Wednesday, February 22, 2012 Thursday Friday Saturday Saturday
02/23/2012 02/24/2012 02/25/2012 02/25/2012

'Origin processing for mail deposited on Sunday or a holiday is completed on next day which is not a Sunday or holiday.
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS DAVID WILLIAMS

TO PRESIDING OFFICER'S INFORMATION REQUEST NO. 3

RESPONSE fo Question 1 {continued)

b.  See the table immediately below.

Dates of final

delivery
Date mail dropped into United States Postal Hartford, CT Columbia, MD Venice, CA Honolulu, HE
Service blue collection box located in 06106 21045 80291 96813
Wethersfield, CT 06109
Thursday, February 9, 2012 Saturday Monday Monday Monday
02/11/2012 02/13/2012 02/13/2012 02/13/2012
Friday, February 10, 2012 Monday Monday Monday Monday
02/13/2012 02/13/2012 02/13/2012 02/13/2012
Saturday, February 11, 2012 Monday Tuesday Tuesday Tuesday
02/13/2012 02/14/2012 02/14/2012 02/14/2012
Sunday, February 12, 2012’ Wednesday Thursday Thursday Thursday
_ 02/15/2012 02/16/2012 02/16/2012 02/16/2012
Monday, February 13, 2012 Wednesday Thursday Thursday Thursday
02/15/2012 02/16/2012 02/16/2012 02/16/2012
Tuesday, February 14, 2012 Thursday Friday Friday Friday
02/16/2012 02/17/2012 02/17/2012 02/17/2012
Wednesday, February 15, 2012 Friday Saturday Saturday Saturday
02/17/2012 02/18/2012 02/18/2012 02_/_1 82012
Thursday, February 16, 2012 Saturday Tuesday Tuesday Tuesday
— 02/18/2012 02/21/2012 02/21/2012 02/21/2012
Friday, February 17, 2012 Tuesday Tugsday Tuesday Tuesday
02/21/2012 02/21/2012 02/21/2012 02/21/2012
Saturday, February 18, 2012 Tuesday Tuesday Tuesday Tuesday
02/21/2012 02/21/2012 02/21/2012 02/21/2012
Sunday, February 19, 2012 Thursday Friday Friday Friday
02/23/2012 02/24/2012 02/24/2012 02/24/2012
Mondayi February 20, 2012 (federal Thursday Friday Friday Friday
_Iloliday) 02/23/2012 02/24/2012 02/24/2012 02/24/2012
Tuesday, February 21, 2012 Thursday Friday Friday Friday
0&@3!201 2 02/24/2012 02/24/2012 02/24/2012
Wednesday, February 22, 2012 Friday Saturday Salurday Saturday
02/24/2012 02/25/2012 02/25/2012 02/25/2012

'Origin processing for mail deposited on Sunday or a holiday is completed on next day which is not a Sunday or holiday.

197



RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS DAVID WILLIAMS
TO PRESIDING OFFICER'S INFORMATION REQUEST NO. 3

RESPONSE to Question 1 (continued)

C. See the table immediately below.

Dates of final
| delivery
Date mail dropped into United States Postal Hartford, CT Columbia, MD Venice, CA Honoiulu, HI
Service blue collection hox located in 06106 21045 90291 96813
Wethersfield, CT 06109
Thursday, February 9, 2012 Friday 02/10/2012 Monday Monday Monday
| 02/13/2012 02/13/2012 02/13/2012
Friday, February 10, 2012 Monday Monday Monday Monday
02/13/2012 02/13/2012 02/13/2012 02/13/2012
Saturday, February 11, 2012 Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Thursday
02/14/2012 02/15/2012 0211612012 02/16/2012
Sunday, February 12, 2012* Tuesday Weadnesday Thursday Thursday
02/14/2012 02/15/2012 02/16/2012 02/16/2012
Monday, February 13, 2012 Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Thursday
— 02/14/2012 02/15/2012 02/16/2012 02/16/2012
Tuesday, February 14, 2012 Wednesday Thursday Friday Friday
02/15/2012 02/16/2012 02/17/2012 02/17/2012
Wednesday, February 15, 2012 Thursday Friday Tuesday Tuesday
02/16/2012 02/17/2012 02/21/2012 02/21/2012
Thursday, February 16, 2012 Friday Tuesday Tuesday Tuesday
02/17/2012 02/21/2012 02/21/2012 0_%‘_21/2012
’_Friday, February 17, 2012 Tuesday Tuesday Tuesday Tuesday
___ 02/21/2012 02/21/2012 02/21/2012 02/21/2012
Saturday, February 18, 2012 Wednesday Thursday Friday Friday
02/22/2012 02/23/2012 02/24/2012 02/24/2012
Sunday, February 19, 2012° Wednesday Thursday Friday Friday
02/22/2012 02/23/2012 02/&%2012 02/24/2012
Mondayé February 20, 2012 (federal Wednesday Thursday Friday Friday
holida 02/22/2012 02/23/2012 02/24/2012 02/24/2012
Tuesday, February 21, 2012 Wednesday Thursday Friday Friday
02/22/2012 02/23/2012 02/24/2012 02/24/2012
Wednesday, February 22, 2012 Thursday Friday Monday Monday
02/23/2012 02/24/2012 Q2/27/2012 0212712012

“Origin processing for mail deposited on Saturday, Sunday, or a hol

or holiday.

day is completed on next day which is not a Saturday, Sunday,
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS DAVID WILLIAMS
TO PRESIDING OFFICER'S INFORMATION REQUEST NO. 3

RESPONSE to Question 1 (continued)

d. See the table immediately below.

Dates of final

delivery
Date mail dropped into United States Postal [ Hartford, CT Columbia, MD Venice, CA Honolulu, Hi
Service blue collection box located in 06106 21045 20291 96813
Wethersfield, CT 06109
Thursday, February 9, 2012 Monday Monday Monday Monday
02/13/2012 02/13/2012 02/13/2012 02/13/2012
Friday, February 10, 2012 Monday Monday Monday Monday
02/13/2012 02/13/2012 02/13/2012 02/13/2012
Saturday, February 11, 2012 Wednesday Thursday Thursday Thursday
02/15/2012 02/16/2012 02/16/2012 02/16/2012
Sunday, February 12, 2012¢ Wednesday Thursday Thursday Thursday
02/15/2012 02/16/2012 02/16/2012 02/16/2012
Monday, February 13, 2012 Wednesday Thursday Thursday Thursday
02/15/2012 02/16/2012 02/16/2012 02/16/2012
Tuesday, February 14, 2012 Thursday Friday Friday Friday
_ 02/16/2012 02/17/2012 02/17/2012 02/17/2012
Wednesday, February 15, 2012 Friday Tuesday Tuesday Tuesday
02/17/2012 02/21/2012 02/21/2012 02i21/2012
Thursday, February 186, 2012 Tuesday Tuesday Tuesday Tuesday
02/_21/201 2 02/21/2012 02/21/2012 02/21/2012
Friday, February 17, 2012 Tuesday Tuesday Tuesday Tuesday
02/21/2012 02/21/2012 02/21/2012 02/21{2012
Saturday, February 18, 2012 Thursday Friday Friday Friday
02/23/2012 02/24/2012 02/24/2012 02/2412012
Sunday, February 18, 2012° Thursday Friday Friday Friday
02@3[2012 02/24/2012 02/24/2012 02/24{2012
Mondayé February 20, 2012 {federal Thursday Friday Friday Friday
holiday) 02/23/2012 02/24/2012 02/24/2012 02/24/2012
Tuesday, February 21, 2012 Thursday Friday Friday Friday
_ 02/23/2012 02/24/2012 02/24/2012 02/24/2012
Wednesday, February 22, 2012 Friday Monday Monday Monday
02/24/2012 02/27/2012 0212712012 02/27/2012

“Origin processing for mail deposited on Saturday, Sunday, or a holiday is completed on next day which is not a2 Saturday, Sunday,

or holiday.
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS WILLIAMS

TO PRESIDING OFFICER'S INFORMATION REQUEST 5

The resilience of a transportation network can be defined as the ability of the
network to maintain service levels during operations or quickiy return to normal
operation after plant disruption, adverse weather, natural incidents such as
floods, snow, ice, fog, hurricanes, terrorism or accidents, power outages, or other
situations. A resilient network can be designed to isolate failures and to prevent
cascading of service degradation. In the case of the Postal Service, managers
may reroute mail to alternate processing facilities to adapt to temporary,
unforeseen situations.

a. To what degree has the Postal Service planned to maintain the resilience
of its network after the proposed changes?

b. Please describe how and to what extent the ability of the network to
provide temporary emergency substitution was factored into the
development of the Mail Processing Network Rationalization Service
Changes proposal?

RESPONSE

a.

See the response to APWU-T1-4.

The Postal Service develops plans for contingency purposes at each facility. The
Postal Service will update all plans accordingly based on the redesigned mail
processing network. The Postal Service expects to employ sélch strategies in the
future as are empioyed today to respond to such events as arje listed in the
question, including the creation of temporary facilities or the temporary staging of
operations at existing nearby facilities to ensure that reasonable levels of service

can be maintained under the circumstances.
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS WILLIAMS
TO PRESIDING OFFICER'S INFORMATION REQUEST .5

3. In support of its 2011 Annual Compliance Report, the Postal Service filed its
“Special Study of Off-Shore Service Performance FY11” in USPS-FY11-29.

a. Will any plants in non-contiguous areas (e.g., Alaska, Hawaii, Guam) be
affected by the Mail Processing Network Rationalization Service Changes
proposal?

b. Please describe any ways in which the effects of the proposal will be

different for remote or non-contiguous areas than for the rest of the
country, including whether the changes will improve or worsen the relative
service performance in these areas. Be sure to discuss whether and how
the fack of closures in a non-contiguous area will aiter the effects of the
proposal on those areas.

RESPONSE
a. No.
b. Due to the unique logistical requirements for non-contiguous areas, the Postal

Service does not expect worsening of the relative service performance vis-a-vis
the service standards. Specifically the Postal Service has proposed aligning the
service standards appropriately with the uniqu;e transportation issues between
the contiguous U.S. states and the non-contigﬁous locations. There are
proposed changes to the First-Class Mail and Periodicals service standards as a

result detailed in the proposed changes to 39 CFR 121.1 filed in USPS Library

Reference N2012-1/7, pages 17-22.
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RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS WILLIAMS
TO TIME INC INTERROGATORY

TI-USPS-T1-5. Given the likelihood that some mailers who enter mail at
destinating SCFs may modify their mailing practices in order to meet the revised
critical dispatch times described in your testimony, what is your and the Postal
Service’s best estimate of the volumes of (i) First Class; and (ii) Periodicals mail
that will qualify for overnight delivery after the proposed changes have been
implemented?

RESPONSE
I am informed that the Postal Service currently has no estimates as to the extent

some mailers may modify their mailing practices in order to meet the revised

critical entry times described in my testimony.
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CHAIRMAN GOLDWAY: Now, is there any
additional written cross-examination for Witness
Williams?

MR. ANDERSON: Madam Chairman, Darryl
Anderson for the American Postal Workers Union. The
APWU hereby submits NPMHU/USPS-T1-14, 15 and 20 filed
March 15, 2012.

CHATRMAN GOLDWAY: Are there any corrections
that need to be made?

(No response.)

CHATRMAN GOLDWAY: If everything is in
oxrder, counsel, would you present two copies of the
additional designated cross-examination to the
witness?

I take it Witness Williams is not making any
further corrections and those written cross-
examination designations --

MALE VOICE: Thank you, Mr. Tidwell.

CHAIRMAN GOLDWAY: -- will be provided to
the court reporter. This material is received into

evidence and is to be transcribed into the record.

//
//
//
/7

Heritage Reporting Corporation
(202) 628-4888
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{The documents referred to
were marked for
identification as Exhibit
Nog. USPS-T1-14, 15 and 20
and were received in

evidence.)

Heritage Reporting Corporation

(202)

628-4888
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TO NATIONAL POSTAL MAIL HANDLERS UNION INTERROGATORY

NPMHU/USPS-T1-14 Please explain why the list published by the Postal Service
on February 23, 2012 at hitp://about.usps.com/what-we-are-doing/our-futurenetwork/
assets/pdf/communications-list-022212.pdf contains 264 studies, whereas the list
provided as Library Reference 6 contains 252 studies. In your answer, please
identify the studies that are contained in February 23, 2012 list but not in Library
Reference 6 (including but not limited to Mid-Florida P&DC inte Orlando P&DC;
Atlanta P&DC; Champaign P&DF; Cardiss Collins P&DC; Staten Island P&DF;
Mankato P&DF; Corpus Christi P&DC; and Fort Worth P&DC), and an explanation of
why those studies were not contained in Library Reference 6.

RESPONSE
Regarding Mid-Florida P&DC into Orlando P&DC, see the response to
APWU/USPS-T1-24(b).
The following studies were initiated prior to the mail processing network
rationalization effort:

Atlanta P&DC

Cardiss Coliins P&DC

Champaign P&DF

Staten Island P&DF

Mankato P&DF '
The list of facilities under review for consolidation prior to the announcement of the

USPS Library Reference N2012-1/6 study list associated with Mail Processing

Network Rationalization was provided in USPS Library Reference N2012-1/5.

The following studies were initiated after the December 5" filing date after local field
review of the preliminary study suggested additional opportunity could exist through

changes in the preliminary study list:

Corpus Christi P&DC
Fort Worth P&DC
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NPMHU/USPS-T1-15 For those sites included in the list published on February
23, 2012 but not included in Library Reference 6, please state whether the full

Handbook 408 process was followed for each of these studies, including in your
answer the date of the public hearing.

RESPONSE

See the list below. All of these studies utilized the Handbook 408 process.

P&DC

consolidation

Study Fagility Gaining Facility(ies}
Consolidation | Public
State | City Facility Gaining Site City State | Status Type Meeting
Approved for Originating
FL Mid Florida Mid-Florida P&DC | Orlando P&DC Orlando FL L and 1/4/2012
consolidation s
destinating
GA | Atlanta Atlanta P&DC hortn Metro Duluth GA | Studyongoing | Originating 1119/2010
Bloomington
. . P&DF Bloomington; | IL; Disapproved
IL Champaign | Champaign P&DF Springfield Springfield 1L Study N/A {none)
P&DC
Carol Stream Carol
. Cardiss Collins P&DC , . Approved for e
IL Chicago P&DC South Suburban Stream; IL; IL consolidation Criginating 111302011
Bedford Park
P&DC
Owensboro Evansvile . Approved for -
KY Owenshoro CSMPC P&DF Evansville IN consolidation Destinating 11/3/2011
’ Originating
Traverse City Traverse Approved for
Ml Gaylord Gaylord P&DF . M1 o and 10/20/2011
P&DF City consolidation destinating _
. . Originating
Minneapolis . " Approved for
MN Mankato Mankato P&DF P&DC Minneapolis | MN consolidation ﬁnd o 8/24/2011
. estinating
Great Falls Approved for N
MT Butte Butte CSMPC P&DF Great Falls MT consolidation Destinating 1/3/12012
Staten Staten Island Approved for -
NY lsland P&DF Brooklyn P&DC | Brooklyn NY consolidation Destinating 12/6/2011
. Washington Pittsburgh | Approved for N
PA Washington CSMPC P&DC Pittshurgh PA consolidation Destinating 12/6/2011
L . Originating
Corpus Corpus Christi San Antonio . Approved for
TX | christi P&DC P&DC San Antonio | TX | ¢ons0lidation and 1/412012
destinating
TX | FortWorth | Fort Worth papc | North Texas Coppell Tx | Approved for Originating 12/8/2011




RESPONSE OF UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE WITNESS WILLIAMS
TO NATIONAL POSTAL MAIL HANDLERS UNION INTERROGATORY

NPMHU/USPS-T1-20 Please confirm that certain facilities considered for
consolidation were not studied through the Handbook 408 process. If confirmed,
please state for which facilities the Handbook 408 process was not used; explain the
decisionmaking process that was used; and state whether there was a public
hearing for each of these facilities.

RESPONSE

USPS Handbook PO-408 guidelines apply to examining the consolidation of all
originating and/or destinating operations from a facility. The definition of originating
and/or destinating operations is based upon primary distribution of outgoing first
class letter and flat mail and incoming Sectional Center Facility (SCF) distribution of
letter and flat mail. Facilities that did not undergo the PO-408 review process did not
fit the description of performing all primary outgoing and/or all destinating SCF
distribution of letter and flat mail for one or more three digit ZIP Codes. The decision
making process used was to perform a local financial analysis of the potential
savings of the consolidation and to perform a joint Headquarters/Area review of the
feasibility of tﬁe consolidation. Public hearings were not held for these facilities.
PAEA section 302 does not require a public meeting in relation to an operational
consolidation. It requires that there at least be public notice and an opportunity to

comment. Available summaries of public comments received in relation to non-

AMP consolidations are considered before final determinations are made.
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MS. RUSH: Madam Chairman, Tonda Rush with
National Newspaper Association. NNA designated its
written cross-examination on Maxrch 16, having received
the Postal Service’s responses too late on the 15th to
do that. .

May I just confirm that they’re actually in
the witness’ packet or we can enter those now? It
should be NNA/USPS-T1 through 11 and T1l-14. Thank
you, Mr. Tidwell.

CHATIRMAN GOLDWAY: Because of the late
filings involVed, if there are some other documents
that parties would like to enter as designated cross-
examination they can submit them to us and we can rule
on them to determine if it’s appropriate to include
them later. -

Now, this brings us to oral cross-
examination. Five participants have requested oral
cross-examination, the American Postal Workers Union
AFL-CIO, Darryl Anderson is representing them;
Greeting Card Association, Mr. Stover; National
Newspaper Association, Ms. Rush; National Postal Mail
Handlers Union, Ms. Keller; and the Public
Representative, Mr. Laver.

Is there any other participant who wants to

cross-examine Witness Williams today?

Heritage Reporting Corporation
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(No response.)
CHAIRMAN GOLDWAY: If not, then we’ll begin
with APWU counsel.
MR, ANDERSON: Thank you, Madam Chairman.
CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. ANDERSON:

Q Good morning, Mr. Williams.
A Good morning.
Q Nice to see you again, although collective

bargaining is a little bit more style, and I’'ve come
to enjoy meeting you in that context. I‘m not so sure
it’s going to be as much fun this morning.

I'd like to clarify -- just confixm really
-- that you’re the Postal Service’s policy witness for
this case. Is that your understanding?

A That’s my understanding.

Q And would it be fair to say that you were in
charge of this effort on network consolidation?

A It’s fair to say that there are a lot of
pecple within the Postal Service that are doing
various activities in termg of looking at the case.
It’s very cross-functional in nature, a very complex
case. From an operations standpoint, I am the lead
operations policy witness.

Q So there are implications here for other

Heritage Reporting Corporation
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aspects of the Postal Service’s operations policy,
perhaps customer relations, perhaps other things that
are the responsibility of others who are not direct
reports to you in short? Is that a fair summary?

A Yes.

0 Okay. Now, the rules of the Commission
require that when a case like this is submitted, and
I'm looking at for the record Rule 3001.74. I know
you‘re not a lawyer. I'm not asking you to know the
rule.

But I will tell you, and I'm sure you're
aware of this, that the Postal Service is required to
submit a full and complete statement of its reasons
and the basis for what it’s proposing here, and so I
just want to make sure that you confirm for the recoxrd
that what the Postal Service submitted in support of
the network consolidation plan is a full and
complete --

MR. TIDWELL: Objection, Madam Chairman. It
calls for a legal conclusion as to whether or not the
filing is compliant to the Commission’s rules. It
doesn’t call for a statement of fact.

MR. ANDERSON: I think the rule is stated in
laymen’s texms. Either it’s a full and complete
statement of the reasons and the basis for --

Heritage Reporting Corporation
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MR. TIDWELL: It uses laymen’s words, but it
still reguires a statement of a legal conclusion, and
that’s a judgment for the Commission to make.

MR. ANDERSON: Okay. Let me ask. May I
rephrase it, Madam Chairman?

CHATIRMAN GOLDWAY: I think you better
rephrase it.

MR. ANDERSON: Okay. Let me rephrase that
guestion.

BY MR. ANDERSON:

Q In retrospect, Mr. Williams, given all the
gquestions that you’ve been asked about the Postal
Service’s proposal here, is there something else that
you’d like to submit in support of this proposal, or
do you think that you have submitted everything that
the Postal Service wishes to submit in support of its
proposal?

MR. TIDWELL: Objection, Madam Chairman.
What the Postal Service may choose to submit in
support of this proposal during the course of this
docket is a matter of litigation strategy. It’s not a
fact question to be put to an operations policy
witness.

MR. ANDERSON: Of course it’s a fact
gquestion, if I may say. May I respond, Madam

Heritage Reporting Corporation
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Chairman? This is a policy witness. I mean, one
problem we have in this case, quite frankly, as Mr.
Williams candidly testified, he has very major
responsibilities in charge of Network Operations.
That’s his responsibility.

The Postal Service has utterly failed,
frankly, to submit a policy witness of sufficient
scope to answer all the necessary guestions, so Mr.
Tidwell has a point with regard to the scope of Mr.
Williams’ testimony and the scope of his
responsibilities, but there’s somebody at the Postal
Service who can answer these questions. He may not be
here today, he or she, but there is.

So these are perfectly appropriate questions
for the Postal Service to answer. It’s just that they
don’t choose to answer them for the Commission. So I
would just ask the witness since he is the policy
witness do the best he can. If he says I don’'t know,
that’s fine. That’s his answer. Or if he says gosh,
that’s above my pay grade, he might say that too, or
that’s another vice president’s responsibility, not
mine. But I don’t know or we don’t know whether this
is everything we want to submit is not an ckay answer.

CHATRMAN GOLDWAY: I think we’ll let the
question stand and see if the witness can answer it.

Heritage Reporting Corporation
{202) e628-4888



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

213

BY MR. ANDERSON:

o] Mr. Williams, is there anything else that
you wish to submit in support of this network
congolidation plan, or do you think the Postal Service
has submitted everything that at this stage in this
case at least it knows it wants to submit?

A At this stage in the case, I believe we have
submitted everything that we need to submit.

Q With regard to this project, Mr. Williams,
who do you report to?

A I report to the Chief Operating Officer,
Megarn Brennan.

Q Another topic that I'm still puzzled about
is when the Postal Service will implement the service
standard changes that are necessitated by this network
consolidation. I know there are a number of
interrogatories that touch on that subject, and having
looked at them as recently as last night I'm still in
doubt.

I know that you've said things like they’'re
interrelated, that the service standard changes and
the network consolidation implementation are
interrelated, but to cut right to the heart of it will
the Postal Service change service standards before the
network consolidation takes place?

Heritage Reporting Corporation
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a The network consclidation is dependent on a
change in service standards. The Postal Service has
to change the service standards in order to effect the
implementation of the network rationalization.

Q So that’s a yes, that the order of
proceeding here is that the service standards will be
changed and then the mail processing network
consolidations will go forward?

A Yes.

Q And do you know when the Postal Service will
implement those service standard changes?

A It is the goal of the Postal Service to file
a final ruling in the Federal Register in the mid
April timeframe.

Q And do you know what that final ruling will
pronounce with regard to the timing of the service
standard changes?

A No, not yet. That final rule has not been
completed, and in that final rule there will be the -
implementation date included in the final rule.

Q And are you participating in that process of
determining when the service standard changes will be
implemented, six?

A Yes.

Q Are you in charge of that effort?

Heritage Reporting Corporation
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a I am a main advisor in that effort.

Q And who would be in charge of that effort?

A Certainly the Executive Leadership Team at
the Postal Service, the Postmaster General and the
Board of Governors.

Q Is Megan Brennan also part of the Executive
Leadership Team?

A She is.

Q Has a decision been made to go forward with
the service standard changes before the completion of
the Commission‘s work in this case?

A The decision will be published in mid April.
The final ruling will be published. It’s our
expectation and our goal to publish the final rule in
mid April. :

Q But has a decision been made that the
service standard changes can be made and as a policy
matter will be made despite the fact that the
Commission will not have completed its work in this
case?

MR. TIDWELL: Objection to the question in
part, Madam Chairman. Michael Tidwell on behalf of
the Postal Service.

The question of whether or not the service
standard changes can be made in advance of the
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issuance of an advisory opinion is a question that
calls for the statement of a legal conclusion, and we
would object to that portion of the guestion.

MR. ANDERSCON: I’'1ll rephrase the question.

CHAIRMAN GOLDWAY: That’s fine. Rephrase
it, please.

MR. ANDERSON: Certainly. Thank you, Madam
Chairman.

BY MR. ANDERSON:

0 Mr. Williams, has a decision been made by
the Postal Service whether or not to go forward with
implementing service gtandard changes before the
Commission finishes its work in this case?

A Has a firm decision been made? No. It’s
our goal and it's a goal to pdblish a final rule in
mid April.

Q 2nd I infer from that that means that the
service standard changes would take effect before the
Commission will have an opportunity to complete its
work in this case. Is that a fair inference?

A That is a fair inference.

0 If the service standard changes are made and
then the Commission issues an advisory opinion in this
case advising the Postal Service not to do thisg, that
it is not worth the candle, if you understand what I
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mean by that phrase; that it’s too costly in terms of
service standards and perhaps lost mail volume to the
Postal Service.

If that’s the decision and recommendation of
the Commission, will the Postal Service be in a
position to undo the service standard changes at that
point?

A If there’s a compelling reason in any
advisory opinion of the Commission that would cause us
to change course after we’ve published a final rule
and changed service. standards, certainly the Postal
Service could change position and reverse any
operational changes;down the road.

Q So if I understand you correctly,
hypothetically the service standard changes could take
effect say May 15 if the Postal Service announces its
final decision on sérvice standards and the changes
take effect May 15 hypothetically. I'm not asking you
to say. I know that that decision hasn’t been made
for sure, but just hypothetically it happens May 15,
and then the Commission issues its decision in this
case let’s say September 15, four months or so.

It’s my understanding that when the service
standard changes are made that a large number of very
large mailers will have to make changes to their
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operations in order to be able to continue to do
business as they wish. Isn’t that correct?

A Yes.

Q Could you give -- well, never mind. You've
answered 1it. I mean, it’s in the record already what
some ©of those major changes are.

Knowing what you know about how postal
operations work and how dependent mailers are on
timely delivery of their mail, isn‘t it fair to assume
that the mailers are going to have to make efforts to
change their operations around very promptly in
response to the service standard changes that in my
hypothetical take effect in May?

A | Yes. There would be some changes. Mailer
behaviors would change to synchronize their operations
for this:new operating environment.

Q | And then if the Postal Service were to
change béck again hypothetically, say the Commission’s
decision comes out in September, mid September. The
Postal Service is not likely to turn on a dime. I
think that you’ll agree with me on that. You don’t
even have to answer that question.

So let’s say it takes the Postal Service
three months tc reverse itself, so let’'s say
January 15. Three or four months. 8o from May to

Heritage Reporting Corporation
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hypothetically January there would be a different set
of service standards that all the mailers who care
about the timely delivery of their mail.would have to
comply with, and then in my hypothetical they would
then have to undo all those changes after seven
months.

A Yes, but this isn’t a network that’s going
to turn on a dime. If you could imagine a light
switch, this isn’t something that we’re going to tuxn
off and on a light switch and the network completely
changes.

You think of a slow light dimmer as opposed
to an on and off light switch. You know, the network
changes will occur over time, and it will be dependent
on a number of issues. We’'ve got facilities that will
need facility modifications. We’re going to be moving
equipment. We’re going to be changing transportation.
We’re going to be moving mail through labeling lists.

So those key things in a timeline don’'t
occur overnight, so we’re not going to have in your
hypothetical situation of May 15 to have a completely
different network turned on and off by the flick of a
light switch.

0 So the Postal Service and the mailers,
starting on or about May 15, would begin the process

Heritage Reporting Coxporation
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of transitioning to the new serxrvice standards?

A In your hypothetical situation of a May 15
activation date, vyes.

Q And with regard to I think you’ll agree with
me that while the consolidation of the mail processing
operations, that is the movement of the equipment and
the transfer of employees, that is something, as you
say, that’s more like a dimmer switch than a light
switch that turns on and off instantly; that the
service standard change itself is something the Postal
Service can implement rather quickly.

A Yes. It’s our intent to change service
standards on one day, so the service standards would
change on one day across the country and then those
activities that would need to take place primarily
around facility modifications, equipment changes,
transportation changes, mail movement, people
movement, those major operational changes would start
to take place across the network.

But again, it’s not something that a flip of
a switch that we’re going to be able to do. It will
take some time.

Q No, but the service standard changes is the
light switch. That’s going to be a flick of the
switch.
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A That’s true.

Q And the mailers who care about the prompt
and timely delivery of their mail are going to have to
begin rather rapidly to adjust to that switch being
thrown. Isn’'t that correct?

A That’'s true.

Q Another topic on which I‘'m pretty unclear
about, even though we and other Intervenors have asked
guestions about it, is how much consideration the
Postal Service gave to the fact that it is making not
only this change, but a number of other changes more
or less contemporaneously.

I know you’re aware of the things I'm
referring to. It’s not just network consolidation,
but it’s the proposal to drop Saturday delivefy and to
close post offices and also to raise rates in-the
exigency cage. I mean, all these things are éoing on
contemporaneously. |

We asked you several different ways whether
you were aware of anybody having the responsibility
for judging the combined impact of those things, and
you answered that you were not aware of anybody having
that responsibility. I appreciate those answers, and
I know that you answered honestly. Don’t get me
wrong. I'm not suggesting for a minute that you
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didn’t.

But T want to push that just slightly one
more notch differently because it seems to us that
somebody out there was giving some thought to this,
and it never occurred to us to ask whether there was a
study being done that was not published and used by
the Postal Service, so let me ask you that question.

I don’t think we’ve asked that yet quite.

Were you aware, and you may have become
aware at some point so let me ask you whether you’re
aware now. We can go back if need . be. Are you aware
now that the Postal Service was doing a study that
would evaluate the combined impact;of multiple and
simultaneous initiatives?

MR. TIDWELL: Counsel, for clarity of the
record could you describe or identify the study?

MR. ANDERSON: Yes. I’d.like to do that.

In fact, I was going to try to refresh the witness’
recollection on it.

If I may approach? I have Library Reference
70, and I'd like to show the witness Library Reference
70 and see if that jogs his recollection.

CHATIRMAN GOLDWAY: That’s fine with me.
Please approach the witness.

MR. ANDERSCN: Thank you.
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(Pause.)

MR. ANDERSON: I have copies for the
Commission.

CHATRMAN GOLDWAY: Thank you.

MR. ANDERSON: Mr. Tidwell, may I present a
copy to you?

MR. TIDWELL: Thank you.

MR. ANDERSON: I would like the record to
show that I’‘ve handed Mr. Williams Library Reference
70, which has a preface of one page and then beyond
that are four additional documents, one of which
appears to be an order -- it’s labeled Order,
Solicitation, Offer and.Awara -- and then three of
them are questionnaires.

One is a consumer guestionnaire, one is a
small and home-based business questionnaire, and one
is a large commercial aécounts questionnaire, and
these are each labeled, and I realize this i1s complete
hearsay at this point, Final, although this is
submitted by the Postal Service. So these are
questionnaires directed to those purposes, and then
there is this contract.

BY MR. ANDERSON:

0 So, Mr. Williams, let me ask you. Sitting
here today, until this moment, prior to this moment,
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were you aware of this contract, sir?

A I was aware that we were conducting market
research. My understanding was the market research
was research that was intended to qualitative and
gquantitatively provide impact from network
rationalization.

Q And if I were to tell you that this research
goes beyond that and that it was generating data about
the combined effect of more than the network
consolidation, is that something that you were
familiar with?

A I was not. I'm not familiar with the
construct of .the market research or the questicns that

were asked or even the contract.

Q I understand. All right.
A This is the first time I’'ve seen this.
Q Okay. Thank you, sir. This contract, at

least on the face of this document, would appear to
have cost orxr was going to cost the Postal Service more
than $680,000. That’'s a pretty substantial contract.

Can you just tell me at what level of the
Postal Service someone would have to have authority to
authorize a contract of this size?

MR. TIDWELL: Madam Chairman, the Postal
Service is going to cbject. The witness hag indicated
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that he’s not familiar with the contract. He saw the
contract document for the first time today; that this
is something that’s not within his purview as the
manager of Network Operations.

I don’t know what we can expect this witness
to tell us about the substance and the background
behind this contract. There are other witnesses who
are market research experts who are appearing tomorrow
who it seems to me would be more appropriate targets
for inquiry about these documents, both about the
béckground and the substance.

MR. ANDERSON: May I respond, Madam
Chairman?

CHAIRMAN GOLDWAY: Yes, you may respond.
MR. ANDERSON: Briefly, and I won't prolong
this, would the Postal Service proffer a witness to
séonsor this exhibit?

MR. TIDWELL: No.

MR. ANDERSON: This library reference.

MR. TIDWELL: No.

MR. ANDERSON: It won’'t. Well, may I just
ask the question that I tried to ask then, which is at
what level would --

CHAIRMAN GOLDWAY: Why don’t you ask as many
questions, and the witness will tell you what he
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knows. If he doesn’t know very much, he will say so.
MR. ANDERSON: Thank you, Madam Chairman.
BY MR. ANDERSON:

0 Mr. Williams, given that this contract was
more than $860,000, would someone at your level of the
organization have authority to authorize a contract of
that magnitude?

A I'm not aware of the purchasing limits that
other vice presidents or other executives outgide of
my organization would have.

Q And what about yourself? Do you have
that --

A I would have that authorization.

Q So it could have been somebody at the vice
presidential level?

A It could have been.

Q Okay. Thank you, sir. Mr. Williams, you
testified in interrogatory responses, I believe, that
it was your impression from reviewing post
implementation reviews done of AMPs that they tended
to show savings larger than the AMPs predicted. Is
that a falr summary of what you saild?

A I don't know. Did I use the word tended?
The vast majority of the post implementation reviews
were well above the initial estimates that were
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presented in the AMP business case.

Q In one of your interrogatory responses you
actually attached a number of I think they were PIRs,
but they showed the audited savings from AMPs. Do you
recall that response?

A Yes. Can you point me to that
interrogatory? -

MR. ANDERSON: I certainly can, though let’s
move on. I’ll go back and look. I will take a loock
at that, and we’ll let the Commission know whether we
agree with you.

But I do want to bring to your attention a
report, an audit report by the Inspector General. I
don’'t think T need to make this an exhibit. It may be
in the record someplace. This is the audit report
dated January 9, 2012.

If I may show the witness just for purposes
of cross-examination to refresh his recollection about

this document? TI’'d like to ask him a question or two

about it.
CHATRMAN GOLDWAY: Yes, you may. You may do
so.
THE WITNESS: Thank you.
BY MR. ANDERSON:
Q Are you familiar with this report, Mr.
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Williams, or have you seen it before?

A Yes, I have.

Q Okay. I‘d just like to direct your
attention to the Highlights section here, which would
be page 2 of this document. It shows a very large
variance between the AMPs and the savings that they
found, the Inspector Gemeral found, finding much
greater savings.

But then he states, and I'm looking at the
bottom of the first column on the left and the top of
the next column. It says a variance of over $229
million occcurred because concurrent initiative savings
were included with AMP consolidation savings. Do you

recall having seen that statement before, Mr.

Williams?
A Yes.
Q Do you disagree with that statement?
A - I do not disagree with that statement.
Q Mr. Williams, I know you were involved in

negotiations with the American Postal Workers Union
concerning what became the 2010 national agreement.
Isn‘t that correct?

A I was involved. That’s correct.

Q And so I know for that reason and because of
your operations responsibilities you’re very familiar
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with some of the changes at least that were made
insofar as they affect mail processing operations, the
changes that were made by that 2010 national
agreement. Isn’t that correct?

A I wouldn’'t describe myself as an expert on
the contract.

Q I understand that, but I think you probably
did focus pretty clearly on the issue of flexibility
and wage costs. Isn’t that correct?

A Primarily around flexibility.

Q Okay. And you know what I mean by a postal
support employee or PSE in the --

A PSE, vyes.

Q Okay. And a PSE is an employee who is not a
career employee, has lower wages than career
employees, has no retirement benefits and has no fixed
schedule. Isn’t that correct?

A That’'s correct.

Q And isn’t it also correct that the American
Postal Workers Union agreed that in mail processing
operations the Postal Service could employ up to 20
percent of its workforce in the form of postal support
employees?

A There’s also a provision that allows mail
processing to borrow from the what we call Function 4
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post office clerks, borrow from their allocation of 20
percent, so the percentage in mail processing
operations could be much higher than 20 percent.

Q So that in terms of peaks and valleys of
mail processing, isn‘t it a fair statement that this
agreement, this 2010 national agreement by the
American Postal Workers Union, provided very
substantial accommodation to the Postal Service and
made it much more possible for them to staff for peaks
and valleys of mail processing without incurring
overtime costs or other unnecessary costs?

A ‘I wouldn’t describe it as without incurring
overtime cost. Certainly the added flexibility allows
us to staff operations more efficiently, but to
describe it as eliminating overtime I would not. T
would not agree with that statement.

Q I didn’'t mean to suggest it would eliminaﬁe
overtime, but it certainly makes overtime less
necessary than before. Isn’t that correct?

A We have the ability to with the increased
flexibility versus past contractual periods with the
20 percent PSEs to handle peaks and valleys much more
efficiently.

0 And do you recall, as I think I do, that the
parties signed their agreement in May of 20117
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A It was in the summer. I’'m not sure about
what date.
Q Thereabouts. And so going to 20 percent of

PSEs, that was a very substantial increase. Isn’'t
that correct?

A Yes.

Q And so the implementation of those savings
from the PSEs began in early summer, if we will, of
2011 and is ongoing. They‘re still being implemented.
Isn’t that correct?

A That is correct.

0) Now, I will represent to you that the
Postmaster General testified in the House of
Representatives in I believe April about. the tentative
agreement, which was then pending ratification, that
it would save the Postal Service $3.7 billion. Did
you help the Postmaster develop that number, Mr.
Williams?

A No, I did not.

Q You don’t disagree with him, do you?

A I'd have to look at the testimony. I've
heard $3.7. If you could point me to his testimony,
I'd like to review it.

Q I don’t have it with me today. I just
wanted to see if you were familiar with it. We’ll
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submit it for the record at a later time perhaps
through our own witness.

Now, recognizing that you don’t have that
number in front of you, Mr. Williams, but accept
hypothetically that the number the Postmaster General
estimated is $3.7 billion. Some portion of that would
be attributable to mail processing operations?

A Yes.

0 | And as the AMPs that are the subject of this
proceeding are being implemented and if PIRs are done
and if those AMPs span the change that I just
described from pre 2010 national agreement to post
2010 national agreement, the PIRs are going to capture
apparent savings that are attributable to the APWU
national agreement. Isn’t that correct?

A That is correct, an& the APWU national
agreement, given its flexibility, would allow us to
achieve the savings that are outlined in the testimony
of Dr. Bradley and Witness Smith.

Because of that flexibility around PSEs and
other flexibilitiegs that were negotiated in the
contract, implementing the operating plan change that
we are proposing would allow us to capture those
savings.

0 But the savings could be achieved as well,
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couldn’t they, Mr. Williams, without implementing the
network congolidation because you could employ 20
percent of the workforce, the mail processing
workforce, as lower wage employees without retirement
benefits and with more flexibility?

a Well, to the extent that we change our
operating model, the fundamental change in our
operating model that allows us to fully utilize our
equipment and reduce the equipment set, reduce the
square footage, long-term that same flexibility would
still allow us to achieve the savings that are
outlined in our case.

MR. ANDERSON: I know you’re disappointed I
didn’t ask you those questions, but I appreciate your
answer anyway, sir. Thank you very much for your
testimony today. That’s all I have.

THE WITNESS: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN.GOLDWAY: That’s all you have?
Okay. The next participant who wishes to cross-
examine is Mr. Stover from the Greeting Card
Association. 1Is he here today?

(Pause.)

MR. STOVER: Thank you, Madam Chairman.

//
//
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CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. STOVER:

Q Mr. Williams, good morning. I am David
Stover representing the Greeting Card Association, and
we thank you for your answers to our questions. Would
you start by going to one of them, your answer to
GCA/USPS-T1-3, which should be in your packet?

We asked in that question whether the Postal
Service had considered the cumulative impact on single
piece first class entry of a list of Postal Service
initiatives, and you said it had not.

MR. TIDWELL: dJust for clarification, the
question asked the witness if he had considered the
cumulative effect.

MR. STOVER: I beg your pardon. Mr. Tidwell
is right. It’s whether Mr. Williams had considered it
in prepéring his testimony.

CHATIRMAN GOLDWAY: Is this GCA/USPS-T1 --

MR. STOVER: This is USPS-T1-3 is the
interrogatory in question.

CHAIRMAN GOLDWAY: Okay. Thank you.

BY MR. STOVER:

0 Mr. Williams, is it the Postal Service’s
view, to your knowledge, that obstacles to entry of
mail are likely to have a depressing effect on volume
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where that mail in question is subject to competition
from the internet?

MR. TIDWELL: Objection, Madam Chairman.

Mr. Williams is an operations witness. We had a
witness who presented testimony, whose testimony was
entered into evidence earlier today, Mr. Masse, who
addressed the impact of the internet on postal volumes
historically. It’s a subject that’s outside the scope
of Mr. Williams’ testimony.

MR. STOVER: Madam Chairman, I am not asking
about the impact of the internet on mail volume. I am
asking if Mr. Williams as a seniox Postal Service
executive is aware of a view held in the Postal
Service that obstacles to entry of mail depress volume
for that mail and if that is particularly true where
the mail is subject to internet competition.

I had assumed in preparing for cross-
examination that as the head of Network Operations Mr.
Williams would have a role in deciding just how hard
or easy it would be for different kinds of mailexs to
enter their mail into the system, and I was wondering
if he has a view -- he or the Postal Service to his
knowledge has a view -- as to the effect of
difficulties of that kind on mail volume.

CHAIRMAN GOLDWAY: I think that’'s a fair
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question.

THE WITNESS: I do have a view around that.
Our business mail entry units are an important source
of revenue and volumes entering into our operating
network. Collection boxes is an important avenue of
mail being collected from the general public and
consolidated at delivery units and transported into
our mail processing facilities.

So I do have a view. What we have decided
in this case as we looked at congolidation
opportunities was that we would keep our business mail
entry units in the locations that we would consolidate
and/or eliminate mail processing functions from one
facility.

If we decided that we needed to dispose of
the facility asset where we needed to move out of a
facility that would have its mail processing
operations removed from that we would locate those
business mail entry unit operations in very close
proximity. So the Postal Service and I recognize that
the manner in which revenue and volumes enter our
system are very important, so we made that decision
based on that view.

From a collection box standpoint we insisted
that we did not change collection box times, that we
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did not remove collection boxes as a result of this
rationalization effort. Retail operations was another
key component of consideration as I reviewed and
approved our area mail processing plans. We did not
restrict retail access. If we have to move a retail
unit from a plant to dispose of the asset then that
retail operation would be located in very close
proximity.

So I do have a view and I do understand the
importance of access to mail volume and to the receipt
of revenues and volumes into our mail processing
network.

CHAIRMAN GOLDWAY: When you are considering
retail access were you factoring in the reduction in
retail units that the Postal Service is proposing, or
were you presuming the same number?

THE WITNESS: No. When I was reviewing the
impact of retail specifically to this rationalization
effort it was those retail operations that were
located in plants or mail processing facilities, =o it
was not a view towards the retail optimization effort
of the Postal Service. It was restricted to those
retail units that would be impacted by this
rationalization effort.

CHAIRMAN GOLDWAY: And your plan was to keep
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some retaill access even if you closed those plants?

THE WITNESS: We would not change retail
hours, and if we had to change the location of the
retail that was located in a processing plant that
that retail would be located in very close proximity
to where it is today.

CHAIRMAN GOLDWAY: But you aren’'t thinking
about the fact that that retail plant might be
designated for closure through the other plans or that
retail units surrounding that plant may be designated
for closure and that retail plant needed to have a
certain size and --

THE WITNESS: No.

CHAIRMAN GOLDWAY: You weren't aware of
those or you weren’t factoring in those --

THE WITNESS: Right. The retail
optimization effort, the effort by which the Postal
Service is evaluating retaill access. Other than the
retalil operations located in the plants that we were
considering to close, we did not consider other retail
operations or units.

CHATRMAN GOLDWAY: Thank you. Sorry to
interrupt.

BY MR. STOVER:

0 Mr. Williams, I probably should know this,
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and I apologize for not knowing it. Do the data
collection boxes fall under your jurisdiction as head
of Network Operations?

a No, they do not.

Q Where do they fall®

A The wvice president of Delivery and Post
Office Operations, Dean Granholm.

Q And would the same be true for just a
freestanding retail facility?

A Correct,

Q Thank you. Let’s stick with that
Interrogatory No. 3 for a moment and go down to Part B
of it, and also if you have your testimony there
there’s a footnote, which is on page 16 of the
testimony and a reference on page 16.

You have stated that only a relatively small
percentage of single piece first class mail is entered
into the system at a retail counter or collection box
located at a P&DC. Do yvou have that reference?

A Yes.

Q Can you give ug an idea of what that small
percentage is?

A I don't have and I don’t believe the Postal
Service has data on the exact percentage, but
typically in front of a mail processing plant there’s
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typically a collection box that’s located right out
front of a procesgsing and distribution center oxr
facility.

So in the scheme of things, even if there
were two boxes that would be -- if we have 461 plants,
that would be less than 1,000 collection boxes across
the‘network.

Q And you don’t have data on the proportion of
volume that comes in through those boxesg?

A I have never seen data.

Q Again, I'm sorry because you’ve just told me
this is not your department, but do you have in your
library of miscellaneous information the number of
blue boxes that there are in existence today?

a I do not -- :

Q Okay.

A -- have it off the top of my head.

Q We'll try and lock it up. Thank yoﬁ, Mr.
Williams.

Let’s go now to the fourth interrogatory,
GCA/USPS-T1-4, and also if you could go to page 19 of
your testimony? This is just a clarification. You
say in answering the interrogatory in the second
paragraph:

"In some instances later acceptance/
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dispatch times could be allowed by local management
based on the additional separations created if that

mail can still meet the service standards.”

A Can you point me to the line in the
testimony?
Q No. I'm reading from the interrogatory

answer now. I beg your pardon.

Now if you would, let’s go to page 19 of the
testimony. Are the later acceptance times that you
mentioned in answering the interrogatory, the 8 a.m.
and 12:00 noon that are referenced down below the
bottom of page 19 --

A So you’'re looking at line. 18?

Q Yes, and down to the béttOm of the page, the
very end where you mention 12:00 noon for --

A Okay. Yes. '

Q When you refer in your inferrogatory
response to later acceptance times ére you referring
to the 8 a.m. and 12:00 noon that are mentioned in the
testimony?

A I'm sorry. Could you ask that question one
more time?

Q In the interrogatory you say that in some
instances later acceptance or dispatch times could be
allowed by local management based on additional
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separations made by the mailer, and then you describe
on page 19 how to get overnight service a mailer could
enter mail by 8 a.m. or 12:00 if it’s I guess five
digit or certain other.

Are those later acceptance times that you
mention in your testimony the 8 a.m. and 12:00 noon

that are referred to in the testimony?

A That are referred to in the interrogatory?
Q Right.

A Interrogatory T1-4°7?

Q Yes. Let me back up a minute. What I'm

trying to understand, one thing I‘m trying to
understand, is whether when you testify on page 19
that mail could in some instances get overnight
delivery if it’s entered:by 8 a.m. or 12:00 noon.

A Okay. Yes.

Q Is that advantage, that treatment, available
via the allowance by locél management based upon
additicnal separations?

A Yes. We do have a process called customer
supplier agreements.

Q Yes.

A Okay. I think that’s what’s being referred
to in Interrogatory GCA-T1l-4.

Q Right. Okay.
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A So that’s where we provided the guide where
it was on the website, the guide to customer supplier
agreements at that link.

Q Okay.

A Today we use customer supplier agreements to
allow later entry of volumes into our network. For
example, if a mailer makes up a container where we can
cross docket right to an airline that operation
typically occurs much later in the evening and
therefore we can accept that volume under certain
conditions fdr a later entry because we are bypassing
certain operational steps.

I believe what you may be asking is this
8:00 and 12 p.m. What we have done is because 8:00 in
the morning is early in the morning relative to
critical entr? times as they‘re defined today for
overnight delivery, properly prepared containerized
volumes at thé five digit level or the five digit
scheme level where we can take that container and reoll
it across the dock right to a machine that’s
processing delivery point sequencing, we can do that.

And that’s the containerization level
requirement that would be required for volumes, first
class mail, presorted, properly prepared and
containerized, 1if they are entered in by noon that
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would bypass operational steps where we could take
that container right to a machine.

Because in this operating model we’re
starting our delivery point sequencing process at noon
so if it’s properly containerized and prepared such
that we can take that container right to the machine
that’s starting delivery point sequencing and in this
operating model that we’ve defined it starts at noon
so we can take that right to the machine and start
processing it.

Because it’s containerized, because it’s
sorted to the five digit or a five digit scheme level,
we don’t have to do anything operationally to that
volume. That’s why we’re able to take it up as late
as noon.

- Q So that if Dr. Clifton and I were to set up
a bresort bureau and we collected single piece mail
ffom office buildings, if we could get it in
containerized and sorted to five digits we could enter
it perhaps by noon and get overnight service?

A If it's presorted, properly prepared,
containerized at the five digit or the five digit
scheme level. The five digit scheme level is the
level by which we combine several five digit zones
under one sort program where we run more than one zone
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on a sort program at the same time.

If it’s properly prepared, prescrted for
that destination plant service area, entered by noon,
we would take that volume right to a machine and
because it‘s entered by noon, presorted, properly
prepared, we would have an overnight service standard
for that volume.

MR, STOVER: Thank vyou.

CHAIRMAN GOLDWAY: What’s the current
critical entry time for such processed mail?

THE WITNESS: For destination entered?

There is no destination entered first class mail
critical entry time in that manner for a destination
plant service area. Typically we start those
operations, delivery point sequencing operations,
around 11:30 at night to 6:00 or 7:00 in the morning.

CHAIRMAN GOLDWAY: So the mailer could bring
that mail in any time during the day and get overnight
delivery?

THE WITNESS: No. They would drop that mail
in accordance with our critical entry times for first
class mail, whether it’s origin entered or for that
degtination, SCF.

CHAIRMAN GOLDWAY: What is the current
critical entry time?
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THE WITNESS: I believe it is 1800.

CHAIRMAN GOLDWAY: 6 p.m.?

THE WITNESS: 6 p.m.

CHAIRMAN GOLDWAY: So this proposal for
overnight delivery adds another 12 hours to the day if
you’'re going to get it in at 8 a.m. instead of 6 p.m.
and get overnight delivery? You have I guess it‘s 10
hours. You have an additional 10 hours of time to
handle that for overnight delivery --

THE WITNESS: Yes.

CHAIRMAN GOLDWAY: -- and the mailer has 10
fewer hours to get it to you for overnight delivery.

THE WITNESS: Yes.

CHAIRMAN GOLDWAY: So even overnight
delivery under the new scheme is closer to a half a
day different from the overnight delivery that now
exists?

THE WITNESS: Right. Well, if you think
about this whole concept it’s all about if you go into
any one of our plants today at this hour we’ve got
about 6,000 -- it’s just under 6,000 -- delivery
barcode sorters. The vast majority of those machines
are sitting on the workroom floor and they’re not
doing anything. They’re just sitting there.

Those machines were purchased to process
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delivery point sequencing volumes, and that operation
typically starts let’s say 11:30 at night. Some
plants it’s midnight. It goes to 6:00 to 7:00 in the
morning. It’s that idle time in terms of mail
processing equipment for delivery point sequencing
that we need to address. Those machines take up a lot
of square feet. Those machines are sitting idle.

The concept of this network change is to get
a full operating use of that equipment, so instead of
a six hour -- five to six hour -- operating window on
about 6,000 machines, we want to get to a 20 to 16
hour operating window. So instead of starting
delivery point sequencing at 11 p.m. we‘re going to
start at noon and go until about 4:00 in the morning.

And so it's that lengthening of the
operating window of that equipment which drives a
significant reduction in the number of pieces of
equipment that we need and therefore the number of
square feet that we need, which allows us to reduce a
lot of this fixed overhead that we’ve got in our
network in response to a significant decline of first
class mail. TIf you think about when --

CHAIRMAN GOLDWAY: I understand that, Mr.
Williams. I was just asking about the service
standard impact on this.
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THE WITNESS: Yes. It all goes to the
operating window of our delivery barcode sorters for
DPS.

CHAIRMAN GOLDWAY: And I just wanted to
clarify the question from the GCA. In the answer on
Tl-4 wherein you say in some instances later
acceptance and dispatch times, i1s that later than
noon?

THE WITNESS: T1? I'm sorry. I flipped it
back over.

CHATIRMAN GOLDWAY: Dash 4.

THElWITNESS: Yes. We'’'ve got gquidelines by
which customer supplier agreements could be |
constructed that would allow -- could allow -- later
entry of volumes that in the preparation of those
volumes if they took our operational steps or time
within our process that would allow us to accept later
entry and still achieve the service standards. The
customer supplier agreement is the vehicle to do that.

CHATRMAN GOLDWAY: So it is possible for
some large mailers that they could deliver their mail
after noon?

THE WITNESS: Under certain conditions that
would still satisfy the achievement of service
standards.
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CHATRMAN GOLDWAY: I think that was the
question that GCA was trying to distinguish between
the two.

MR. STOVER: Thank you, Madam Chairman.
Would you like to ask the rest of my guestion?

CHATRMAN GOLDWAY: I don’t know what they
are, but if --

MR. STOVER: You do it better than I do.

MALE VOICE: I’'ll take care of redirect.

CHAIRMAN GOLDWAY: Soxrxy. I apologize.
I'll try to be hetter.

BY MR. STOVER:

0 Let’s turn f£rom the engineering questions;to
something I understand, Mr. Williams. I'm going to.
ask you to turn now in your packet to APWU/USPS-T1-9.

The predicate for the question ig that, aé
I'm sure you know, the postal community has been |
looking with interest and hearing with interest aboﬁt
a legislative proposal which we are told has been
forwarded by the Postal Sexrvice to Capitol Hill which,
among other things, entails the possibility of some
substantial rate increases.

I would like you just to look at APWU-T1-9
and add that legislative initiative to the list of
things mentioned in Part A and answer the question
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again on that basis.

A In Question A of T1-97?

Q T1-9-A. It asks whether you have in your
official capacity considered a relationship between
service changes and rate increases, and I just would
like you to add this legislative initiative to the end
of the list and answer the gquestion again with that
change.

A I'm not in government relations. That’s not
my area of expertise. I'm an operations guy. This is
an operations change, and I have not conéidered any
legislative -- what Congress may or may not do. I
can’t sgpeculate and I‘’ve got no control over what
Congress may or may not do, so I would answer no to
Question A. :

MR. STOVER: All right. Madam;Chairman, I
think that’s all we have for this witnesé.

Mr. Williams, thank you very mﬁch.

THE WITNESS: Thank you.

CHATRMAN GOLDWAY: Thank yvou. Perhaps we
could take a 10 minute break and return at well, we’ll
make it 11:10 to continue with questions and answers.
Thank you.

MR. STOVER: Thank you.

(Whereupon, a short recess was taken.)
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CHAIRMAN GOLDWAY: Okay. We’'re going to
call this hearing back to order and the next
participant who wishes to cross-examine Witness
Williams is the National Newspaper Association, Ms.
Tonda Rush.

MS. RUSH: Thank you, Madam Chairmarm.

CROSS~EXAMINATION

BY MS. RUSH:

Q Good morning, Mr. Williams. I'm Tonda Rush
with National Newspaper Association.

A Good morning.

Q You addressed in your testimony fairly
extensively on pages 23 and 24 how the changes in
critical entry times could affect delivery. I'11l give
you a minute to turn to that. -

A Thank you.

Q Then I want to ask fou some specific
gquestions that are probably mbre tailored to community

newspapers delivery experience.

A Okay.
Q When you're ready.
A I'm ready.

Q Let me begin by asking you whether anything
in the recommended standards changes or the network
optimization is likely to lead the Postal Sexrvice to
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change the way it handles newspapexrs with respect to

FSS sortation?

A With respect to our proposed rule?
Q The proposed rule.
A Our FSS equipment is a piece of automated

equipment that processes mail that meets certain
machinability characteristics and it’s the goal of the
Postal Service to maximize as much volume that we can
to process mail that meets the characteristics that
are compatible with the FSS equipment and process as
much as we can on ﬁhat equipment. So, to the extent
that we have mail that’s automation compatible with
respect to the characteristics of that machine, we
will do that.

0 T believé you said in response to one of
NNA’ s interrogatories that you’re not aware of
newspapers being processed on FSS. Is that still
true? |

A If there are newspapers that meet the
machinability requirement, we will put it on there,
but to my knowledge, the vast majority of newspapers
do not meet the FSS machinability regquirement, and a
large percentage of that wvolume gets processed in
other means.

Q What is it about the characteristics of the
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product that causes it not to be procegsed on an FSS?

A Certainly the gize, the thickness, we call
it the droop test, which is the flexibility of the
mail piece, and there are local operating managers
that keep certain mail off the machine if it rips and
tears by the nature of the way the mail is fed and
processed through the machine. So, for the most part,
newspapers are not machineable or automation
compatible across the FSS.

Q So is it fair to say in the future optimized
network;we’re probably looking at newspapers in a non-
FSS sorting environment?

A . Under the current configuration of our FSS
systems, I would say that is true.

Q : Ckay. Then let me pose some scenarios to
you and ‘instead of using the Tuesday entry, just to be
clear oﬁ how a typical newspaper might be presented,
let me try for a Friday publication date, and in this
case, I'd like to pose an entry time between midnight
and 6 a.m. In today's environment --

Midnight and 6 a.m.?
On a Friday.
On a Friday morning?

That’s right.

oo B 0 P

For Friday delivery.
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0 Friday delivery.

A Okay.

Q Entered at a DDU. Today it would be
delivered on Friday, correct, usually?

A If the characteristics of the mail piece
dictate that the mail piece is manual and they were
entered at a DDU prior to the critical entry time of
the DDU, then that mail piece would be delivered on
Friday.

Q Okay. Under the proposed standards, how
would you expect that mail piece to change? I mean,
how would you expect the delivery to change?

A The delivexry would be the same.

Q Would be the same. All right. What if it
were entered at let’s say 3 p.m. on Thursday for a
Friday delivery at the DDU, entered on Thursday 3 p.m.
for Friday delivery at the DDU? Do you expect that
delivery to change? Would it still have a Friday
expectation?

A Right. If the characteristics of the mail
plece dictate that it’s non-automation compatible,
entered at a DDU prior to the critical entry time of
Friday, in this case, it would be well before that, I
would expect that newspaper to be delivered on Friday.

Q Let’s assume for all of these questions that
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the mail piece is being entered at a DDU that has no
automation equipment. We’re probably talking in our
case about rural areas that probably would be handling
this mail piece by hand regardless of the network
optimization.

Let’s try that the mail is not entered
actually at the DDU. It is entered instead at an SCF
that’s been examined for a closure but is not yet
closed, and there’s a BMEU in that plant, and I think
for purposes of reference I'm going to call the mail
processing facilities SCFs since that probably is most
typical for newspaper mail. If the mail were entered
at that SCF for delivery within the SCF zone
overnight, midnight to 6 a.m. let’s say, what delivery
within the SCF zone would you expect it to have today
with that plant remaining open?

A With the plant remaining open, some of that
volume would be delivered overnight for those zones
that had not dispatched, and for that volume that we
could process we would have overnight delivery, but
from an overnight service standard for mail entered at
midnight to 6:00 in the morning there would be some
volumes that would not be delivered overnight for
those delivery units that are serviced by that SCF
plant.
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Q So some today would be delivered Friday,
some would be delivered Saturday, correct?
A Correct.

@] And if we had no Saturday delivery, then

A Correct.

Q And if no Monday delivery, then Tuesday
basically?

A Correct.

Q All right. So let’s imagine that the SCF in
our example has now closed and the Postal Service has
established a BMEU somewhere near that SCF, maybe in
the building. The plant is basically gone, but there
is some sort of facility there, and we still have an
overnight entry. Let’s imagine we’re looking at
basically five-digit carrier route containers. What
service expectation for that mail in that scenario?

A Could you just repeat the scenario? I want
to make sure that I fully understand.

Q We close the facility basically. We have a
BMEU nearby or maybe in that building let’s say.

A Ckay.

Q We still have mail entered overnight with
the hope of Friday delivery.

A And what time is it entered at the BMEU?
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Q Entered between midnight and 6 a.m.

A At a BME operation?

Q At a BMEU, ves. And the mailer is hoping
for a Friday delivery for at least the mail that’s in
a container that’s prepared at the five digit or the
carrier route level. Do we have expectation of having
a Friday delivery in any case?

A There could be some cases where we would
have Friday delivery if again transporting that mail
from the BME operation to the processing plant for
connection of service for those zones that are
sexviced by that processing plant, because it’s in a
five-digit container, if that ig containerized by five
digit, there is an opportunity for thé Postal Service
to get that mail connected. Not all of it will be
connected because some of those dispatches could
potentially have already departed from the plant, but
for those that didn’t we could get that volume
connected.

We are also proposing to establish hubs,
transportation hubs to drive efficient transportation
for those post offices that are serviced out of a new
processing plant. Because we want to drive efficient
transportation, we are proposing that we establish
hubs, and in a lot of cases, these hubs will be the
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current processing plant that’s closing and
potentially could be in the same building where this
BME operation could have mail inducted into it.

8o, for those zones that are serviced out of
any hub that we have mail deposited in those
locations, let’s say in this example that you propose
would be between midnight and 6:00 in the morning, if
mail is entered in a five-digit container prior to the
first dispatch leaving and given that we would need
some time to handle the volume to get that volume on
the right truck so that those trucks could go out to
the delivery units, we would achieve overnight
delivery service performance for that volume.

If that volume is tendered into one of these
hubs after a truck left, I would surmise that that
volume would be delivered the following day and not
that same day that the mail was entered.

Q So the service standard would not be
overnight, but you might get some overnight delivery?
A Of course we’re still in the rulemaking

process for the business rules by which service
standards will be governed, so I can‘t testify exactly
what those business rules would be today and how that
would be treated, but certainly from a performance
standpoint, there would be overnight, in this case
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same day delivery performance for volumes entered
after midnight for those delivery units whexre we could
connect volumes that would end up ultimately at the
delivery unit prior to those carriers going out for
delivery on their routes, just like we do today.

Q You just cut me off three different
questions, so that’s great. We’ll just move right
ahead here, but that’'s an answer we need to unpack a
little bit.

Let me go back to the scenarioc where we’ve
entered the mail at this BMEU in an old SCF building
and we don‘t have a transfer hub set up at this point.
We’ve got a five-digit carrier route container. The
transportation network will ftake all those containers,
whatever sortation level, to a processing plan% and
then some of them will simply come back still in the
container untouched, the five digit and the cafrier
route mail I assume.

A Yes.

Q And they’1ll be put into a different truck
and they’ll be brought back to the destination
delivery unit, correct?

A Correct, at the new gaining plant, and there
could be, there could be instances where we’ve got --
well, in this particular case vyou describe that we
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would not have a hub located at the BME operation, but
there could be potentially a trip that would end up
going past or even at a hub where we could be dropping
off volumes to get that mail connected.

Q Okay. I want to leave the hub question out
of it just for a second just to make sure we're clear.
I undefstand that you’ve answered our interrogatories
about that, but I want to see where we are if we don’'t
have a hub because I believe you told us hubs won’'t
necessarily serve the entire closed plant area. So
let me go back to my scenario again;

We’'ve got an entry between midnight and 6
a.m. at a BME. We have an SCF that;s maybe let’s say
200 miles now from where the old one was. Let’s say
we’'ve got five-digit and carrier route containers
only. Those containers will go to ﬁhe gaining plant,
correct? |

A Correct.

Q They will be handed off to the
transportation network to basically come back to the

destination delivery units within the closed SCF,

correct?
A Correct.
Q Okay. So I‘ve entered Friday morning

between midnight and 6 a.m.. Which day does the
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destination delivery unit actually put that mail in

mailboxes? Is it Saturday or is it Monday?

A According to our proposed rule, that would
be Monday.
Q It would be Monday. So a Friday publication

date would miss the weekend altogether in that
scenario?
y:\ According to our proposed rule that was

published in the Federal Register on December 15.

Q Okay.

A Under those pﬁoposed rules.

Q So now let me interject the hub question.
Let’s assume we have a hub and -- well, let’s just

deal with the hub question first. We have the hub.
The five digit and the carrier route containers don’t
necessarily have to go tb the gaining plant. They can
stay right there in thatjold SCF assuming the truck
networks work out properiy. The truck networks I
would surmise from your answers will be dictated by
the time it takes the gaining plant to process the
mail and get it back within the delivery window to the
DDUs, so transportation won’t necessarily be
engineered to pick up this mail at the hub and it will
be consequential, correct?

A Could you repeat that? I’'m sorry. I lost
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you in the middle of it.

Q The Postal Service won’t try to engineer the
transportation network specifically to make sure that
it gets to that hub in time to reach same day or next
day delivery. That’s not what drives your
transportation network, correct?

A Right. We’'re going to be driving towards an
efficient transportation model that meets the service
standards for the volumes that will be ultimately
transported. So it’s all about efficiency of
transportation that will dictate truck schedules and
the need to move volumes to hit certain critical entry
times within our processing network.

Q Okay. Let me try this scenario. Same entry
time, midnigh% to 6 a.m. in a BME. We have a truck
coming back ffom the gaining facility that say arrives
at 6 a.m., so-our mail is sitting there. It’s Friday
morning at 6 é.m. Which day will those newspapexrs be
delivered to the DDUs as the truck picks them up and
distributes them with the rest of that plant mail?
Friday morning or Saturday or Monday?

A Let me make sure I understand. Are you
asking that you drop at 6 a.m. at a hub, and we’re
picking up mail at a hub at 6 a.m. to go to post
offices --
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Q Correct.

A -~ for delivery?

Q Correct.

A Then we would expect the delivery of thosge

newspapers to occur same day, Friday morning.

Q On Friday, so we’d still be a Friday
delivexry day.

A Right. Assuming that the transportation
that is dispatched out of the hub at 6:00 in the
morning arrives at the post offices prior to their
critical entry times at the post offices to get that
volume sorted to the carrier and the carrier have an
opportunity to prepare it for delivery and --

CHAIRMAN GOLDWAY: What’s the typical
critical entry time at a post office?

l THE WITNESS: At a post office, our trucks
tyﬁically arrive at post offices anywhere between 5:30
in.the morning and 7:30 in the morning.

CHAIRMAN GOLDWAY: So, if this was picked up
at 6, it would have to be no more than an hour more or
less of transportation from the hub to the post office
to get it there.

THE WITNESS: Yes. In this particular
instance at 6:00 in the morning, there would be, you
know, transport time obviously. Dispatch of movement
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of containers off the truck to a delivery operation,
if this is a five-digit bundle of mail that needed to
be sorted to carrier route or P.0O., Box section, that
process step would have to occur. The carriers would
have to prepare that mail for delivery, you know,
digpatch and deliver the volume.

S0, under this scenario of 6:00 in the
morning, to the extent that those trips leave at 6, my
expectation would be that some of those trips
potentially would leave early, earlier than 6:00.

BY MS. RUSH:
You mean leave from the hub at 67

Correct.

L O o

Not from the gaining plant.

A And it would depend on how far of a
distance. See, the whole concept of the hub is to get
an efficient transportation model, and efficiency and
transportation is -- of course, in your example of a
200-mile difference between the SCF that’s going away
to the gaining plant, we would want full trucks going
from, to the extent that we could, as full of trucks
as we could from the plant to the hub.

So there could be multiple hubs established
for an existing SCF plant area. There could be three
hubs, four hubs, and certainly as long as we could
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efficiently design transportation that would maximize
utilization, pull cut as many miles as we possibly
could from a surface transportation standpoint, over a
certain geographic area, certainly the more hubs you
establish, on aggregate, the distances from the hub to
the delivery units is going to be less, and so that
will drive an efficient network if we can get full
loads from the plant to the hub and then from the hub
to the delivery units as few miles as we possibly can.

So there could be some SCF areas today that
have transportation coming out of one SCF plant. In
the future, there could be more than one
transportation connection hub established, and it’s

all about driving efficient transportation.

Q Let’s imagine then the same scenario. The
truck arrives at the hub at 6 a.m. -- or no, let’s
imagine the truck arrives at 3 a.m. -- 5 a.m., and my

mailer has entered the mail at 6 a.m., missed the
truck on Friday. Will they get Saturday delivery
then?

A If they miss the hub on Friday morning, then
that dispatch would be planned to go out Saturday
morning for Saturday delivery.

Q So Friday would be day zero, Saturday would
be day one. It would be one-day delivery.
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A Well, in this instance, if they --

CHAIRMAN GOLDWAY: But for those delivery
units that got to the post office by 7:307?

BY MS. RUSH:

Q Is that correct, what the Chairman poses?

A Well, I don’t want to generalize it as 7:30.
Before the critical entry time for that delivery unit.
o) For that delivery unit or for the hub?

A For both.
Q For the hub.

CHAIRMAN GOLDWAY: Between the hub and the
delivery unit.

MS. RUSH: Right.

CHAIRMAN GOLDWAY: So if you’ve got a hub --

THE WITNESS: Yes.

CHAIRMAN GOLDWAY: -- with many delivery
units, some of which are two hours or two and a half
hours --

MS. RUSH: You could still miss --

CHAIRMAN GOLDWAY: -- you might not get
Saturday delivery.

BY MS. RUSH:

Q So the Chairman makes a good point. I have
two real entry times I need to worry about. One is to
get to the hub in time for the truck, and the other is
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for the truck to get to the multiple DDUs in time to
get there before the carrier starts processing
whatever has to be done to that mail manually?

A Yes. The transportation schedules though
emanating out of the hubs would be scheduled such that
they would be arriving at the post offices prior to
their carrier up times.

Q And what are typical carrier up times?

A They're different in each delivery unit.

You know, the first carrier could go out at 8:30 in
the morning, 9:00 in the morning, 10:00 in the
morning, 11:00 in the morning. It’s different in each
office.

9] So it could be that the critical entry time
for the hub has to be congiderably earlier than let’s
say 6 a.m. Maybe it has to be 4 a.m. for the truck to
reach all the DDUs in the area?

A Yes. And again, that would be dependent on
the farthest delivery unit supported by the hub
primarily.

Q Right.

A And the distance that it would take would
primarily drive the critical entry time for the hub.

Q Do you expect that there will be a BME in
every hub?
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A That has not been determined at this point.

Q What other scenarios could occur? Could the
BME be in a post office, in a DDU?

A Could be, ves.

0 So are you familiar at all with the Postal
Sexrvice’s overnight entry privilege for newspapers? I
suspect you’ve had some passing acquaintance with DM-
109.

A I can tell you I am not an expert in the DM-
1092. I do understand that there is provisions in that
handbook that provides for overnight delivery of
periodicals entered at the local level under certain
conditions, and I think it’s on an annual basis up to,
and I’'d have to check this to make sure about it, but
I believe it’s 500,000 pieces a year, but that’s off
the top of my head. TI’d have to go back for the .
record to make sure that’s correct.

Q I would also like to check that to be suré,
but I think you’re correct.

A But I am not an expert in that. I do
understand that we do have provisions for periodical
newspapers that are entered at local post offices to
get provided overnight delivery.

Q S0, for purposes of considering what
critical entry times are necessary, it’s really the
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physical presentation of the mail that would be
critical for a time-sensitive newspaper.

A Yes.

Q Not necessarily the documentation. Just for
the Commigsion’s reference, I believe DM-109 permits
the mail to be dropped at an earlier time than the
documentation that goes with the mail as long as it
meets Postal Service’s criteria. Is that your
understanding?

A I'm not an expert on mail entry. Prethemera

might be the one that you might want to ask that

guestion.
Q We will pursue that, but let me just posit
though that -- let’s agsume the Postal Service does

permit that sort of documentation that c&mes in two or
three hours after the mail comes in becaﬁse usually
the BME is not open between midnight and'G a.m., so
the mail may get dropped at the hub let’é say and the
documentation goes to the BME, which may be some other
place. What we’re concerned about here is actually
the physical presentation of those containers at the
hub, correct?

A From an operation standpoint?

Q Operation standpoint. If we’re trying to
reach a same day or one-day delivery standard, we need
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to know what the critical entry time is at the hub for
the truck, and then we need to understand that the
truck has time to actually get to the DDU in time for
the carrier to case that mail.

A And I would add we would need time at the
cross dock operation hub to get that volumes that are
entered on the right trucks.

0 At what point in the examination of network
optimization did you realize or did the Postal Service
realize that it was going to need to set up these
hubs? Was this part of the concept at the beginning?

A Yes. We understood that for efficient
transportation we would need to establish hubs to
drive efficiencies around tranmsportation. That was

understood near the very begiﬂning of our analysis.

Q Have you actually sét up any of these vyet?
A Sure. |

0 None of these exist?

A No, they do exist today.

Q Some do exist. How do they look? I mean,

is it a dock with a place to transfer bundles from one
truck to the other?

A Yes. In my experience as a plant manager, I
had hubs at larger post offices where I would have
truckloads of mail at the plant that I was responsible
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for dispatch multiple offices to one bigger office,
and then transportation would emanate out of that
larger office. 8o those hubs exist today, and in fact
there have been AMPs that we’ve implemented that have
included the presence of hub operations.

CHAIRMAN GOLDWAY: We didn’'t see any mention
of hubs in the testimony.

THE WITNESS: I know there were specific
questions around hubs based on interrogatories.

BY MS. RUSH:

0 Actually,;as an example, Mr. Williams, if
you’d turn to NNA-T-1-5 I believe 1t is, I wanted to
ask you an additional question about that.

I believe the intention, is it not, is --
actually you said sbmething here I thought was a
little confusing. We asked you whether some
containers that might be sorted to the three digit or
the ADC levels ox mixed ADC levels that might have
some five digit or carrier route bundles in them at
those hubs might be broken down at the hub so that
those bundles that could be cross docked and move
directly to transportation could go on their way and
the rest of the mail would go back to the processing
plant to go through the rest of the delivery cycle.

A What?
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0 I'm looking at your response to our question
T-1-5-B.

A Could you point me to where that language
is?

Q Your answexr number B says -- I believe you
said -- we said, "Ig it possible that some of the mail

will be broken down if some five digit or carrier
route bundles are presented in containers sorted to
the three digit or lower schemes?" And you said,

"This will depend on the characteristics of mail

Volume."; Do you see that?
A Yes.
0 . Does this mean that in some cases Postal

Service personnel ox contractor personnel at the hubs
may actuélly break down those containers to some
degree tb pull out those five digit and those carrier
route buﬁdles and let them go on through the hub
transporfation to the DDU and then the rest of that
container might then move onto the gaining plant?

A That is correct. It would depend on the
characteristics of the mail piece. Again, we want to
drive an efficient mail processing network. So, to
the extent that these volumes are machineable and
automation compatible, we want to get that on the
equipment. In our scenario that we’ve been talking
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about, if we assume that these mail pieces have the
characteristics that they need to be processed
manually, then if we have staffing in these hubs
sufficient to be able to do that work, we will do that
work.

Q Well, let’s assume that none of it’s

automatable in this case.

A Okay.

Q Maybe we're in an F38S5 zone.

A Okay.

Q I believe actually the AFSM-100 doesn’t

process that much newspaper mail either. Do you think
that’s true?

A I would say yes, that’s true.

Q S0 likely we’re dealing with mail that
probably is going to be manually processed even though
best efforts by the mailer to put bar codes and things
on may have been made, and that’s an operational

decision by the Postal Service, correct?

A I'm sorry. I was looking at --

Q I'm soxrry.

A I'm sorry, you caught me in between. I'm
SOrrTYy.

Q Let’'s just assume that it’s all manually
processed --
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A Okay.

Q -- for ease of this question.

A Ease, okay.

0 So it’s not in the Postal Service’s interest

and vou don’t plan to necessarily carry five digit and
carrier route bundles far away from destination entry
points to the plant where they won’t be processed by
machines just so you can have the privilege of putting
them on another truck and ancther container and bring
them back again?

A Right. It‘s very likely that those hub
operations, as we need to break down containers to get
that volume connected to the transportation that is
serviced out of that hub, to the extent that we can
pull out five-digit bundleg that are contained within
a three-digit container or carrier route bundles, we
will do that, and we will do that to make sure that
we’re providing efficient service to that volume.

Q Do you agree that a container sorted to the
three-digit let’s say level or ADC level could have
some five digit and carrier route bundles then because
the mailer didn’t have enough volume to make up a five
digit or a carrier route container?

A Yes.

Q So that could happen?
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A That could happen.

0 Has the Postal Service examined in this
gscenario of the hubgs where you really don’t want to
bring that mail forward if you don’t need to changing
the requirements for the containers to permit smaller
containers so that you wouldn’t have to open
containers to sort those bundles out? Have you looked
at that?

A We have discussed i1t, but to the extent that
we’ve got a proposal arcund any kind of additional
labeling list to support a hub operation, we haven’t
gone that far with it. But it is likely that we will
have some type of labeling list that could support a
hub type operation where we could direct mailers to
put those five-digit zones or carrier route bundles in
a container for those delivery offices that are
serviced out of a hub, so that will be a consideration
moving forward.

Q So our long consideration before the
Commission about container minimums might change,
might be driven to a change because of the hub
requirements?

A I would say that as we put this network in
place there’s a lot of considerations around labeling
lists that we might want to consider looking at and
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that being one of them.

0 Would the likelihcod of the Postal Service
making that determination to allow smaller volume
containers be different if the container used were a
flats tray as opposed to a sack? Does it make it
easier for the Postal Service to handle that mail in
smaller volumes if it’s in a flats tray?

A It is easier from a containerization.
Certainly the labor that’s required to open up a sack
is more than the labor that that would take if we were
processing bundles or pieces out of a flat tub.

Q Okay. You made a reference to the changing
of the labeling lists. Clearly, if mail is going to
be destinating or originating at different plants than
they have been today, labeling lists will have to have
pretty extensive changes, correct?

A We do expect significant changes to our
labeling lists.

o} What is the Postal Service’s current policy
about the timing of providing those labeling lists to
the processing software vendors before they’re
implemented? How much lead time do you really need to
give both the software pecple and the mailers to be
able to make changes like that?

A We have been working through our mailers
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technical advisory committee on what those
requirements would look like in terms of how often.
We do have a structured release process for label
changes, that’s six times a year. 1It’'s our
expectation that over the course of the next vear
we’'re going to at least stick with the six times a
year frequency in terms of labeling list changes.

Q When the lists change, how much time do the
software vendors have to put those into place? Is it
90 days?

A You know, we call it task team 11 is working
on that right now. They are evaluating how much time
is required. I don’'t have their final recommendation
at the top of my head, but I do know that we’ve been
working very closely with the industry on determining
what type of advance notice that we need to give to
the software vendors and then how long of a grace
period or an exception period we’ll allow before we
start to enforce the acceptance policies around the
new labeling lists, but off the top of my head, I
don’t have that off the top of my head.

Q Any rough parameters? Ninety days? Hundred
and twenty days? What do you think it’s likely to be
after you’ve examined all that? I know that’s been an
issue for the Postal Service in the past.
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Q I think it’s 75 days today. I think it’'s
going to be less than 75 days, but again, in all of
our discussions with the industry, we’ve taken a very
solutions-baged approach because this network change
is going to impact the industry, so we need to make
sure that in our approach, like the labeling list and
the frequency of the list and the exception period
that we’re going to provide and the advance notice
that we’re going to provide, we’re going to take a
very solutiong-based approach, and we’ve been working
through the industry through task team 11 from;our
mailers technical advisory committee.

S0 it’s not going to be a Postal Service
mandate with no input. This is going to be a policy
that will come out that is solutions-based with a lot
of industry input through our mailers technicai
advisory committee. I just don’'t have it off ﬁhe top
of my head. I would be happy to take that as é
homework assignment and provide that for the record.

Q We would like to have that if you don’t
mind.

MS. RUSH: Madam Chairman, I am now going to
make an attempt to resolve the subject of NNA's motion
for a witness to address a previous study.

CHAIRMAN GOLDWAY: Before we do that, I want
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to pursue --

MS. RUSH: Please.

CHATIRMAN GOLDWAY: -- this hub issue just a
bit more.

The Postal Service has mentioned hubs in its
testimony, but there’s no specifics that have been
provided: no routes, no costs, no indication of what
percentage of the mail will be covered by them. I
think given this conversation we’ve heard today that
for the Commission to have a better sense of what the
impact on service will be we need to have as much
information as possible about the hub plans.

When do you think you would be able to
provide the information for us in this docket so that
we could review it as part of the tfansportation
network and processing network for ﬁetwork
realignment?

THE WITNESS: Well, I wouid defer the hub
timeframe to Witness Martin, who’s the subject matter
expert around transportation. I do know that in the
AMP packages that were approved there were hubs in
there. I do know that the areas are evaluating hubs,
and I do know that from a transportation standpoint in
terms of designing the most efficient transportation,
hubs would be set up tc decrease the cost of

Heritage Reporting Corporation
(202) 628-4888



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

280
transportation. So, to the extent that the cost has
been included, it would be an added benefit from a
transportation standpoint as we stand up hubs because
it’s all about driving efficiencies. I would defer
those questions to Witness Martin.

CHATRMAN GOLDWAY: Well, who can? Mr.
Martin you said can?

THE WITNESS: Witness Martin.

CHATRMAN GOLDWAY: Could answer questions
about --

THE WITNESS: The hubs.

CHAIRMAN GOLDWAY: -- the extent of the
hubs, their cost and how;they will impact service
delivery?

THE WITNESS: fn terms of impact service
delivery. ‘

CHATIRMAN GOLDWAY: These are the guestions
we were asking today, yoﬁ know.

THE WITNESS: Okay. I can address --

CHAIRMAN GOLDWAY: If a hub is there, I
understand that you want to get costs out of the
system. You don’t want to be driving mail back and
forth across --

THE WITNESS: Right.

CHATIRMAN GOLDWAY: -- the same mail back and
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forth across the country three different times.
You’'re going to try and do it for less, but you have
procegsing issues, vou have staff that are going to be
at these hubs, you have facilities that you have to
have for hubs.

THE WITNESS: Right, and --

CHAIRMAN GOLDWAY: If you’re closing
processing plants, where are these hubs going to be?
Are you assuming that they’'re going to be part of that
processing plant that’s there or a new facility? And
are those costs there, and who is going to staff them
and at what time? I think that’s an essential part of
the information we need.

THE WITNESS: Okay.

CHATRMAN GOLDWAY: When do vou think we
might be able;to get that information?

THE WITNESS: Can I take that as a homework
assignment and provide a response for the record?

CHATIRMAN GOLDWAY: Yes.

THE WITNESS: Okay. Thank you.

MS. RUSH: Madam Chairman, you just reminded
me of a question I did mean to ask the witness.

BY MS. RUSH:

Q We asked you in one of the interrogatories
about the request for information the Postal Service
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made to contractors with respect to these hubs and
asked you separately about the Postal Service’'s
interest in entering into contracts for transportation
versus the operation of the hubs. You gave us a
referral to a link which, I apologize, I was not able
to make work. I tried to paste it in and it sent me
nowhere, but I often have that problem with the
internet.

Can you just explain the Postal Service’'s
current thinking about where contractors may be used
in transportation separate from operation of a
facility? How might this work?

7 A Well, again, it all goes back to driving
efficient transportation with as full of loads as
poséible coming from the plant to a hub, minimizing
the;distance then that the hub would serve for the
delivery units that would be serviced out of the hub,
SO it’s all about driving efficient transportation.

From a highway contract standpoint, we are
locking at what we call area HCR contracts where we
are interested in the ability of highway contract
contractors that could serve a geographic area, and
the service of that geographic area, we would take a
look at a performance-based contract that would
dictate when mail would be required to be delivered to
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a delivery unit, and we might give it a window of
time.

Let's for the purposes of the discussion say
between 6 and 6:30 in the morning for a group of
delivery units and let’s say 6:15 to 6:45 in the
morning for another group and maybe up to from 6:30 to
7:00 in another group, and we would provide the
contractor with times and volumes that would be
available from the plant and we would indicate
workload and the availability of that workload that
would be needed to move from the plant and then
delivered to those delivery units within that delivery
unit window.

And the contractors that we would expect
would drive a very efficient transportation model
under those conditions, and in a lot of cases, just
like we would from a Postal Service standpoint stand
up a hub to minimize distances, we would expect that
to the extent that contractors would do that to drive
down the overall price and notwithstanding that a lot
of our HCR contractors already have these cross dock
facilities already that are available to their
disposal that they would use some type of cross dock
operation that would minimize the distances between
the cross dock operation or the hub and the delivery
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units to drive a very efficient model.

S0 we’re interested in those contractors
that have the capability to do that, and it’s all
about just driving costs out of the transportation
system.

Q Go back to what you said about -- sorry.

CHAIRMAN GOLDWAY: Their contract hubs,
would they be able to accept the mail?

THE WITNESS: We would look to make that
happen. That would be the expectation.

BY MS. RUSH:

Q Igs it possible that the mailers Will find
themselves dealing with a contractor who'’s breaking
down the mail that’s never touched a mail piece before
and has had no training in mail entxry?

A I mean, we haven’'t gone that far in the
evaluation of that particular concept, but we could
put postal employees in those facilities.

Q You said just a moment ago some of these
contractors that you might be talking with already
have cross dock facilities. Dces this mean freight
forwarders? Is that the sort of contractor you’'re
thinking of?

A Yes. You know, they have cross dock type
facilities that they use for other transportation, the
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logistics, customers that they use and transport for.

Q Wouldn’t it be in a contractor’s interest to
slow the mail down until the trucks are full?

A It would be in the contractor’s interest to
fulfill the obligations of the contract, and because
we would determine this at least in my view to be a
performance-based contract that would have certain
criteria around delivery expectations and time of
delivery because we’re establishing oxr would at least
in my mind establish some window of time that those
trips need to arrive at our post offices and times
that mail needs to be dispatched from the plant, that
would be a performance-based contract, and I believe
that the rational business minds that operate these
companies would fulfill the contract requirements.

0 Would performance-based measures in a
contract mean sanctions other than financial, or would
it mean they get paid more if they meet delivery
times? How do you do performance-based contracts?

A I don’'t want to speculate on how these
contracts might be laid out, but we do have
transportation contracts that have penalties for
deliveries that are missed for on-time performance.

We do have contracts from a transportation standpoint
that have those provisions in them, penalties.
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Q So the Postal Service actually could save
money if it turns out that the contractor missed the
delivery window. You pay them less in other words.

A Right, we would penalize.

Q You would penalize them financially?

A I mean, I don’'t want to speculate what a
contract of this nature would look like, but in other
transportation contracts we do have penalty clauses,
yes.

CHAIRMAN GOLDWAY: To maintain service,
wouldn’t you rather have a bonus than a penalty?

MS. RUSH: Only if the mailers don’t pay it,
Madam Chairman.

BY MS. RUSH:

Q I guess that money, if the Postal Service
saves money, it goes back into the cost of the mail,
huh?

A The Postal Service --

0 Who actually gets that money back? Do the
mallers get it back or does the Postal Service keep
ig?

A The Postal Service, it goes back to the
Postal Service.

Q I knew that already. Thank vyou.

MS. RUSH: All right. Madam Chairman, I‘'m
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preparing to move on from this area --
CHATRMAN GOLDWAY: Yes.
MS. RUSH: -- unless any of the
Commigsioners have a question.
All right. NNA posed two questions to Mr.
Williams the Postal Service objected to. NNA filed a
motion to compel a response and asked for a witness.
Having consulted with counsel of the Postal Service,
we’'ve decided that we’re going to try to see what the
witness can answer with respect to the study that we
were discussing, and so with the Chair’s permission,;
I'm going to present NNA Cross-Examination Exhibit 1
to the witness.
THE WITNESS: Thank you.
{The document referred to was
marked for identification és
NNA Cross-Examination Exhibit
1.) |
MS. RUSH: In the interest of trying to keep
the Commission’s commitment to moving this process
forward, we want to see if we can get a few gquestions
answered, and if we can, we will withdraw our motion.
So I would like to begin, this question
probably is for Mr. Tidwell and not for Mr. Williams.
Can we get a stipulation from the Postal Service that
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this document I presented was actually filed by the
Postal Service on July 9, 2010, and that it addressed
a gstudy -- let’s just ask for the filing first. Can
you stipulate that this actually was filed?

MR. TIDWELL: It bears all the indicia of a
filing at the Commission on July 9, 2010.

MS. RUSH: And can the Postal Service
stipulate that this filing referred to a study
conducted by IBM for the Postal Service for purposes
of measuring service performance for within-county
periodicals?

MR. TIDWELL: I would observe that this is a
document that appears to have been filed by the Postal
Service at the Commission on July 9 in Rulemaking
Docket No. RM2010-11. The Postal Service has no basis
for thinking otherwise.

MS. RUSH: Okay. Thank you, Mr; Tidwell.

BY MS. RUSH: |

Q Mr. Williams, I realize you probably haven’t
had much opportunity to look at this exhibit, but I
want to ask you whether you were involved with the
study that was conducted by IBM for the Postal Service
about service for within-county periodicals?

A No, this is the first time I've seen this
document.
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Q Were you aware that this study was going on
contemporaneously?

A No.

Q Okay. Have you referred to in the course of
creating your policy testimony the measurement of
service for within-county periodicals?

A Could you repeat that? I’'m sorry.

0 Have you referred to the Postal Service’'s

methodology for measuring within-county periodical

gservice?
A No.
Q If I said to you that the Postal Service

decided in this filing in 2010.that the Postal Service
had decided that outside-county periodicals
measurement systems would be sﬁfficient to use as a
proxy for within-county servicé, would that surprise
you? |

Y2\ Say that again. If fhe Postal Service?

Q If the Postal Service had decided to use the
outside-county periodicals measurement as a proxy for
within-county service measurement, would that surprise
you?

A You know, absent any real thinking about it,
I couldn’t really respond to that.

Q Well, then let me just ask you since the

Heritage Reporting Corporation
(202) 628-4888



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

290

Postal Serxrvice has stipulated this is the Postal
Service’s filing here, if you look on the first page
of the Postal Service’s notice of filing, I'm going to
give you just a minute to read that and tell me
whether you agree the Postal Service has decided in
this notice that no separate measurement system is
necessary for within-county periodicals.

MR. TIDWELL: Is there a particular passage,
counsel, that you have in mind?

MS. RUSH: Well, I believe the third
sentence probably wduld establish the point.

MR. TIDWELL: The question is does the third
sentence say what iﬁ says or what? What is the
gquestion?

MS. RUSH: - The question is does the sentence
say what it says. -

MR. TIDWEﬁL: The Postal Service will
stipulate that the Qords that appear on the page
appear on the page, and we don’'t know what purpose is
served by having this witness confirm that the words
on the page are on the page.

MS. RUSH: So this witness has no knowledge
really of how the service standards -- how the service
is actually measured for within-county periodicals?

THE WITNESS: Yes, I am not an expert on the
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intricacies of how the service measurement system is
congtructed around inside- or outgide-county
periodicals. I’ve got a general understanding that
service performance is measured based on intelligent
mail, the use of intelligent mail bar codes that have
unigqueness around it, that have a valid start-the-
clock, a valid stop-the-clock, and a delivery
component is -- last mile delivery factor is applied
to it. But the intricacies of the service measurement
piece, I'm not an expert.

BY MS. RUSH:
Q Do you have any awareness of the use of the
Red Tag énd the DelTrack service measurement processes

for periodicals in general as opposed to IMB?

A - Again, I'm not an expert in either one of
those. l

Q | Okay.

A | I do understand that there is a Red Tag

process that measures periodicals for Red Tag
customers. I could not tell you how the measurement
system operates. I couldn’t do it for DelTrack
either. I mean, they’ve got specific business rules
that I could not describe.

Q Do you have any idea what the level of
adoption of IMB has been by periodicals mailers?
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A I do not have that number off the top of my
head, but I'd be happy to respond for the record in
writing.

0 Making an estimate, would you say it’'s
relatively high or relatively low?

A I would say relatively low compared to other
standard mail or First Class.

Q Any idea of how adoption has been by
newspaper mailers in specific?

A I do not.

o] Would you assume if it’s relatively low for
most pericdicals it’s also likely relatively low for
newspapers?

A I would say it’'s relatively 1likely low for
newspapers.

Q Okay. Let me ask you to look at page 6 on
this study and see if we can learn anything from your
examination here. The Postal Service does produce
service measurement for all of its mail products and
break them down by area, is that correct?

A For all of its mail products?

Q Let’s say just for periodicals. You do see
reports on periodicals on-time performance?

A I do see on-time performance for
periodicals.
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Q Would a report that you would typically see
resemble -- without looking at the specific number
valueg here -- resemble the sort of breakdown that vou
see in this chart here where you’ve broken down by
area that there is a percent on time, and you’ve got a
percentage number and you’'ve got a percent within one
day, within two days and within three days?

A Yes.

Q On this chart, it appears to show that the
on-time delivery experienced by the monitors in this
study was pretty high in some areas. For example, I
think the eastern area experienced an 83.63 percent on
time, but then the Pacific area was down to 58
percent, southeast area, 54 percent. Any idea for
periodicals in general which areas are performing well
today if yvou toock all of the periodicals as a group?
The service level is roughly 65 percent on time. Is
that about where they’ve been lately?

y:\ About 65 percent on time. I don’‘t have the
relative rankings memorized by area for periodicals.
Again, I’'d be happy to provide the latest measurement
system reports for the record.

Q That might be helpful.

MR. TIDWELL: That data may already exist in
the ACR docket where the Postal Service routinely
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provides data for the Commission.

CHAIRMAN GOLDWAY: I'm not sure we have the
gsame information she’s talking about. She’s talking
about your own internal measurement systems, aren’t
you? Not the reporting on DelTrack and measurements
that we get.

MS. RUSH: Well, I'm frankly not sure, Madam
Chairman. That’s one of the reasons we wanted to ask
this question of a witness, if not this witness,
exactly how the Postal Service is doing periodicals
measurement. I think we're fairly confident that
there is no existing separate measurement of within-
county periodicals now. Whatever data the Postal
Service examines from its various systems, whether
it’s IMB or DelTrack or Red Tag, is for periodicals as
a product, as a whole class.

CHAIRMAN GOLDWAY: I thought you were asking
him about the internal measurements of the Postal
Service itself.

MS. RUSH: Well, I'm asking for any
measurement system whether it’s coming from an outside
source or an ingide source that gives us an idea of
how often periodicals are delivered on time, and I'm
not sure how those arxe compiled.

//
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BY MS. RUSH:

@] Are you, Mr. Williams?

A It’'s my understanding that we use the
intelligent mail bar code, full service uniqueness
intelligent mail bar code that have a valid start-the-
clock, a valid stop-the-clock, and we apply a
delivery, a last mile delivery factor that’'s supplied
I believe by IBM based on their reporter scans of the
intelligent mail bar code ags they received them.
That’'s my general understanding of the measurement
system, and the same types of process is used for
First Class, for standard, for periodicals

Q But how reliable do you consider the reports
if adoption of IMB is low?

A I do know that comparative to our external
measured First Class Mail, which has very limited
sample size, relative to the number of IMB, unique IMB
pieces that we measure, I mean, we measure many, many
more intelligent mail bar code pieces than we do for
our single piece First Class Mail measure that’'s
conducted by IBM. I can’t testify to the robustness
of that measurement system for periodicals.

Q OCkay. If you were to see a repoft that
looks like the one here that you see on page 6 from
contemporaneous data, from whatever source, whether
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it’s intermnal or external, from outside reporters or
whatever, and you see this wide variation of, you
know, 30 percentage points service performance, what
kinds of factors are you looking at to try to diagnose
what the problems are in areas that show up with 58
percent, 55 percent or 65 percent on-time delivery?

A We are looking at -- we have the ability now
with the intelligent mail bar code to measure what we
call work in procegs cycle time. And because we’ve
got a valid start the clock which is determined by
surface visibility scan of a container that’s unloaded
off of a txuck or of a fast appointment, we measure
the time that that mail arrives on the platform to the
time that it receives a first machine hit. We also
have the capability of digging into a root cause, for
example, last mile.

We know that last mile, the last mile
factor, which is the percentage of mail pieces that
get a valid stop the clock on its last destinating
incoming secondary sort program machine hit to the
time that it’s delivered, that it’s higher than our
first-class mail delivery factor. So we know that
we’ve got some opportunity to improve the delivery and
to dig into root cause around mail pieces that go
through our mail processing system all the way to its
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last scan and then at some point fails delivery, to be
delivered on time the day that it’s expected to be
delivered.

But primarily right now we are intensely
focused on reducing the amount of time that it takes
from the time that that truck arrives and we get a
container unload scan or we get a fast appointment
timestamp to the time that we get a first machine hit.
We know that there is a direct correlation that the
longer it takes for us to get mail off the dock to the
first machine it that when that time is long that the
service performance is less. 8o our focus from a
processing and network standpoint is really to focus
our operating managers at the field level to reduce
that time. ;

One of the things that we did for
pericdicals last year was we published a periodicals
processing policy, and in that policy, we deterﬁined
that there was a gap in the way periodicals were
identified and that the service commitment, based on
the entry, the point of entry and the containerization
of that mail, what the service sténdard was. 8o we
put in a process that identified the service standard
and the delivery expectation of that volume and then
the use of the intelligent mail baxr code data as we
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started to measure the work in process cycle time, and
again, that’s from the truck unload to the first
machine hit, that that time is being continuously
improved upon so that we’re reducing that time.

In addition, we put out policies around --
to address the last mile delivery factor, we put in
policies that ensured that any flat mail, regardless
of the mail class, because we know that we have mail
classes that get merged at that last machine handling,
we know that for that incoming secondary process,
which is the last machine process in.our plant before
it goes out for delivery which sorts mail to the
carrier route level, that that volumé, that we merge
volumes.

We merge first-class mail,:we merge second,
periodicals and we merge standard mail all in the same
sort program in scome casgses, and we dispatch that
volume in a flat tub. And we put ouf a policy to our
delivery unit managers to make sure that we don’'t
curtail that volume because we have the ability to
curtail standard mail in accordance with the service
standard in our color code policy, but the fact is
that there are occasions where periodicals are mixed
in and even first-class volumes are mixed in that
container.
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So we put out a policy to ensure that if
flat mail is delivered at a delivery unit that the
carriers are to work that mail and take that mail out
for delivery. And that policy was put in place to
address this last mile factor that we’ve been seeing
as we look at root cause.

The primary focus from a periodical
standpoint and the other thing that we recently
focused on was a practice where sites were backflowing
volumes, periodical volumes, from the delivery unit
back to the FSS location to maximize the volume of FSS
processed mall, all in an attempt to drive
efficiencies around delivery operations.

So there was a practice that we had in the
field of backflowing. Weicall it backflowing mail
from the post office to oﬁr automated equipment. We
stopped that. We made Sufe that our operating
managers understood that we can't forego service on
periodicals and just drive efficiencies. We've got to
make sure that if periodicals are sent to the post
office for delivery that they don’t backfill that
volume back to the FSS location. So we stopped that
practice as well.

So those were the primary things. The first
one is this whole work in process cycle time. We're
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driving towards what we call from an operation
standpoint day zero processing. For periodicals, we
want to make sure that that first machine hit occurs
on day zero just to drive that cycle time because we
know and the data shows it’s got a wvery high
corr